
 
 A meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL 

WELL-BEING) will be held in the CIVIC SUITE 0.1A, PATHFINDER 
HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on 
TUESDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2011 at 7:00 PM and you are requested to 
attend for the transaction of the following business:- 

 
 

 Contact 
(01480) 

 
 APOLOGIES   

 
 

1. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Panel held on 4th January 2011. 
 
2 Minutes. 
 

Miss H Ali 
388006 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 

 To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or 
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation to 
any Agenda Item. Please see Notes 1 and 2 overleaf. 
 
2 Minutes. 
 

 

3. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN  (Pages 7 - 
10) 

 
 

 A copy of the current Forward Plan, which was published on 13th 
January 2011 is attached. Members are invited to note the Plan and 
to comment as appropriate on any items contained therein.  
 
10 Minutes. 
 

Mrs H Taylor 
388008 

4. VOLUNTARY SECTOR  (Pages 11 - 16) 
 

 

 To receive a presentation from the Chief Executive of the Hunts 
Forum of Voluntary Organisations. 
 
20 Minutes.  
 

 

5. OPEN SPACE STRATEGY FOR HUNTINGDONSHIRE 2011-16  
(Pages 17 - 100) 

 
 

 To consider a report by the Head of Operations seeking the 
endorsement of an Open Space Strategy for Huntingdonshire. 
 
20 Minutes. 
 
 

J Craig 
388638 



 
6. MONITORING OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS (PLANNING 

OBLIGATIONS)  (Pages 101 - 118) 
 

 

 To receive a report by the Head of People, Performance and 
Partnerships outlining the progress made to date in respect of the 
expenditure and receipt of money received from S106 Agreements. 
 
20 Minutes. 
 

C Meadowcroft 
388364 

7. ONE LEISURE WORKING GROUP   
 

 

 To appoint Members onto a Working Group to investigate issues 
arising from the presentation delivered at the last meeting of the 
Panel on One Leisure. 
 
5 Minutes. 
 

 

8. CAMBRIDGESHIRE ADULTS WELL-BEING AND HEALTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  (Pages 119 - 126) 

 
 

 To receive an update from Councillor R J West on the outcome of 
recent meetings of the Cambridgeshire adults Well-Being and Health 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 
5 Minutes.  
 

 

9. WORK PLAN STUDIES  (Pages 127 - 134) 
 

 

 To consider, with the aid of a report by the Head of Democratic and 
Central Services, the current programme of Overview and Scrutiny 
studies. 
 
15 Minutes. 
 

Miss H Ali 
388006 

10. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL WELL-BEING) - 
PROGRESS  (Pages 135 - 148) 

 
 

 To consider a report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services 
on the Panel’s programme of studies. 
 
15 Minutes.  
 

Miss H Ali 
388006 

11. SCRUTINY   
 

 

 To scrutinise decisions as set out in the Decision Digest (TO 
FOLLOW) and to raise any other matters for scrutiny that fall within 
the remit of the Panel. 
 
5 Minutes. 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 Dated this 24 day of January 2011  
 

 

 

 Chief Executive 
 

 
Notes 
 
1.  A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent 

than other people in the District – 
 

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, their 
family or any person with whom they had a close association; 

 
 (b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any 

company of which they are directors; 
 
 (c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of 

securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
 
 (d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests. 
 
2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has 

knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member’s personal 
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of 
the public interest. 

 
Please contact Miss H Ali, Democratic Services Officer, Tel No: (01480) 388006 / email: 
Habbiba.Ali@huntsdc.gov.uk if you have a general query on any Agenda Item, wish to 
tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information on any 
decision taken by the Board. 
Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the 
Contact Officer. 
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during 
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website – 

www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy). 
 
 

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports 
or would like a large text version or an audio version  
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and  

we will try to accommodate your needs. 
 

Emergency Procedure 
In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency 
exit. 



This page is intentionally left blank



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 MINUTES of the meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

(SOCIAL WELL-BEING) held in the Civic Suite 0.1A, Pathfinder 
House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on Tuesday, 4 
January 2011. 

   
 PRESENT: Councillor R J West – Vice-Chairman. 
   
  Councillors P L E Bucknell, S Cawley, 

B S Chapman, Mrs K E Cooper, 
Mrs P A Jordan and P G Mitchell. 

   
Co-opted Members - Mr R Coxhead and Mrs 
M Nicholas. 
 

 APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were 
submitted on behalf of Councillors S J 
Criswell and J J Dutton. 

   
75. MINUTES   

 
 The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 7th December 2010 

were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

76. MEMBERS' INTERESTS   
 

 Councillor P L E Bucknell declared a personal interest in Minute No. 
78 by virtue of his involvement with the Police Authority. 
 
Councillor P G Mitchell declared a personal interest in Minute No. 78 
by virtue of his involvement in the installation of CCTV cameras in 
Stilton. 
 

77. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN   
 

 The Panel considered and noted the current Forward Plan of Key 
Decisions (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) which 
had been prepared by the Leader of the Council for the period 1st 
January to 30th April 2011. In noting the addition of items entitled 
Local Lettings Plans and Safer Homes Scheme, the Scrutiny and 
Review Manager reported on the background to the reports, both of 
which would be considered by the Cabinet at their January meeting. 
 

78. HUNTINGDONSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 
VIEWS ON CCTV   

 
 (Councillor C R Hyams, Executive Councillor for Operational and 

Countryside Services was in attendance for consideration of this 
item). 
 
Pursuant to Minute No. 68, the Panel gave consideration to a report 
by the Head of Democratic and Central Services (a copy of which is 
appended in the Minute Book) outlining Huntingdonshire Community 
Safety Partnership’s discussions on the value of CCTV within the 

Agenda Item 1

1



District. 
 
Dr S Lammin, Chairman of the Community Safety Partnership, 
reported that the Divisional Commander for Central Division had 
written to her outlining Cambridgeshire Constabulary’s position in 
response to the Council’s proposals. Members noted that the 
Constabulary strongly supported the retention of the CCTV service 
and were willing to engage in discussions with the Council with a view 
to preserving it. Attention was also drawn to a letter which had been 
received from St Ives Town Council requesting the Council to 
reconsider its budgetary proposals in respect of CCTV. 
 
Members discussed a number of matters including the extent to which 
CCTV affected crime levels particularly in rural areas, the Council’s 
statutory duty to reduce crime and disorder, research findings on the 
effectiveness of CCTV, the Council’s policy in respect of the 
installation of cameras within the District and the process by which 
crime incidents detected through CCTV were recorded. 
 
Having considered the value of CCTV to the District, Members have 
concluded with the view that the service should be preserved, 
particularly in light of the level of investment already made by the 
Council in it. Comment was also made by a Member that efforts 
should be made to collaborate with other local authorities and 
external parties with a view to determining whether they might be 
interested in buying into the CCTV system. The views also were 
expressed that the availability of external funding should not be the 
deciding factor when a decision on the future of CCTV was taken and 
that savings should be found in other areas. 
 
Having concluded their discussions, Members noted that an 
opportunity to give further consideration to the proposals would be 
provided at the February meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Economic Well-Being) when the final budget would be considered by 
Members. 
 

79. HUNTINGDONSHIRE STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP: HEALTH AND 
WELL-BEING THEMATIC GROUP   

 
 With the assistance of an extract from the Huntingdonshire 

Sustainable Community Strategy 2008-2028 (a copy of which is 
appended in the Minute Book) the Panel were acquainted with the 
strategic objectives of the Health and Well-Being Thematic Group of 
the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership (HSP), together with 
details of how it intended to achieve them. Having been reminded of 
the duty the Council had to scrutinise the work of the HSP, Members 
noted that the Thematic Group aimed to address health inequalities, 
intervene to alter situations that had negative health impacts, promote 
healthy lifestyles, ensure homes were well maintained and provide 
and promote opportunities for active leisure and cultural activities. 
 
The Panel’s attention was drawn to the latest report of the Thematic 
Group, which contained its terms of reference, membership and 
current matters under consideration. Members discussed progress 
with the achievement of the Action Plan for the July – September 
2010 period and received an explanation as to why targets relating to 
the number of people in Huntingdonshire who quit smoking after 4 

2



weeks and the number of 15-24 year old persons screened or tested 
for Chlamydia had not been achieved. They also discussed the 
problems externally imposed targets presented for the Thematic 
Group. Having regard to the objective to prevent falls by older people, 
it was noted that data in this respect was currently being awaited from 
the PCT for inclusion within the Action Plan. 
 

80. CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTRES   
 

 (Councillor T V Rogers, Executive Councillor for Finance and 
Customer Services, was in attendance for consideration of this item). 
 
With the aid of a presentation by the Head of Customer Services and 
Customer Service Manager, the Panel were acquainted with 
proposed service changes to the Council’s Customer Service 
Centres. Members received details of the level of service currently 
offered together with the type and number of enquiries received per 
annum and proposed service reductions for each of the Centres. 
 
Members were advised that the Centres had been reviewed taking 
into account customer profiles at each locality and the level of local 
need. Given that the St Neots Customer Service Centre experienced 
a significant number of enquiries relating to benefits and housing 
enquiries, proposals for St Neots would not be as great as originally 
planned. The Council would continue to provide essential services at 
each location. 
 
Members expressed concern at the impact of the proposals on the 
voluntary organisations that currently utilised the existing premises 
and at the Council’s increased reliance on local libraries to deliver its 
services. The latter was considered in the context of the County 
Council’s review of library services which was expected to result in 
the closure of some facilities across the County; however, greater 
footfall in libraries through joint working with the District Council would 
increase the chances of their retention. Members were of the view 
that the option for service provision also should be investigated. 
 
Members noted that the proposals were designed to encourage 
customers to utilise alternative methods of obtaining services, 
particularly the Council’s Call Centre and website. The Panel 
questioned the training provided to Call Centre employees when 
dealing with housing and benefits enquiries. In response, it was 
reported that employees had access to the Council’s back office 
systems and could respond to most enquiries, but that those in 
relation to a specific matter would be referred to the relevant 
department within the Council.  
 
Other matters that were discussed included the terms of the building 
leases for each of the Centres and the option of engaging with 
Peterborough City Council to provide housing and benefits services. 
The latter would primarily involve the City Council verifying the identity 
of residents in the Yaxley area, which would then be sent 
electronically to the District Council. Comment was made that if the 
proposals were approved, the service changes should be effectively 
communicated and publicised to customers. 
 
In concluding their discussions, the Chairman reminded the Panel 

3



that the matter would be considered further at the February 2011 
meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Economic Well-Being) 
as part of the Budget and MTP. 
 

81. ONE LEISURE PERFORMANCE   
 

 (At this point during the meeting (9.00pm), Councillor Mrs P A Jordan 
left the meeting).  
 
(Councillor Mrs D C Reynolds, Executive Councillor for Leisure and 
Law, Property and Governance, was in attendance for consideration 
of this item). 
 
A presentation was delivered by the General Manager, One Leisure 
on the performance of One Leisure over the previous three years. In 
so doing, he drew attention to the level of investment made at each of 
the Centres together with the impact that this has had on the net 
outturn and the number of admissions for each Centre. 
 
Members were acquainted with the level of management and 
administration costs which were outside the control of the General 
Manager, One Leisure and noted details of issues facing the service 
and options that were currently being investigated with a view to 
achieving savings for the Council, which included staffing levels and 
pay. The Panel’s attention was drawn to the socio-economic factors 
affecting the financial performance of the Sawtry and Ramsey 
facilities and the likely decrease in income from local schools in the 
future. 
 
In response to a question by a Member concerning the feasibility of 
putting the Leisure Centres into a Trust and the impact of this in terms 
of reducing the level of recharges incurred by the Centres, the 
Director of Commerce and Technology responded by informing 
Members that the Centres would still incur overhead costs and that 
consideration would be given to this and a range of other options. 
 
The Panel discussed a number of matters including the practices 
employed by the private sector operators of similar facilities, the level 
of expenditure on employees, the possibility of reducing the Centres 
opening hours with a view to reducing costs and the value of the 
business and its assets. Having regard to expenditure on employees, 
comment was made that market rates for pay should be reflected at 
the Leisure Centres and that the current system did not seem to be 
appropriate for use at the Centres. 
 
Having concluded their discussions, Members were reminded that the 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Economic Well-Being) would give 
further consideration to the information presented on One Leisure at 
its meeting in January. 
 

82. STUDY: CONSULTATION PROCESSES   
 

 Members received an update on the outcome of an initial meeting of 
the Consultation Processes Working Group. Members noted that 
Councillor R J West had been appointed rapporteur for the Working 
Group. 
 

4



83. CAMBRIDGESHIRE ADULTS WELL-BEING AND HEALTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

 
 Councillor R J West reported that the Hinchingbrooke Hospital 

Working Group appointed by the Adults Well-Being and Health 
Scrutiny Committee had met with Circle, the franchisee appointed to 
take over the management of Hinchingbrooke Hospital to discuss 
their approach to running the Hospital. 
 

84. CAMBRIDGESHIRE SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

 
 Members’ attention was drawn to a meeting of the Cambridgeshire 

Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee held on 13th 
December 2010 which had been attended by the Scrutiny and Review 
Manager, Mr R Coxhead and Mrs M Nicholas. In so doing, it was 
reported that the Committee were considering whether to pursue rural 
crime as a topic for scrutiny. Initially, an invitation would be extended 
to all Cambridgeshire authorities to nominate a representative to join 
a Working Group to investigate the role and effectiveness of the Rural 
Crime Action Team. 
 

85. WORK PLAN STUDIES   
 

 The Panel received and noted a report by the Head of Democratic 
and Central Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute) 
containing details of studies currently being undertaken by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Panels. Following a query at the last meeting, 
and with the agreement of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Economic Well-Being), the Panel decided to transfer the study on the 
health implications of the night time economy to its work programme. 
In that light, the Scrutiny and Review Manager undertook to submit 
further background information on the topic to a future Panel meeting.  
 

86. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL WELL-BEING) - 
PROGRESS   

 
 The Panel received and noted a report by the Head of Democratic 

and Central Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute 
Book) which contained details of actions taken in response to recent 
discussions and decisions.  
 
The Scrutiny and Review Manager reported that he had circulated 
electronically to Members, details of a consultation undertaken by 
NHS Cambridgeshire on Improving Older People’s Mental Health 
Services in Huntingdonshire and Fenland. Members were 
encouraged to submit individual responses to the consultation to NHS 
Cambridgeshire. 
 

87. SCRUTINY   
 

 In scrutinising the 110th Edition of the Digest of Decisions, the Panel 
queried what arrangements would be in place to scrutinise the 
Greater Cambridge and Greater Peterborough Local Enterprise 
Partnership. 
 
With regard to the work currently being undertaken by the Overview 

5



and Scrutiny Panel (Environmental Well-Being) in respect of the 
development of a Tree Strategy for Huntingdonshire, comment was 
made on the loss of trees locally through development. In response, 
Councillor P G Mitchell reported that the Development Management 
Panel took existing trees into account when determining planning 
applications. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 

6



 

  
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

Prepared by Councillor I C Bates  
Date of Publication: 13 January 2011 
For Period: 1st February to 31 May 2011 

 

Membership of the Cabinet is as follows:- 
 

Councillor I C Bates  - Leader of the Council 4 Church End 
Hilton 
Huntingdon   PE28 9NJ 
 

Tel:  01480 830250          E-mail:  Ian.Bates@huntsdc.gov.uk 
Councillor L M Simpson  - Deputy Leader of the Council with Special  

  Responsibility for HQ/Accommodation 
45 Devoke Close 
Stukeley Meadows 
Huntingdon 
Cambs     PE29 6XE 
 

Tel:  01480 388946        E-mail:  Mike.Simpson@huntsdc.gov.uk 
Councillor K J Churchill - Executive Councillor for Resources 

   and Policy 
51 Gordon Road 
Little Paxton 
St Neots 
PE19 6NJ 
 
Tel:  01480 352040 E-mail:  Ken.Churchill@huntsdc.gov.uk 

Councillor D B Dew - Executive Councillor for Planning Strategy and  
  Transport 

4 Weir Road 
Hemingford Grey 
Huntingdon  
PE28 9EH 
 

Tel:  01480 469814        E-mail:  Douglas.Dew@huntsdc.gov.uk  
Councillor J A Gray - Executive Councillor for Environment and    

  Information Technology 
 

Shufflewick Cottage 
Station Row 
Tilbrook 
PE28 OJY 
 

Tel:  01480  861941      E-mail:  JG@novae.com 

A
genda Item

 3

7



 
Councillor C R Hyams - Executive Councillor for Operational 

  and Countryside Services 
22 Bluegate 
Godmanchester 
Huntingdon 
Cambs PE29 2EZ 
 

Tel:  01480 388968         E-mail:  Colin.Hyams@huntsdc.gov.uk  
Councillor A Hansard - Executive Councillor for Housing and 

  Public Health 
78 Potton Road 
Eynesbury 
St Neots 
PE19 2NN 
 

Tel:  01480 388942      E-mail:  Andrew.Hansard@huntsdc.gov.uk 
Councillor Mrs D C Reynolds - Executive Councillor for Leisure, Law, 

  Property and Governance 
17 Virginia Way 
St Ives 
PE27 6SQ 
 

Tel:  01480 388935   E-mail:  Deborah.Reynolds@huntsdc.gov.uk 
Councillor T V Rogers   - Executive Councillor for Finance and 

  Customer Services 
 

Honeysuckle Cottage 
34 Meadow Lane 
Earith 
Huntingdon     PE28 3QE 
 

Tel:  01487 840477          E-mail:  Terence.Rogers@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

Any person who wishes to make representations to the decision maker about a decision which is to be made may do so by contacting Mrs Helen Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer on 
01480 388008 or E-mail:   Helen.Taylor@huntsdc.gov.uk  not less than 14 days prior to the date when the decision is to be made. 
 

The documents available may be obtained by contacting the relevant officer shown in this plan who will be responsible for preparing the final report to be submitted to the decision maker on the 
matter in relation to which the decision is to be made.  Similarly any enquiries as to the subject or matter to be tabled for decision or on the availability of supporting information or documentation 
should be directed to the relevant officer. 
 

Roy Reeves 
Head of Administration 
 

Notes:- (i) Additions/significant changes from the previous Forward are annotated *** 
 (ii) For information about how representations about the above decisions may be made please see the Council’s Petitions Procedure at http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/NR/rdonlyres/3F6CFE28-
C5F0-4BA0-9BF2-76EBAE06C89D/0/Petitionsleaflet.pdf or telephone 01480 388006 

 

 

Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 

8



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 
 
Asset Management 
Plan - Annual Report 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Feb 2011 
 

 
Previous Cabinet 
Reports 
 

 
Keith Phillips, Estates and Property Manager 
Tel No. 01480 388260 or e-mail 
Keith.Phillips@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
Mrs D C 
Reynolds 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
One Leisure, St. Ives 
-  Proposal for 
Development 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Feb 2011 
 

 
None 
 

 
Simon Bell, General Manager, One Leisure 
Tel No. 01480 388049 or e-mail 
Simon.Bell@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
Mrs D C 
Reynolds 
 

 
Social Well-
Being 
 

 
Local Transport Plan 
(LTP3) 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Feb 2011 
 

 
Draft Local Transport 
Plan 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No 01480 388430 or e-mail 
Paul.Bland@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Endorse as Council 
policy  

 
D B Dew 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 
Open Space Strategy 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Feb 2011 
 

 
Open Space Strategy 
 

 
Mr Howard Thackray, Policy and Strategic 
Services Manager Tel No 01480 388035 or 
e-mail Howard.Thackray@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Planned with Town 
and Parish Councils  

 
C Hyams 
 

 
Social Well-
Being 
 

 
Budget and MTP 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Feb 2011 
 

 
Draft MTP previous 
year's budget report 
various annexes 
 

 
Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services 
Tel No. 01480 388103 or e-mail 
Steve.Couper@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Overview and 
Scrutiny  (Economic 
Well-Being)  

 
T V Rogers 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Treasury 
Management 
Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Feb 2011 
 

 
Previous year's 
strategy 
 

 
Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services 
Tel No. 01480 388103 or e-mail 
Steve.Couper@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Overview and 
Scrutiny (Economic 
Well-Being)   

 
T V Rogers 
 

 
Economic Well-
Being 
 

 
Payment of Recycling 
Credits*** 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Mar 2011 
 

 
None. 
 

 
Sonia  Hansen, Development and 
Community Manager Tel No. 01480 388630 
or e-mail Sonia.Hansen@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
C Hyams 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

9



Subject/Matter 
for Decision 

Decision/ 
recommendation 
to be made by 

Date 
decision to 
be taken 

Documents 
Available 

How relevant Officer 
can be contacted 

Consultation Relevant    
Executive 
Councillor 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel 
 
Home Improvement 
Agency Review - 
Future Delivery Model 
Consultation 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Mar 2011 
 

 
None 
 

 
Steve Plant, Head of Housing Services Tel 
No. 01480 388240 or e-mail 
Steve.Plant@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
  

 
A Hansard 
 

 
Social Well-
Being 
 

 
Contributions 
Community 
Infrastructure Levy 
Supplementary 
Planning Document 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
 

 
17 Mar 2011 
 

 
Local Investment 
Framework 
 

 
Paul Bland, Planning Service Manager 
(Policy) Tel No. 01480 388430 or e-mail 
Paul.Bland@huntsdc.gov.uk 
 

 
Endorse as Council 
policy  

 
D Dew 
 

 
Environmental 
Well-Being 
 

 

10



 
 
 
 
 

HUNTS FORUM OF VOLUNTARY ORGANISATIONS 

SUPPORT FOR VULNERABLE PEOPLE IN HUNTINGDONSHIRE 

Background 

Huntingdonshire is a large district with approximately 166,000 people, its towns, villages and 
countryside offer diverse and attractive environments in which to live and work.  It also benefits 
from an active voluntary sector with 1200 groups working on behalf of local residents. 
 
Huntingdonshire Sustainable Community Strategy sets out a shared vision for Huntingdonshire for 
2008 – 2028.  Sustainable communities are places where people want to live work and spend time, 
now and in the future.  They meet the diverse needs of existing and future residents, and provide a 
good quality of life.  The voluntary and community sector is a key provider of services that ensure a 
good quality of life. 
 
People at the heart of what we do  
 
The organisations potentially affected by the Draft Budget provide front line services to the 
vulnerable and marginalised within our society. 
 
Despite over fifteen years of legislation, vulnerable people still face barriers in society, which 
prevent them from having equal access to many of the opportunities that exist in everyday life.  
Inequality still exists in education, employment, levels of income and access to services. 
 
Voluntary organisations recognise that only by working together can we build strong, prosperous, 
vibrant and sustainable communities.  Voluntary and community organisations have worked and will 
continue to work with Huntingdonshire District Council and other public sector partners to support 
the vulnerable in our society and reduce costs where and when it can.  
 
The support we receive from Huntingdonshire District Council enables us to provide services to 
those most in need.  Attached are some care studies and examples to show the impact on 
individuals, organisations and communities in Huntingdonshire. 
 
Julie Farrow 
Chief Executive 
Hunts Forum 
www.huntsforum.org.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

of Voluntary Organisations 

Agenda Item 4

11



Case studies to show impact on individuals, organisations and communities 
Huntingdon Volunteer Centre 

(Huntingdon) 
1. Roger 
Roger came to us looking for a volunteering role to fill up his time: we found a placement which 
utilised his gifts at the Papworth Trust Centre for people with disabilities.  
 
Feedback from Monika – Pathways to Work administrator 
I thought you would like an update on Roger.  He has been absolutely brilliant with the Papworth 
Trust Centre. He used to volunteer a couple of days a week and helped with the music, song writing, 
and drama as well as with the Grand Challenge charity fundraising project.   
 
Feedback from Roger 
Thanks to Huntingdonshire Volunteer Centre: it was at their suggestion that I approached the 
Papworth Trust – a year ago now.  Whilst working with the disabled was not something I had 
considered (when I first contemplated volunteering) I soon realised how rewarding the experience 
was, in fact, so much so that a year after volunteering I have now joined the Trust as an ‘on the 
books’ employee.  The volunteering I did with the Trust through HVC made me realise how 
worthwhile it is as an activity, let alone the valuable addition it is to your CV in these difficult times. 
Volunteering opened a new door on a new career for me.    Roger 
 
The impact that volunteering had on Roger’s life is clear to see. He gained experience and developed 
an interest in working with the disabled, as well as finding the work rewarding. He then went on to 
gain paid employment directly through this volunteering activity. The impact on the Papworth Trust 
was also obvious as he gave his skills and time freely for over a year, which will have supported the 
staff and improved the quality of life for the service users.  
 
2. Huntingdonshire Society for the Blind 
The Huntingdonshire Society for the Blind is an independent charity which supports hundreds of 
people with sight impairment by running social clubs and outings, organising home visits, providing 
advice and aids like tapes and Braille services. It depends entirely on donations and fundraising to 
sustain its services. The society has over one hundred volunteers, over half of which have been 
placed via the Huntingdonshire Volunteer Centre. 
 
The impact that this organisation has on the lives of those people with sight impairment is 
immeasurable. It clearly relies on volunteers to help provide its services and to raise the necessary 
funds. These services would be halved if the Huntingdonshire Volunteer Centre did not refer 
volunteers to them. 
 
3.  Jill 
  “Last night I sat thinking and was unsure of coming to the Volunteer Centre. I was thinking maybe 
there would be nothing suitable for me or I wouldn’t fit in, but I am glad I came as Sandra was very 
welcoming and easy to get along with.  She soon put me at ease and quickly tuned into the sort of 
person I am and came up with things that really suited me as a person and my personality and 

12



hopefully if I am accepted by Hospice at Home there will be a lot of satisfaction in the work and that’s 
what is important to me.” 
 
Feedback from Hospice at Home 
“What a lovely lady you have sent us - she has just completed her training with us and is going to visit 
her first client next week. Thanks a million.” 
 
This is a very special volunteer opportunity as volunteers have to have empathy with the recipient 
and the family, maintaining an understanding nature of the situation at a difficult time for them.          
 
 (St Neots) 
1) Alex (aged 17) came to the Centre via Connections wanting to use his time fruitfully before 

starting college and to learn new skills.  He was interested in the Young Lives opportunities as 
well as helping in the Conservation Projects run by HDC at Sudbury Meadow. We set up 
interviews for him with both organisations. He called into the office the next day to tell us how 
well it had all gone and how good he felt about the interviews. 

 
2) I am writing following our meeting which took place on Thursday 6th July. I requested the 

meeting because I am currently working with a client who is very interested in doing some 
voluntary work and I have exhausted all of my avenues and therefore require further expert 
assistance. 
Both my client and I found the meeting very useful and informative.  The informal setting was 
appropriate to my client as he suffers from anxiety and would not have dealt well with a formal 
process. You assisted us to address options which we had not considered and also made contact 
with a local Nursing Home which has proved very productive indeed.  Since our meeting we have 
been to meet the Manager and are in the process of confirming regular dates and times for him 
to tend their extensive gardens.  The role is ideal for him and he is very much looking forward to 
starting once we have ironed out a few issues concerning transporting his equipment to and 
from which is all in hand. 
I would like to thank you for your assistance with this matter and very much look forward to 
working with you again if a similar situation should arise. 
Tenancy Support Worker – Luminus Group 

 
(St Ives) 
1) January 2010:  On my way down to the coffee shop from the office I saw a man looking at the 

Volunteering Notice board.  I went over to him and asked if he was interested in volunteering.  
He said that he was curious and wished to find out more about volunteering.  He was at a bit of 
a loss because he had to retire from an extremely busy job because of failing eye sight.  He was 
having to reassess what he would do with his life and felt that he needed to find a way of ‘being 
useful’.  We immediately made an appointment (14 January 2010) and after discussing many 
volunteering options he decided that he would like to become an Age UK visitor.   
21 July 2010:  Paul came in to tell me that he had been matched with a wonderful gentleman 
who is a retired engine driver.  He and Paul share an interest in trains and they can talk for 
hours.  Paul explained this experience has been beneficial for his own life too and he really looks 
forward to the weekly visits.  He was impressed that Age Concern managed to match him so 
well with a client and he would recommend this experience to anyone!   His enthusiasm was 
just wonderful to see and a real encouragement to us all. 

 

13



2) Jane came to the volunteer centre after a referral from her doctor because she was suffering 
from depression. She started helping in the office answering the phone and sorting out drives 
for a social car-scheme. Her confidence has grown so much while working in the office, that she 
is now off all medication and has been on a number of free training courses that the volunteer 
centre has arranged for her i.e. how to fill in job application forms, doing a new CV and 
computer courses. 

 
(Ramsey) 
1) J works for us as an office volunteer and has now become a” stand by helper” as she has found 

part time employment .She came to us last year having very recently lost her sister from Cancer. 
During our Christmas Coffee Morning she came over and said to me that the volunteering work 
and the new friends she had made whilst working with us had helped her through an extremely 
difficult time and she did not know how she would have coped without us.  

 
Case studies to show how we help vulnerable people 

 
One of our Ramsey drivers has received a lovely thank you card from one of his passengers who is in 
her early thirties and has been receiving treatment for eyesight problems at Addenbrookes. She said 
she does not know what she would have done without the help of the Volunteer car scheme as her 
appointments were early morning and she praised Cavan for his help, care and support at a very 
stressful time in her life.  
 
A St Neots client has been using our transport to take her to the surgery since 7th February 2008. She 
wrote in 2010 to say that her ulcers are now better and she no longer needs our transport.  She 
expressed her thanks for all the help and support she had received from both the drivers and the 
office helpers. 
 
A young St Ives volunteer, who suffers from social anxiety disorder, was extremely pleased that, with 
some assistance, he was able to volunteer for two hours with Operation Christmas Child in 
November.  He was delighted that he was able to do this and felt it was a significant step forward on 
his road to recovery. 
 
A new Huntingdon client is picked up every Saturday as well as once in the week from Hunters Down 
after visiting her husband and taken home to Sawtry. She is so grateful that she doesn’t have to be a 
burden to anyone asking for transport so often. 
 
Our Ramsey office had several phone calls from car scheme users who have been using us for 
hospital appointments .They all praised the drivers for their kindness and said that they do not know 
how they would have managed without us.  
 

Huntingdon Shop Mobility 
 

Offering a service that loans wheelchairs or motorised scooters to members of the public who are 
mobility impaired either permanent or temporarily so they can access the shops in and around 
Huntingdon.  Also provides over night hire and attends special events i.e. Wood Green, Heritage 
weekend and Christmas lights turn on.  
 

14



Natural High 
 

Natural High’s ‘Changing Places’ transition project (St Neots) aimed to enable vulnerable year 6 
pupils to make a successful transition from primary school to secondary school.  The project 
provided specific support to pupils over the summer holidays and during the first year at secondary 
school.  Thirty-seven young people were identified and referred onto the project.  All the young 
people said that they were happier about starting school through being on the project.  Feedback 
from parents has also been very positive: 
 
‘She seems more confident to talk to other children and try to make new friends.” 

 
“He is very keen to start school, has become more confident about attempting tasks, which he 
would have found difficult, generally he is less moody and much more talkative with us, his 
parents.” 
 
Changing Places is a rolling programme so the young people that attended are then trained as Young 
Leaders to work with the next new intake at their school. 
 

St Barnabas Learning Centre 
 

The Learning Centre and Church provide training and self development in the heart of Oxmoor.  
Working closely with partners to provide a variety of courses ‘free to the learner’ and open access to 
computers for members of the local community. 
 
Courses are available to support parents and children from Ready Steady Lunch to ensure parents 
understand about food and nutrition to Post Natal Support for new mums.  An increasing need is the 
support required by migrant workers.  The demand for this type of work has caused us to seek 
additional funding for a part-time Migrant Family Support Worker. 
 

Hunts Forum of Voluntary Organisations 
 

Providing support services to individual and voluntary and community groups across 
Huntingdonshire.   Managing on behalf of HDC the Maple Centre a hub of voluntary activity in the 
heart of Oxmoor. 
 
G came to volunteer at Hunts Forum twelve months ago, unemployed for some considerable time 
due to mental health problems.  G quickly became a member of the admin team and tried a variety 
of tasks, updating her skills on the way and attending the free courses identified by Hunts Forum as 
part of her development plan. 
 
G has now been offered a job and her last day of volunteering at Hunts Forum was 7th January 2011. 
‘I wanted to thank you for all your help over the last year and for the opportunity to work at Hunts 
Forum.  I have enjoyed it a lot and hope I have been of some help; I loved getting to know the staff 
and really like them all.  Your support helped me get my new job and I am looking forward to the new 
challenge’ 
 

Comments from voluntary organisations after receiving support from Hunts Forum 
 
CARESCO – Sawtry and district Care and Resource Organisation 
‘Your encouragement and enthusiasm has given us all hope when facing the daunting task of 
changing our organisation’s status and entering into a contract with the County Council.  It is 

15



reassuring to know that other organisations have gone before us and have managed to get through 
the process and survived!  Many thanks, Liz Coates 
 
St John’s Little Learners – pre-school nursery 
‘Thank you for the advice and support given to the management team – we were able to deal with 
the issues raised and have a positive outcome’ Julie Grinstead 
 
Fenstanton Village Hall 
‘We very much appreciate the advice and support provided by Hunts Forum in setting up policies to 
guide our operations. Many thanks, Jane Blunt 
 
 

16



 
 

 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of creating an Open Spaces Strategy is to give Huntingdonshire 

stakeholders an overarching vision of what we want our parks, open spaces 
and other public spaces to look like over the next 10 to 15 years and to reflect 
the changing needs of the environment and community 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Open space within Huntingdonshire plays an important role in relation to the 

health and well-being of all the district’s residents, providing places to meet, 
relax, exercise, play or learn about nature. Well maintained spaces that are 
regularly used can help to make a considerable contribution to the quality of 
life of residents and visitors. 

2.2 Strategic work on green space has been carried out by Cambridgeshire 
Horizons to update the Green Infrastructure Strategy (2006). A draft of the 
‘Green Vision’ was published for consultation from late January to March 
2010. This is being substantially revised as a result of comments received 
and consultation on a revised document will take place early in 2011. 
Huntingdonshire District council’s Open Space Strategy will complement work 
being done at the strategic level by providing local information and detailed 
action plans 

2.3 Huntingdonshire District Council has never formally developed an Open 
Space Strategy, and recognising this gap, has now developed a strategy that 
looks at the wide variety of open spaces found within the district with a view to 
meeting the requirements of both the documents mentioned above whilst at 
the same time supporting the various planning policies currently under 
development. 

 
3. SCOPE OF THE STRATEGY 
3.1 Based on current guidance and best practice, this strategy includes the 

assessment of the following types of open spaces 
• Informal Open Space to include parks and gardens, natural open 

space, amenity green spaces 
• Provision for Children & Young People 
• Outdoor Sports Facilities 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
(SOCIAL WELL-BEING) 
CABINET 

 
1ST FEBRUARY 2011 

 
17TH FEBRUARY 2011 

 
 

OPEN SPACE STRATEGY 
(Report by the Head of Operations) 

Agenda Item 5

17



• Allotments and Community Gardens 
• Green Corridors 
• Civic Spaces 
• Cemeteries and Churchyards 

 
3.2 The draft strategy was published for consultation between 26 October and 10 

December 2010. Comments were sought from Parish and Town Councils as 
well as a range of sporting and environmental interest groups. A number of 
amendments have been made to the strategy to reflect priorities of other 
organisations where they can contribute to change. Some new sites have 
also been added where additional information has been provided.  

 
4. CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 This strategy will assist in enabling the council to: 

• Develop an accurate and up-to-date audit of open space provision 
• Help provide a shared vision for the future of the districts open spaces 
• Help make the case for funding opportunities and planning obligations 
• Promote health benefits and quality of life improvements via the 

provision of high quality, accessible open spaces. 
• Seek to protect, identify and improve locally important open spaces 

 
 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5.1 Cabinet are asked to approve the Open Space strategy and supporting 

actions plans. 
 
  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
CABE Space guidance. 
Planning Policy Guidance 17, “Planning for Open Space Sport and Recreation 
 
Contact Officer: John Craig, Service Development Officer 
 �     01480 388638 
 

18



Open Space Strategy 
for Huntingdonshire
2011 - 2016

19



1. Introduction

 1.1 Background
 1.2 Vision of the Strategy
 1.3 Aims of the Strategy
 1.4 Scope

2. Context

 2.1 District Profile
 2.2 Community Benefits of Open Spaces  
 2.3 Policy Background 
  2.3.1 National Policy Context
  2.3.2 Regional Policy Context
  2.3.3 Local Policy Context

3. Consultation

 3.1 Community Engagement
  3.1.1 ‘District Wide’ Survey (2010)
  3.1.2 Tellus 4 Survey (2010)
  3.1.3 Sport England’s Active People Survey (2009) 
  3.1.4 Place Survey (2008)
  3.1.5 PPG 17 Open Space Strategy Household Survey (2006)
  3.1.6 PPG 17 Open Space Strategy School Information    
  Technology Survey (2006)
  3.1.7 Cambridgeshire Quality of Life Survey (2006)
  3.1.8 Summary

4. Audit of Provision

 4.1 Overview of Provision
 4.2 Distribution of Open Space
 4.3 Limitations of Using the “Primary Purpose” Classi"cation
 

1         
1  
2
3

4
6
7
7
8
9

11
11
11
11
11
12
12

13
13

14
16
17

Contents

20



5. Open Space Priorities in Huntingdonshire

 5.1 Developing a Priority Matrix
 5.2 Rationale behind the Priority Matrix Criteria
  5.2.1 Local Designation
  5.2.2 Existing Quality
  5.2.3 Community Involvement
  5.2.4 Sustainability
  5.2.5 Potential Improvements
  5.2.6 Site Usage
 5.3. Application of the Priority Matrix
  5.3.1 Background to the District’s Destination Sites 
  5.3.2 Priority Matrix Scores: Destination Sites    
  5.3.3 Wider Use of the Priority Matrix

6. Action Plan

 6.1 Operational Actions
 6.2 Strategic Actions
 6.3 Monitoring

List of Figures:

Figure 1: Map of Huntingdonshire

Figure 2: Policy overview

Figure 3: Priority Matrix

Appendices:

Appendix 1: Green Flag Award

Appendix 2: Local Policy Context

Appendix 3: Audit of Provision Results

Appendix 4: Priority Matrix Criteria

Appendix 5: Detailed Priority Matrix Scores for the Destination Sites
 

  

18
20
20
20
20
20
21
21
21
21
23
24

25
29
30

5

10

19

21



1

1. Introduction
1.1 Background

Open space within Huntingdonshire plays an important role in relation to the health and well-being 
of all the district’s residents, providing places to meet, relax, exercise, play or learn about nature.  
Well maintained spaces that are regularly used can help to make a considerable contribution to the 
quality of life of residents and visitors.  

Huntingdonshire District Council has never formally developed an Open Space Strategy, and 
recognising this gap, there is a need to develop a strategy that looks at the wide variety of open 
spaces found within the district.  

1.2 Vision of the Strategy

The purpose of this strategy is to provide an overview of open space provision in Huntingdonshire.   
Furthermore, establishing a clear framework and direction will not only benefit the council, but it 
will also help to promote the benefits of open space and raise awareness to the wider public.   In 
view of this, the over-arching vision for this strategy is:

“To protect and improve our environment: ensuring good quality parks and open spaces”

(Huntingdonshire District Council’s Corporate Plan, “Growing Success”)

22



2

1.3 Aims of the Strategy

Development of this strategy is seen as an important step as it will enable the council to:

Develop an accurate and up-to-date audit of open space provision.

The strategy will draw on council officer knowledge and existing studies to develop a comprehensive 
inventory of open space provision.

Help provide a shared vision for the future of the districts open spaces.

The strategy will help residents of the district understand the value of parks and open spaces, and understand 
its impact on wider corporate, strategic and community objectives of the council.  Open spaces have links to 
other council strategies (detailed further in section 2.3.3), and so this strategy is important in establishing a 
policy framework for provision, design and management of open space within Huntingdonshire.

Promote health benefits and quality of life improvements.

Open spaces have an important role in encouraging active lifestyles, helping to improve health and overall 
quality of life. It is recognised that sedentary lifestyles can contribute to increased health problems, with 
obesity a major concern within the United Kingdom.  The provision of high quality, accessible open spaces 
can in part help to address these concerns. 

Promote the biodiversity value of open space.

Open spaces are important as areas for nature conservation and biodiversity.  The development of this 
strategy will help to emphasise this important aspect.

Help make the case for funding opportunities and planning obligations.

A comprehensive and current audit of open space provision will help to provide a robust evidence base.  As well 
as proving the need and requirement for developer contributions towards open space provision and associated 
facility improvements (through section 106 agreements and the Community Infrastructure Levy tariff), the 
development of this Open Space Strategy is also seen as critical in order to allow Huntingdonshire District Council 
to maximise resources to support open space improvements through available external funding opportunities. 

Seek to protect, identify and improve locally important open spaces. 

The strategy introduces the concept of a matrix to help prioritise different types of open space provision; 
important for protecting and enhancing existing open spaces, and useful when seeking external funding.

Increase public awareness of the district’s open spaces and improve community engagement.

The provision of an integrated Open Space Strategy will help raise awareness of the different types of open 
spaces located in this district and allow residents to see the council’s future plans as detailed within the 
action plan of the strategy.  Through community engagement, the council will be able to promote the 
importance of open spaces and address key issues that may be affecting current usage.

23



3

1.4 Scope

Based on current guidance and best practice, this strategy includes the assessment of the following 
types of open spaces:

Main Category Sub-Category

Informal Open Space Parks and Gardens
Natural Open Space
Amenity Green Spaces

Provision for Children & Young People

Outdoor Sports Facilities Includes golf courses, tennis courts, bowling greens, 
sports pitches

Allotments and Community Gardens

Green Corridors1

Civic Spaces1

Cemeteries and Churchyards1

This typology is consistent with the council’s Planning Policy Guidance 17 (PPG 17) Open Space 
Assessment which was carried out in 2006.  Therefore, the council are able to utilise this existing 
audit of provision as the basis for this strategy.  Given that four years have passed since this work 
was carried out, council officers have updated site records where necessary.  

All publicly accessible sites have been considered within this strategy, irrespective of ownership.  
Any private sites that do not have agreed public access have been recorded on the council’s 
Geographical Information System but have not been included within the audit of provision. 

In terms of a size threshold, all open spaces above 0.2 hectares have been included, in line with the  
methodology carried out in the PPG 17 Assessment.   Some sites smaller than 0.2 hectares have also 
been included in the audit.  Examples include equipped play areas and sports facilities. In addition, 
no size threshold has been applied to civic spaces due to the small nature of these types of spaces, 
thereby ensuring that this classification has been captured as part of the audit process.

1 These additional categories were not included in the PPG 17 assessment but have been added given that these types of spaces are an important 

aspect of overall open space provision within Huntingdonshire.

24



4

2.1 District Profile

The district of Huntingdonshire covers an area of approximately 350 square miles and has a 
population of 165,800 (Office for National Statistics, mid 2009 population data).  This is anticipated 
to expand to 188,400 by 2021 and this has important implications when considering future open 
space requirements.  It is important to ensure that there is suitable access to high quality open 
spaces that meet the demands of an increased local population.

Approximately half of the district’s current population is located within four market towns: 
Huntingdon, St Neots, St Ives and Ramsey.  The remaining residents are distributed within key 
settlements and rural villages (a map of the district is shown overleaf in figure 1).

Much of the projected population growth is expected to occur around the St Neots area and this 
needs to be considered when assessing future open space needs.  Similarly, the rural nature of the 
district means that there are large areas of countryside within the district, with larger amounts of 
managed open space located within the more urban areas, which connect to, and provide access to 
the wider countryside.

Transport links within the district are good with roads such as the A1 and A14, which in turn link to 
the M1, M11, and M6 motorways.  This network is important when considering the accessibility of 
open space provision.  It should also be noted that 4% more households in the district have access 
to two or more cars, compared with the national average.  This again reflects the rural nature of the 
district and the need to travel by car. 

Huntingdonshire has a large “younger” population, and a high proportion of “30-44” year
olds.  Furthermore, there is an increasing elderly population and this profile shows that it is 
important that open spaces provide suitable leisure and recreation activities for these identified 
age groups.   

In 2008, the Huntingdonshire District Council Place Survey highlighted that 87% of people 
were satisfied with their local area and most have a good quality of life. Life expectancy in 
Huntingdonshire is also high compared to the national average, and general health and well-being 
is good as demonstrated by the 2001 census, which highlighted that 73% of people described their 
health as ‘good’, a percentage that is almost 5 points higher than the national average.

Despite these positive indicators, it is important to address the fact that some local communities 
experience higher levels of relative deprivation compared with the district as a whole or the region 
generally.  Huntingdon North ward has the lowest levels of both household income and educational 
attainment in the district and is in the 10% most deprived areas in Cambridgeshire.  Therefore, it is 
important to ensure that all communities have suitable access to open space provision.

2. Context

25



5

Figure 1: Map of Huntingdonshire 

26



6

2.2  Community Benefits of Open Spaces

Open spaces can help to provide a diverse range of social, economic and environmental benefits for 
local communities.  Key benefits include:

i. Open spaces help to provide opportunities for social interaction between people of different 
communities, encouraging social inclusion and community development.  They can become a focus for 
community activity, thereby helping to enhance local pride.

ii. Open space provides opportunities for people to get involved in creative and cultural activities by acting 
as a venue for events and activities.

iii. Open spaces vary in their nature and size and therefore offer diverse habitats for wildlife and plants.  
This gives people the chance to experience and learn about nature close to where they live.  Furthermore, 
people of all ages can volunteer and be involved in helping to manage and maintain open spaces.

iv. In addition to ecological diversity and biodiversity, well designed open spaces also support 
environmental sustainability and help to counter pollution. Strategic networks of green spaces, (green 
infrastructure), can provide a wide range of environmental benefits in both rural and urban areas including 
flood water storage, sustainable drainage, urban cooling and local access to shady outdoor space.

v. Good quality open space can help to contribute towards urban regeneration and  renewal projects by 
improving the image of the place and attracting investment.  Attractive parks and other public spaces 
create a pleasant and varied landscape.

vi. Open space provide a wealth of opportunities for outdoor play, which can help children and young 
people to stay healthy.  

vii. Open spaces can offer a range of sporting opportunities and physical activity for people of all ages, 
helping to contribute positively to mental and physical well-being.

 viii. Aside from physical health benefits, participation in play and recreation on open space has positive 
mental health benefits for children and young people.  The Big Lottery and Children’s Play Council 
Good Practice Guide cites work undertaken by The Mental Health Foundation, which suggests that the 
opportunities for risk taking in unsupervised play, (and to a lesser extent supervised play), helps children to 
build self-confidence.  Capacity for positive development may be limited if children and young people are 
denied these opportunities.

ix. Open spaces can provide diversionary activities for young people by providing safe places to play and 
interact, thereby helping to reduce anti-social behaviour.  

27



7

2.3 Policy Background 

2.3.1 National Policy Context

In view of the recognised benefits of open spaces, Central Government’s approach has developed 
significantly over the past decade, beginning with the Urban White Paper in 2000.  This emphasised 
the role that public open spaces can have in improving the attractiveness of urban areas and 
helping to promote a healthier lifestyle.  It is also emphasised the need for improvements in open 
space management and maintenance, and for thinking more creatively about open spaces.

The relationship between open space and planning was strengthened through the development 
of Planning Policy Guidance 17, “Planning for Open Space Sport and Recreation”.  This planning 
guidance, published in 2002, placed considerable emphasis on carrying out audits of provision 
to identify quantity, quality and accessibility of open spaces, and ensure that provision meet the 
needs of its local communities and visitors.  During 2010, consultation has been carried out for a 
new planning policy statement (PPS) on planning for the natural environment, green infrastructure, 
open space, sport, recreation and play, “Planning for a Natural and Healthy Environment”.

In addition to planning policy, a number of other headline reports have emphasised the 
importance of open space.  The Urban Green Space Taskforce produced a report called “Green 
Spaces, Better Places.”   This report contained 52 recommendations for achieving a better future for 
urban parks and green spaces.

“Living Places: Cleaner, Safer, Greener”, was published by ODPM in 2002.  This report recognised that 
safe, well-maintained and attractive public spaces have a critical role in creating pride in the places 
where people want to live which, in turn, is essential to building community cohesion and successful 
communities.   In view of this, the report suggests ways in which high quality public spaces can be 
achieved, with an emphasis on committed leadership, strong partnerships, community involvement, 
innovation, communication and sharing of best practice all cited as important factors.

More recently, CABE Space have produced a range of guidance to help local authorities in the 
design, management and maintenance of public spaces.  This organisation works with national, 
regional and local bodies to deliver well-designed and managed public spaces across England.   
Of particular relevance to the development of this strategy is the 2009 publication, “Open Space 
Strategies: What Local Authority Decision Makers Need to Know”.

Another change at the national level has been the emergence of the Green Flag Award.   This award 
scheme was initially launched in 1996 as a way of recognising and rewarding the best green spaces in 
the country.  Over the past fourteen years its status has risen and it is now viewed as the benchmark 
national standard for parks and green spaces in England and Wales, and involves an assessment 
of eight key criteria (see Appendix 1).   The Award is now run by the Green Flag Plus Partnership, a 
consortium comprising Keep Britain Tidy, British Trust for Conservation Volunteers and GreenSpace.

28



8

In addition to these specific publications, policy at the national level is also being reviewed by 
the new coalition Government, which has introduced the notion of the ‘Big Society’ and the new 
‘Localism Bill’.   With regard to green space this will place a focus on empowering communities, 
redistributing power to local communities and encouraging people to volunteer.  

2.3.2 Regional Policy:

In addition to national policy, regional policies are also important and influence open space 
management in Huntingdonshire.   The Cambridgeshire Horizons Sub Region Green Infrastructure 
Strategy was launched in 2006, and represented a joint approach between local authorities, 
government agencies and NGO’s within the sub-region. The strategy assessed the current provision 
of green infrastructure at the sub-regional scale and made recommendations for the provision of 
new and enhanced green infrastructure, over the next 20 years, taking account of key factors such 
as projected population growth.  

The overall vision for the Green Infrastructure Strategy is to create a comprehensive and sustainable 
network of green corridors and sites that:

Enhance the diversity of landscape character.

Connect and enriches biodiversity habitats.

Extend access and recreation opportunities for the benefit of the environment as well as current 
and future communities in the Cambridge Sub-Region.

A review and update of the Green Infrastructure Strategy began in January 2010, recognising that 
there is a need to undertake periodic reviews to reflect new opportunities and the evolving green 
infrastructure agenda.  This new strategy will seek to plan green infrastructure to 2031 and beyond.

This revised document acknowledges that this regional Green Infrastructure Strategy, whilst 
applicable at the district planning scale, will require further refinement and resolution at the site 
scale to ensure that opportunities are fully realised and that local issues are given full consideration.

29



9

2.3.3 Local Policy

As well as national and regional policy, it is imperative that this strategy considers how to deliver 
the vision and aims outlined within section 1, in light of local council policy and priorities.  With this 
in mind, a number of key documents are important.  

At the strategic level, the council’s corporate plan, “Growing Success”, and the Huntingdonshire 
Local Strategic Partnership Sustainable Community Strategy are both important and impact on the 
quality of life of the district’s residents.

Similarly, the Local Development Framework is another key area of work that will address open 
space and sport facility requirements of new and expanding communities in Huntingdonshire.  
As part of this, the Core Strategy (2009), provides policy guidance for areas of strategic green 
infrastructure enhancement and specifies requirements for contributors to open space and 
strategic green infrastructure.

In addition, a range of other service-led strategies and reports all have an influence on open space 
provision, including the council’s Environment Strategy, Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire, Play 
Strategy and Sports Facilities Strategy.  

A detailed overview of all these documents is provided within Appendix 2.  

The link between local, regional and national policies is summarised overleaf.

      

30



10

REGIONAL POLICY

i. Cambridgeshire 
 Second Edition

Green Infrastructure 
Strategy (2010)

NATIONAL POLICY

i. Planning Policy 
Statement: “Planning for 
a Natural & Healthy 
Environment” 
(Consultation Draft
2010)

ii. “Nature Nearby - 
Accessible Natural 
Greenspace Guidance”
Natural England (2010)

iii. “Open Space 
Strategies - Best Practice 
Guidance”
CABE Space (2009)

iv. “Living Places - 
Cleaner, Greener, Safer”
ODPM (2002)

v. “Green Spaces, 
Better Places”
Urban Green Space Task 
Force (2002)

vi. “Planning for Open 
Space, Sport and 
Recreation”
PPG 17 (2002)

vii. “Our Towns and 
Cities: The Future - 
Delivering an Urban 
Renaissance”
Government White 
Paper (2000)

LOCAL POLICY

i. Huntingdonshire
Local Development

Framework

ii. Huntingdonshire 
Local Strategic 

Partnership 
Community Strategy

iii. Huntingdonshire
Corporate Plan 

“Growing Success”

iv. Huntingdonshire
District Council
Sports Facilities 
Strategy (2009)

v. Huntingdonshire 
Local Investment 

Framework 
(2009)

vi. Huntingdonshire
District Council

Environment Strategy 
(2008)

vii. Huntingdonshire 
District Council 

Play Strategy (2007)

viii. Cultural Strategy for 
Huntingdonshire (2007)

ix. PPG 17 Open Space 
Assessment (2006)

Open Space 
Strategy

Figure 2: Policy overview

31



11

3. Consultation

3.1 Community Engagement

It is important that future policy decisions and action plans developed as part of this strategy 
are based on an understanding of the needs and aspirations of key stakeholders, including local 
communities and open space visitors.   A range of consultation has been carried out that either 
directly or indirectly impacts upon open spaces within Huntingdonshire, demonstrating a clear 
commitment to be as far reaching as possible.  These can be summarised as follows:

3.1.1 ‘District Wide’ Survey (2010)

This consultation was included within the council magazine “District Wide” .  This consultation gave 
every household the opportunity to tell the council their views on a range of issues.  When asked 
how satisfied are you with the local environment, 77.1% were either ‘fairly satisfied’ or ‘very satisfied’.

3.1.2 Tellus 4 Survey (2010)

This survey reported the findings of Local Authorities for the five National Indicators supported by 
the Tellus4 survey.

Included as one of these indicators is NI 110 - “More participation in positive activities”.   For the 
East of England region, the county of Cambridgeshire had the highest level of young peoples 
participation in positive activities (in excess of 80%) based on the Tellus 4 Survey.  It should be 
noted that whilst these responses were only from Year 10 pupils, it does give a positive trend that 
there are suitable play and recreation opportunities available for children and young people across 
the county.

3.1.3 Sport England’s Active People Survey (2009) 

Sport England’s national annual survey was carried out for a third time covering the period October 
2008 to October 2009.  

One of the headline questions within this survey relates to a key type of open space included within 
this strategy; levels of satisfaction with local sports facilities.  For Huntingdonshire District Council, 
76.9 % of adults were ‘very’ or ‘fairly’ satisfied with sports provision in their local area (including 
indoor facilities).

3.1.4 Place Survey (2008)

This survey is a statutory exercise that Central Government has specified must be undertaken 
by Local Authorities.  It is designed to capture local people’s views, experiences and perceptions 
so that any proposed solutions for an area reflect local views and preferences.  The survey is 
considered to be a key tool to track people’s changing perceptions as a way of determining 
whether interventions made in the district result in a positive outcome for local people.

32



12

Included within this survey are several National Indicators linked to open spaces and local 
environments.  When asked to assess overall satisfaction with their local area, 87.8% of respondents 
were satisfied.  Furthermore, 71% of people agreed that their public services are working to make 
the area ‘cleaner and greener’.

When asked to assess specific aspects of district life, 73% of people were either ‘very satisfied’ or 
‘satisfied’ with parks and open spaces, whilst 66% of people were ‘very satisfied’ or ‘satisfied’ with 
keeping public land clear of litter and refuse.  

With regards frequency of use, 68% of people had visited parks and open spaces at least once a 
month, highlighting the important role they play for local communities.

When asked to identify the five aspects most in need of improvement in Huntingdonshire, activities 
for teenagers was identified as the highest priority.  The top five aspects identified were:

Activities for teenagers (52% of respondents highlighted this as one of their five aspects that most 
need improving)

Road and pavement repairs (38%)

Public transport (36%)

Traffic congestion (36%)

Shopping facilities (26%)

3.1.5 PPG 17 Open Space Strategy Household Survey (2006)

This household survey was distributed to 5000 randomly selected households within the district.     
A total 565 postal surveys were returned, representing an 11% return rate.  Key issues included:

Overall, residents indicated that the quantity of open spaces within Huntingdonshire was “about 
right”.

The most frequently visited open space include green corridors, natural and semi natural areas 
and parks.

Natural areas were perceived to be the highest quality open space in the district, with over 50% of 
respondents indicating that they were of good quality.

3.1.6 PPG 17 Open Space Strategy School Information Technology Survey (2006)

All schools in the district were invited to take part in an on-line questionnaire relating to open 
spaces.  In total, 176 responses were received, ranging from 6 to 18 year olds.  The questionnaire 
explored attitudes to open space and sports provision.  

33



13

Findings included:

The main reasons that children visit open spaces were to meet friends, and to have a kick-about / 
informal play.

The least liked aspects of open spaces included limited play value of existing play facilities.   
Location was also cited as an important factor, with some open spaces being located too far away 
from areas of housing.

When asked how open spaces could be improved, 36% stated that there should be more interesting play 
equipment, 18% wanted multi-use games areas/kick about areas, whilst 17% wanted skate or BMX parks.

3.1.7 Cambridgeshire Quality of Life Survey (2006)

This 2006 survey was commissioned to assess how attitudes vary across Cambridgeshire.  Headline 
findings included:

In line with the regional findings, 80% of the district’s residents were ‘very ‘ or ‘fairly’ satisfied with 
their neighbourhood as a place to live.

Compared to other factors included in the questionnaire, the quality and amount of natural 
environment within the district was highly regarded by residents of Huntingdonshire, particularly 
when compared to other district’s in the county.

When asked to assess how easy it is to get to a public open space, 78% of Huntingdonshire 
residents stated that it was ‘very’ or ‘fairly’ easy – compared to county wide response of 79%.

3.1.8 Summary

There is a high level of satisfaction with open spaces across the district, particularly natural and semi-
natural areas.  It is important to maintain this perception, and where possible, increase satisfaction levels.

Encouragingly, residents of the district appear to visit open spaces on a regular basis, but again, 
this trend needs to be maintained.  With regard to specific improvements, work carried out as 
part of the PPG 17 Audit highlighted that there is scope for improvements to local play facilities, 
emphasised by the Place Survey findings which identified the priority of providing suitable 
activities for teenagers.  However, countering this is the recent Tellus 4 Survey, which showed 
that Cambridgeshire is one of the highest ranked counties with regards participation in positive 
activities for young people.  Therefore, any future improvements must be based on detailed 
consultation to ensure the needs and expectations of local communities are met.   

It is worth highlighting that the consultation discussed in sections 3.1.1 to 3.1.7 all examine open 
spaces in their broadest context without gauging views on a site by site basis.   It is recognised that 
there is a need to look at the issues impacting upon individual sites, and this is explored further 
within section 5, where the concept of a priority matrix is introduced.

34



14

4. Audit of Provision

4.1 Overview of Provision

The audit has identi"ed a total of 612 open spaces located across the district.  

Classifying open space is di#cult due to the multi-functionality of open spaces.  Each open space 
is therefore classi"ed based on its “primary purpose”, as recommended in PPG 17, thereby ensuring 
that each site is counted only once in the audit.  By using the word ‘primary,’ this infers that open 
spaces may have secondary purposes.

A full site inventory is displayed in Appendix 3 (broken down by parish), with the table below 
providing a summary based on open space typology.

Main Category Sub-Category Number 
of sites

Total Area (m2) -
based on 

“primary purpose” 
classi"cation

% of Total Open 
Space

Informal Parks and Gardens 22 1,947,411 4.5%
Natural Open Space 78 28,942,532 67.5%
Amenity Green Space 143 1,149,156 2.7%

Provision for Children and Young People 114 754,080 1.8%
Outdoor Sports Facilities 110 8,890,090 20.7%
Allotments & Community Gardens 38 592,023 1.4%
Green Corridors 14 147,958 0.3%
Civic Spaces 7 7,056 0.02%
Cemeteries and Churchyards 86 477,563 1.1%
TOTAL 612 42,907,869 100%

This shows that there is in excess of 42 million m2 of open space in Huntingdonshire which equates 
to over 4200 hectares.  

Natural open space has the highest quantity of provision, accounting for two thirds of the district 
total.  This proportion is heavily in$uenced by the size of Grafham Water (Grafham), a site that on its 
own accounts for over 8 million m2 of open space.  Other natural open spaces which are notable for 
their large size are Woodwalton Fen (Woodwalton), Monks Wood & The Odd Quarter (Sawtry) and 
Holme Fen (Holme); all of which are in excess of 1.5 million m2 in area.

35



15

Following on from natural open space, the next highest proportion is outdoor sports facilities, 
which accounts for 21% of the overall provision, based on the primary purpose classi"cation 
system.  The largest outdoor sports facility is Abbotsley Hotel Golf and Country Club (Abbotsley), 
which is 886,859 m2  in size.   The quantity of outdoor sport provision is heavily in$uenced by 
the number of golf courses in the district.  The following are a list of golf clubs located within 
Huntingdonshire:

Abbotsley Hotel, Golf and Country Club

Brampton Park Golf Club

Elton Furze Golf Club

Hemingford Abbots Golf Club

Lakeside Lodge Golf Centre

Old Nene Golf and Country Club

Ramsey Golf and Bowls Club

St Ives Golf Club

St Neots Golf Club

Stilton Oaks Golf Club

The combined area for these ten open spaces is 4,923,291 m2, equating to slightly over 50% of the 
total outdoor sports provision in Huntingdonshire, and shows that  golf is heavily catered for in the 
district.

Although amenity green space represents less than 3% of the districts open space, it has the 
highest number of sites; 143.  A similar picture emerges when looking at provision for children 
and young people.  Although this type of provision represents only 1.8% of the total open space in 
Huntingdonshire, it has the second highest number of sites; 114.   

36



16

4.2 Distribution of Open Space

Section 2.1 identified that approximately half of the district’s current population is located within 
Huntingdon, Ramsey, St Ives and St Neots.  The table below summarises the quantity of open space 
provision in each of these parishes.

Main Category Sub-Category Parish
Huntingdon
(Total Area - m2)

Ramsey
(Total Area - m2)

St Ives
(Total Area - m2)

St Neots
(Total Area - m2)

Informal Parks and Gardens 824,043 26,727 94,207 830,500
Natural Open Space 457,788 54,536 163,514 927,090
Amenity Green Space 311,461 25,001 85,388 204,987

Provision for Children and Young People 137,459 31,727 72,737 109,668
Outdoor Sports Facilities 497,567 544,710 495,767 846,374
Allotments & Community Gardens 52,079 28,526 54,839 79,709
Green Corridors 60,383 0 34,512 29,620
Civic Spaces 4,818 0 1,085 1,154
Cemeteries and Churchyards 31,051 58,429 27,617 43,700

Total provision  (m2) 2,376,649 769,656 1,029,666 3,072,804
Amount of open space per parish 
resident (m2)

108 90 63 106

Proportion of total open space in 
district (%)

5.5 1.8 2.4 7.2

This shows that St Neots has the highest quantity of open space , followed by Huntingdon.  It 
also emphasises that whilst three of the four settlements have a range of open space provision, in 
contrast, Ramsey has no green corridors or civic spaces.  Open space in Ramsey is dominated by 
outdoor sports provision, which accounts for 71% of all open space in this parish.  Although Ramsey 
has the lowest absolute amount of open space, it has a higher amount per resident than St Ives.

17% of the district’s open space is located within these four main parishes.  This shows that there 
is a high quantity of open space in smaller, more rural settlements and parishes.  Notable parishes 
include Grafham, which contains 19% of all of the districts open space (heavily influenced by the 
location of Grafham Water -  an area of open space which consists mainly of a large single body of 
water), Brampton (10%), Holme (5%), Sawtry (6%), Little Paxton (5%).2 

2 Some open spaces span more than one parish.  Where this occurs, the open space has been allocated to the parish in which they are predominantly 

located.

37



17

4.3 Limitations of Using the “Primary Purpose” Classi"cation

On a cautionary note, one limitation of using PPG 17’s primary purpose classi"cation system is that 
the absolute quantity of some open space types may be under-recorded. This is due to the fact that 
open space areas have been calculated and recorded against the primary purpose classi"cation.  
Therefore, some sites which are listed as parks and gardens also contain sports pitches, provision for 
children and young people, amenity green space and natural open space.  The area of land taken 
up by these di*erent aspects of the site will not have been recorded as the site area will have been 
allocated solely to parks and gardens.

Therefore, it should be recognised that the audit of provision provides a comprehensive overview 
of provision in Huntingdonshire and identi"es all known open space in the district.  However, when 
looking to assess whether there is a surplus or de"cit of provision for speci"c open space types, 
it is important to recognise the multi-functionality of open spaces and carry out a more detailed, 
localised assessment.

38



18

5. Open Space Priorities in Huntingdonshire

5.1 Developing a Priority Matrix

The audit of provision provides a comprehensive overview of open space in Huntingdonshire.  
One of the aims of this strategy detailed in section 1.2 is to “seek to protect and identify locally 
important open spaces”.   Analysis of the audit data alone does not provide this type of information 
and so it was decided that a means of ranking different open spaces was required. 

One possible way of  identifying locally important open spaces is to identify those sites that have 
important statutory designations associated with them, a case-in-point being Sites of Special 
Scientific Interest (SSSI).  This designation helps to provide legal protection to the best sites for 
wildlife and geology in England.  Natural England now has the responsibility for identifying and 
protecting the SSSIs in England under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, and it should be 
noted that there are SSSI’s located in this district, such as Paxton Pits Nature Reserve. 

Adopting this method would appear to be too simplistic.  For instance, a small area of amenity 
greenspace located within a residential area would not be identified as a SSSI.  However, to that 
local community, such a space may have real significance and importance which cannot be 
evaluated by simply looking at statutory designations.  

Therefore, an alternative approach has been adopted, following the same principles applied within 
another Huntingdonshire District Council strategy,  “Sports Facilities Strategy for Huntingdonshire”.   
When looking to identify the local priorities for future sports and leisure projects, a hierarchy was 
established by assessing schemes against a set of three factors to produce an overall priority score.

Applying a similar concept here, a prioritisation matrix has been developed as a tool for ranking the 
districts open space provision.   The matrix consists of six factors, which are displayed over in figure 3.

39



19

Figure 3: Priority Matrix

All six factors are sub-divided into four criteria with marks ranging from 1 to 4.   (A full breakdown of 
the six factors and their associated criteria is displayed in Appendix 4).

To illustrate, for the factor “Community Involvement”, the four criteria are as follows:  

Matrix Score of 4: Friends of Group or equivalent community involvement actively involved in the 
management and development of the site.

Matrix Score of 3:  Occasional community involvement at site, including community events and / 
or similar activities.

Matrix Score of 2:  No current community activity but scope for future community involvement at 
the site.

Matrix Score of 1: No current community involvement in the management and development of 
the site.  Unlikely to be any involvement in the future.

Local Designation
Regional, destination, 

neighbourhood or 
local site. 

Existing Quality
Determined by quality 

assessments 

Community Involvement
Identifying the level of 

involvement e.g. Friends group, 
community events, etc

Sustainability
Identifying the methods used 

in maintaining the site and 
linking this to best practice.   

Site Usage
The level of current use, and the 
variety of leisure and recreation 

opportunities available

Potential for Improvement
identifying whether there are 
any planned improvements, 
or scope for improvements 

Open Space Priority

40



20

Therefore, for each of the districts open spaces, the most appropriate description was selected, and 
the corresponding matrix score recorded.  This process was repeated for all six of the factors shown 
in figure 3.  

Using this approach, the maximum score possible for any given open space is twenty four.

5.2 Rationale behind the Prioritisation Matrix

The six factors that have been selected are based on best practice, including the national 
benchmark Green Flag Award.  

Six factors were deemed to be sufficient; the idea was to ensure that the matrix could be easily 
applied and at the same time, easily understood.  The inclusion of additional factors may have 
complicated both of these objectives.  Individual reasoning behind the selection of each of the 
factors is now explored further.

5.2.1 Local Designation

The classifications used as part of the PPG 17 study identify the type of open space but makes no 
judgement as to their local significance to Huntingdonshire.  Therefore, it is important to provide 
this context by adding a further classification relating to whether an open space is a regional, 
destination, neighbourhood or  a local site.

5.2.2 Existing Quality

The quality of an open space has an impact on site usage.  For instance, a poor quality site may 
become neglected by users.   Therefore, quality assessments carried out as part of the 2006 PPG 17 
audit have been used as the basis for establishing site quality. 

5.2.3 Community Involvement

This is one of the headline assessment criteria of the national Green Flag Award.  Community 
involvement is important as it encourages a sense of pride in local spaces and so it is important that  
the level of community involvement is factored into the overall site priority score.

5.2.4 Sustainability

Another of the headline Green Flag award criteria is sustainability, and this should be recognised as 
a distinct factor.  Methods used in maintaining the site and its facilities should be environmentally 
sound, relying on best practices available according to current knowledge. 

41



21

5.2.5 Potential Improvements

It is important to identify whether there are any planned improvements, or scope for further 
improvements to any of the district’s open spaces to ensure that this is reflected in the matrix score.

5.2.6 Site Usage

One way of assessing the value of an open space is to assess the number of visitors a site receives.  
At present, the council has a lack of quantitative data available on this area, and so with this in 
mind,  officers have had to make value judgements relating to site usage.

5.3. Application of the Priority Matrix 

The priority matrix has been applied to all of the district’s ‘destination’ sites.  All of the 612 
sites identified in the audit have been assigned a level of local importance using the following 
definitions:

Local

Neighbourhood

Destination

Regional

These designations have been awarded to reflect the value and significance of each individual open 
space, both to its surrounding community and the wider catchment area.  No sites in the district 
were classed as being regionally significant.  However, a total of 22 sites have been identified as 
“destination” sites.  

5.3.1 Background to the district’s “Destination Sites”

Huntingdonshire’s destination open spaces offer a wide range of recreation and leisure 
opportunities.   These sites are listed on page 23, and it is now appropriate to examine some 
of these sites in more detail to understand why they are important to the area.  The districts 
destination sites include:

Riverside Park, Hill Rise Park and Priory Park - These council maintained formal park landscapes 
provide a variety of play and recreation opportunities, as well as more relaxing leisure 
opportunities.   They are also important as they host a variety of public events.

Grafham Water - An extensive reservoir situated approximately seven kilometres south-west of 
Huntingdon.  The reservoir and marginal land support a significant variety of breeding wetland birds, 
whilst the woods and grassland provide food and shelter for summer birds as well as providing further 
habitat for flora and fauna.  In addition to biodiversity, Grafham Water Centre provides a range of 
water sports and activity training, including sailing, windsurfing and powerboating.

42



22

Hinchingbrooke Country Park -  A site consisting of mature woodland, grassy meadows and 
wetland habitat, supporting a variety of wildlife including all three species of British woodpecker.  
Many of the footpaths located across the site are hard surfaced, and the site supports a range of 
events and activities for people of all ages.

Paxton Pits Nature Reserve - This Site of Special Scientific Interest includes meadows, woodland 
and scrub habitat, nestling on the banks of the River Great Ouse.  It is an important birdwatching 
site, and also hosts a range of insects, from 26 species of butterfly to 148 species of spider. There are 
two guided trails, the Meadow Trail and the Heron Trail, as well as additional footpaths around the 
reserve. 

Hinchingbrooke School - A specialist sports college with a vast array of outdoor sports facilities 
including grass pitches, tennis courts and a full size 3rd generation synthetic turf pitch (one of only 
two in the district).

Kimbolton School - A public school with a wide range of high quality outdoor sports facilities 
including two full size synthetic turf pitches and large amounts of grass pitches and tennis courts.

Golf courses - As identified in the audit, the district has a significant number of high quality golf 
facilities.  All of the destination sites have at least one 18 hole golf course, whilst a few have two.  
The reputation of these facilities is such that people do travel significant distances to play at these 
golf courses. 

The prioritisation matrix has been applied to each of the district’s destination open spaces in order 
to rank these sites into priority order.   A summary of the matrix scores is shown overleaf, with a full 
breakdown of scores provided in Appendix 5.

43



23

5.3.2 Priority Matrix Scores: Destination Sites

Site Location Ownership Classi"cation Matrix 
Score

Paxton Pits Little Paxton Huntingdonshire  
District Council

Natural Open Space 22

Hinchingbrooke Country 
Park

Huntingdon Cambridgeshire 
County Council

Parks and Gardens 22

Grafham Water Grafham Private Natural Open Space 22
Priory Park St Neots Huntingdonshire  

District Council
Parks and Gardens 21

Riverside Park Huntingdon Huntingdonshire  
District Council

Parks and Gardens 19

Hill Rise Park St Ives Huntingdonshire  
District Council

Parks and Gardens 19

Riverside Park- Hunters 
Down

Huntingdon Huntingdonshire  
District Council

Parks and Gardens 19

Godmanchester Town Park Godmanchester Parish Council Parks and Gardens 18
One Leisure St Ives 
(outdoor)

St Ives Huntingdonshire  
District Council

Outdoor Sports Facilities 18

Regatta Meadows St Neots Huntingdonshire  
District Council

Parks and Gardens 18

Riverside Park St Neots Huntingdonshire  
District Council

Parks and Gardens 18

Hinchingbrooke School Huntingdon Cambridgeshire 
County Council

Outdoor Sports Facilities 18

Needingworth Quarry Bluntisham Unknown Natural Open Space 17
Church Lane Hartford Huntingdonshire  

District Council
Parks and Gardens 16

Lakeside Lodge Golf 
Centre

Pidley Private Outdoor Sports Facilities 16

Kimbolton School Kimbolton Cambridgeshire 
County Council

Outdoor Sports Facilities 16

One Leisure St Neots St Neots Cambridgeshire 
County Council

Outdoor Sports Facilities 15

St Neots Golf Club St Neots Private Outdoor Sports Facilities 15
Brampton Park Golf Club Brampton Private Outdoor Sports Facilities 15
St Ives Golf Club St Ives Private Outdoor Sports Facilities 15
Abbotsley Hotel, Golf 
and Country Club

Abbotsley Private Outdoor Sports Facilities 15

Elton Furze Golf Club Haddon Private Outdoor Sports Facilities 13

44



24

By applying the prioritisation matrix, Hinchingbrooke Country Park, Paxton Pits and Grafham Water 
are identified as the highest priority destination sites in the district, closely followed by a number 
of other parks and natural open spaces.  Lowest priority destination sites include the six privately 
owned golf clubs.  The value of this information is that it can now be used to inform decisions 
concerning the protection of specific open spaces and prioritise future investment.

5.3.3 Wider Use of the Priority Matrix

Use of the prioritisation matrix will be extended to all open space within Huntingdonshire over 
the life time of this strategy.   The audit of provision identified that there are currently a few issues 
preventing completion of the assessment process for a large proportion of sites.  To illustrate, there 
is a lack of quality assessment scores for a significant number of sites.  Some sites were not assessed 
as part of the initial PPG 17 audit carried out in 2006, whilst other newly adopted open spaces also 
require quality assessments being carried out.  

Other issues include trying to assess sustainability for those sites that are not maintained by 
Huntingdonshire District Council.  This requires contacting other providers, including Parish 
Councils, and identifying what environmental policies are in place.   It is worth considering that the 
audit of provision has identified a total of 612 sites, with only 19 % currently identified as being 
owned by Huntingdonshire District Council.  Therefore, the council must work with other providers 
to help address these gaps in knowledge.

The matrix process will be completed for all other open spaces over the coming 2 years, as outlined 
within the five year action plan in section 6.   

45



25

6. Action Plan

A five year action plan has been developed to help ensure a co-ordinated approach to the long-
term management of the district’s open space.  It is split into two parts covering both operational 
and strategic actions.   

The priorities outlined in the action plan are subject to change during the life span of the strategy.  
This is in recognition that the current economic climate and changes to policy introduced at the 
national level may alter the capacity to deliver specific actions.

6.1 Operational Actions:

Action Priority Lead Timescale Measure
Complete quality 
assessments for all open 
spaces identi"ed within this  
strategy

High Operations,
Countryside Services

2010-2012 Date of completion

Complete the priority 
matrix for all local and 
neighbourhood open 
spaces

High Operations, 
Countryside Services, 
Sport & Active 
Lifestyles

2010-2012 Date of completion

Undertake an annual 
review of the audit of open 
space provision and update  
relevant changes, including 
maintaining accurate GIS 
records

High Operations, 
Countryside Services

2010-2015 Date of completion 
and accuracy of 
records

Develop a horticultural and 
countryside skills training 
programme for all abilities 
based at the Community 
Nursery, Godmanchester

High Countryside Services On-going Numbers of people 
undertaking training

Design long-term visitor 
facilities for the Great Fen 
Project and implement 
temporary visitor facilities

High Great Fen Partners 2012 Useable visitor 
facilities

Endeavour to maintain 
and manage all council 
maintained open space 
according to the principles 
of the national Green Flag 
Award

High Countryside Services,
Operations

On-going Ratio of compliments 
to complaints

Develop the income 
generation potential of the 
countryside service

High Countryside Services On-going Amount of additional 
income raised

46



26

Action Priority Lead Timescale Measure
Provide enhanced 
educational access to all users 
through the new education 
centre at Little Paxton

High Wildlife Trust,
HDC

On-going Number of education 
groups using centre

Support the existing 
volunteer network by 
providing appropriate 
training e.g. health and 
safety 

High Countryside Services On-going Numbers of 
volunteers trained

Seek to minimise 
occurrences of anti-social 
behavior through updating 
and improving open space 
by-laws and rules

High Operations On-going Incidents of anti-
social behaviour

Ensure that adapting to 
climate change is a core 
element of existing and 
future site management 
plans

High Operations, 
Countryside Services

On-going All site management 
plans include a 
section on adaptation 
to climate change

Update the council’s Play 
Strategy 

High Policy, 
Community,
Operations, 
Planning

2010-2011 Production of revised 
strategy

Promote the availability 
of web forms on the 
HDC website as a way of 
enabling open space users 
to provide both positive 
and negative feedback 
following visits to local 
open spaces

High Operations, 
IT

On-going Number of web form 
responses

Create ward pro"les 
that can be compared 
against the standards set 
by planning policy and 
Section 106 requirements

High Operations, 
Planning Policy

2011-2012 Date of completion

47



27

Action Priority Lead Timescale Measure
Promote and encourage 
visitors to use parks 
and open spaces for 
healthy lifestyles by 
providing greater levels 
of information on the 
Huntingdonshire District 
Council website, and 
continue to signpost users 
to nearby open spaces

Medium Operations, 
Sport & Active 
Lifestyles

On-going Level and quality of 
information available 
on the council website 
/ web complaints

Where appropriate, 
provide technical advice 
and signpost local 
community and friends 
groups to available funding 
opportunities for open 
spaces

Medium Operations, 
Countryside Services

On-going Number of 
community / friends 
groups assisted by 
HDC

Ensure positive 
conservation management 
at all local wildlife sites

Medium Planning, 
Wildlife Trust

2010-2015 Percentage of wildlife 
sites under active 
management

Promote availability of 
outdoor sports facilities 
through website, events 
and partners

Medium Sport & Active 
Lifestyles, 
Operations, 
Countryside Services

On-going Usage of sites

Maintain and support the 
existing four Friends groups 
and develop two more for 
countryside sites

Medium Countryside Services 2010-2013 Number of Friends 
Groups

Conduct visitor user 
surveys at all countryside 
sites

Medium Countryside Services On-going Number of surveys 
completed

Seek to improve the quality, 
value and range of open 
space through a review of 
maintenance practices

Medium Operations 2011-2012 Date of completion

48



28

Action Priority Lead Timescale Measure
Create a stakeholder group 
to help promote and 
drive forward open space 
management within the 
district

Medium Operations to lead On-going Number of members 
of stakeholder group

Undertake a project 
to develop 5 year 
management plans 
for identi"ed council 
“destination” parks and 
open spaces, working 
in partnership with 
relevant Friends Groups or 
community groups

Medium Operations, 
Countryside Services, 
Friends Groups / 
Community Groups

2010-2015 Number of 
management plans 
produced

Review and update 
the tree database of 
Huntingdonshire District 
Council owned trees

Medium Operations 2011-2012 Date of completion

Network with other Local 
Authorities in the region 
with regard to open space 
best practice

Low Operations,
Countryside Services

On-going Attendance at 
meetings / seminars 
with other Local 
Authorities

 

49



29

6.2 Strategic Actions:

Action Priority Lead Timescale Measure
Review local policy 
including the vision 
and aims stated within 
this strategy in light of 
changing national policy 
introduced by the new 
coalition Government

High Operations
Planning Policy
Countryside Services

2011 Date of review

In view of changing best 
practice, undertake an 
annual review of the criteria 
used in the “Prioritisation 
Matrix” to ensure continued 
validity

High Operations, 
Countryside Services

2010-2015 Date of review 

Undertake a mid point 
review of the Open Space 
Strategy and Action Plan 
to ensure strategy is kept 
up-to-date

High Operations, 
Planning Policy, 
Countryside Services, 
Sport & Active 
Lifestyles

2012-2013 Date of review

Develop an understanding 
of best practise with 
regards to climate change 
adaptation in open spaces

High Operations, 
Planning, 
Environmental 
Management

2011-2012 Production of 
guidelines for 
adaptation in open 
spaces

Encourage the sustainable 
sourcing of materials in 
open spaces through 
the establishment of 
procurement guidelines

High Environmental 
Management, 
Procurement

2012-2013 Production of 
procurement 
guidelines

Review the section 106 
open space speci"cation, 
and review section 106 
rates

High Operations, 
Planning

2011-2012 Date of completion

Adopt a more co-ordinated 
strategic approach to 
consultation in order 
to identify needs and 
aspirations of both users 
and non-users of open 
space

High Operations, 
Countryside Services

On-going Quantity and timing 
of consultation 
carried out

50



30

Action Priority Lead Timescale Measure
Identify mechanisms 
that provide meaningful 
engagement with children 
young people in order to 
improve youth provision

High Operations, 
Countryside Services

On-going Number and success 
of consultation carried 
out with children and 
young people

Encourage the introduction 
of adaptive measures in 
open spaces in response to 
the e*ects of climate change

Medium Operations, 
Planning, 
Environmental 
Management

2010-2015 Number of adaptive 
measures installed

Establish links between 
open spaces to sustain, 
protect and enhance the 
biodiversity resource of the 
district

Medium Operations 2010-2015 To be con"rmed

Produce “vision” plans for 
parks and signi"cant open 
spaces where improvement 
schemes are proposed 
so that all works carried 
out can seek to achieve 
overarching vision

Medium Operations On-going Production of 
“vision” plan for all 
open spaces where 
improvements are 
scheduled

Seek to review the council’s 
current Playing Pitch 
Strategy 

Medium Planning, 
Operations

2012-2015 Date of completion

Seek to develop an 
Allotments and Community 
Garden Strategy to support 
development of this Open 
Space Strategy

Low Operations 2012-2013 Date of completion

Produce/update Tree, 
Woodland and Hedge 
Strategy/policies to support 
the development of this 
Open Space Strategy

Low Operations 2012-2013 Date(s) of completion

6.3 Monitoring 

This Open Space Strategy provides a comprehensive overview of open space in Huntingdonshire.  
It is important to ensure that the audit of provision is regularly updated to maintain its validity.  
The five year action plan makes a commitment to annually review the audit data, and so it is 
acknowledged that there is a need for this strategy to remain an active document.

51



31

Appendix 1: Green Flag Award Criteria

1. A welcoming place 

 Factors include:

2. Healthy, safe and secure

 Factors include:

 equipment where relevant

3. Clean and well maintained

 Factors include:

 reviewed

4. Sustainability

 Factors include:

 practice and regularly reviewed

 measures

52



32

5. Conservation and heritage

 Factors include:

6. Community involvement

 Factors include:

 achieved

7. Marketing

 Factors include:

 

8. Management

 Factors include:

 Green Flag application process)

53



33

i. Huntingdonshire’s Sustainable Community Strategy (2008 - 2028)

The Huntingdonshire Local Strategic Partnership (HLSP) includes a number of organisations and 
community representatives formed to improve the area. This partnership includes key partners 
from the public, private and voluntary sector.

One of the major tasks undertaken by the HLSP was the development of the “Huntingdonshire 
Sustainable Community Strategy;” a key document that outlines how members of the HLSP will 
work in partnership to improve the quality of life in the area.  The strategy is organised under six 
strategic themes.  Open space provision has an impact on each of these six key areas and this is 
explored below:

1. Growth and Infrastructure 

TARGET: “Improved health / education learning, training, community and leisure infrastructure 
and local and strategic open space through the appropriate provision of facilities to meet 
current and future needs”

With regard to open spaces, this can be achieved through appropriate:

cultural, leisure and community infrastructure.

local green, recreational and open space.

networked strategic green open space.

2. Health and Well-Being

TARGET: “Appropriate culture and leisure opportunities”

With regard to open spaces, this can be achieved through:

Developing culture and leisure opportunities.

Provide accessible opportunities - things to do, particularly children and young people, and  
 those with disabilities.

Addressing play and cultural needs.

Improve access to the countryside and green space.

Enhance access to heritage.

Provide good quantity and quality of leisure services.

Ensure sufficient quantity and quality of indoor and outdoor sporting infrastructure.

Promote active and healthy lifestyles.

Appendix 2: Local Policy Context

54



34

3. Inclusive, Safe and Cohesive Communities

TARGET: “Vibrant and Cohesive Communities”

With regard to open spaces, this can be achieved through:

Promoting community based / run activities.

Promoting community involvement.

Engaging with new and developing communities.

TARGET: “Reduce Anti-Social Behaviour”

With regard to open spaces, this can be achieved by:

Addressing anti-social behaviour.

TARGET: “Good opportunities for life-long learning”

With regard to open spaces, this can be achieved by:

Promote opportunities for local people to improve or gain skills through cultural, leisure and  
 volunteer activities.

4. Economic Prosperity and Skills

TARGET: “Increased visitor numbers”

This can be achieved by:

Encourage local people to visit local attractions.

Improve the mix of attractions, facilities and leisure opportunities.

5. Environment

TARGET: “An environment that is protected and improved”

This can be achieved by:

Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and open space.

Adaptation to climate change.

Maintain a clean and safe Huntingdonshire.

55



35

6. Children and Young People

TARGET: “Safe, accessible, positive activities for children and young people”

This can be achieved by:

Increasing the range of opportunities for children and young people to meet in informal and  
 safe environments.

Improve access to existing facilities.

ii. Growing Success - Corporate Plan

Huntingdonshire District Council is responsible for promoting the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of its communities, with the desired objective of achieving a good 
quality of life.  This is achieved by delivering actions and principles established within the 
Sustainable Community Strategy.

‘Growing Success’ is Huntingdonshire District Council’s Corporate Plan and details how the Council 
will achieve its part of the Community Strategy. It is based on detailed community engagement so 
that the council can identify local communities’ needs.   ‘Growing Success’ identifies aims that the 
council will work towards, and details how these aims will be delivered.

As with the Sustainable Community Strategy, open space provision has strong links to a number of 
key community aims, including:

COMMUNITY AIM: A clean, green and attractive place 

Objective - Keep district clean 

This can be helped by ensuring that public spaces are kept free of litter, fly tipping and graffiti.

Objective - To protect and improve our environment

This can be achieved by reducing contaminated and polluted land and by protecting and 
enhancing biodiversity in strategic green spaces and in other open space.  Furthermore, it can 
be helped by protecting and enhancing the character of urban and rural areas, minimizing the 
development of greenfield land and ensuring good quality parks and open spaces

Objective - To help mitigate and adapt to climate change

This can be achieved by increasing energy efficiency, encouraging renewable energy and 
adapting to climate change.  Open spaces can be designed and managed in such a way to reduce 
the impact of climate change.

56



36

COMMUNITY AIM: Safe, vibrant and inclusive communities

Objective - To work with others to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour and ensure that 
people feel safe

This can be achieved by promoting schemes which will provide positive and diversionary activity 
for young people, promoting facilities which bring people together, and providing effective CCTV 
system in vulnerable areas.

Objective - To enable residents to take an active part in their communities and work to 
ensure that communities are inclusive

This can be achieved by enabling access to facilities and opportunities for leisure, sport, community, 
voluntary and other activities.    Furthermore, engaging with children and young people and promote 
opportunities for their involvement in positive activities will also help to meet the objective.

COMMUNITY AIM: Healthy living

Objective - Promote healthy lifestyles

This can be achieved by several means including provision of facilities/events to encourage participation 
in active leisure pursuits for everyone.  It can also be helped by providing a network of Leisure Centres 
and associated activities, promoting and supporting the Healthy Walks programme, and providing 
holiday activity programmes for children and young people.  Furthermore, there should be a focus on 
promoting cultural events and activities, and providing play and activities for young people.

COMMUNITY AIM: Developing Communities Sustainably

Objective - To enable the provision of the social and strategic infrastructure to meet current 
and future needs

This can be achieved by encouraging the provision of accessible leisure and community facilities 
and opportunities for all, and providing and supporting the development of play and recreation 
facilities in identified communities.

COMMUNITY AIM: A strong and diverse economy

Objective - To support town centres and key settlements to become economically viable 
and vibrant

This can be achieved by providing environmental improvements, promoting the district, local 
facilities and attractions to residents and visitors, and improving the quality and availability of 
attractions and facilities.

57



37

iii. Local Development Framework (LDF)

This is one of the principle vehicles for achieving the council’s corporate plan.  It is a spatial plan 
that goes beyond traditional land use planning to bring together and integrate policies for the 
development and use of land with other schemes and programmes which influences the nature of 
places and how they function.

The LDF consists of a number of documents including a Core Strategy, adopted in 2009,  
Development Management DPD, and Planning Proposals DPD which together set out a spatial 
strategy to manage the amount and direction of growth and policies to help guide and judge that 
development.

iv. Sports Facilities Strategy (2009)

The purpose of this strategy is to provide a clear framework for the prioritisation, provision and 
enhancement of sports facilities within Huntingdonshire, building on work carried out by Strategic 
Leisure Limited (SLL).  SLL undertook a comprehensive review of existing sports facility provision in 
Huntingdonshire and identified future needs based on predicted population growth using Sport 
England’s nationally recognised model the ‘Sports Facility Calculator’. 

Within the Sports Facilities Strategy, the council have identified a series of key policy 
recommendations, focusing on the need to encourage the retention of all strategically important 
outdoor sports facilities, encourage participation, whilst at the same time seeking to maximise 
section 106, Community Infrastructure Levy tariff, and other external funds to help enhance sports 
facilities across the district.  Given that outdoor sports facilities are included within this Open Space 
Strategy, these are important recommendations as they will help to improve the standard of open 
spaces in Huntingdonshire.

v. Environment Strategy (2008)

There are three key challenges identified within the council’s Environment Strategy

It is important that this Open Space Strategy recognises the potential impact that climate change 
may have on the district’s open space.  Management of parks and open spaces will need to take 
account of the impacts of drier, hotter summers and warmer, wetter winters on trees and other 
vegetation.  Warmer temperatures are also likely to result in more outdoor lifestyles, putting greater 
demand on our green and open space.   Therefore, it is important that open spaces are designed 
and managed in a such way to reduce the impact of climate change.

58



38

Open Space is an important part of the challenge of protecting and improving the environment. 
The Environment Strategy recognises that Huntingdonshire contains some very rare and valuable 
habitats that support a variety of species.  Loss of this habitat due to development, inappropriate 
management or increased tourism damage can mean that these plants, animals and insects are lost 
forever.  

There has been a historic loss of green and open space throughout the UK in previous decades.  
Therefore, it is important to ensure that open spaces are afforded protection through the planning 
process to further prevent habitat and open space fragmentation.  

The Environment Strategy recognises that attractive, clean and safe neighbourhoods have positive 
impacts on the social, physical and mental wellbeing of residents, and the provision of pleasant 
green and open space  located nearby plays a crucial part in this. 

vi. Play Strategy (2007)

The district’s Play Strategy recognises that the quality, quantity and accessibility of play provision 
across the district varies.  Huntingdonshire District Council is committed to the development of 
play and recreational opportunities in all localities.  Future development will be co-ordinated at 
district or town/parish level in order to secure the most appropriate, sustainable provision for local 
communities.

At the core of this strategy is the vision that “all children and young people in Huntingdonshire will 
be able to access a range of play opportunities suited to their needs and interests”, with a focus 
on changing attitudes to play and delivering sustainable, free play opportunities for children and 
young people.  Open spaces are seen to be crucial to this as they represent key locations for both 
formal and informal play opportunities.

vii. Cultural Strategy for Huntingdonshire (2007)

This strategy sets out Huntingdonshire District Council’s key targets and aspirations for culture 
between 2007 and 2010.  It provides a distinctive vision for the development of cultural activities, 
facilities and services and focuses on improving the quality of life through the provision and 
development of cultural activities, events and facilities and by helping to achieve other targets such 
as providing lifelong learning opportunities, improving health, stimulating economic development 
and helping to improve safety within local communities.  The strategy recognises that open space 
and sports facilities are identified as a key part of the district’s cultural offer.

59



39

viii. PPG 17 Open Space Assessment (2006)

This assessment and audit was undertaken by PMP consultants, focusing on informal open space, 
outdoor recreation facilities, children’s play areas, allotments and outdoor sports pitch provision. 

Planning Policy Guidance 17 requires local authorities to carry out a needs assessment of provision 
to inform the development of local standards for the provision of open space.  The study identifies 
deficiencies and surpluses of provision and their spatial distribution, and was primarily carried out 
to help inform the planning process.   

In addition to this,  the council are able to utilise this existing audit of provision as the basis for this 
Open Space Strategy. 

60



40

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Abbots 
Ripton

Abbots Ripton Playing 
Field

Abbots 
Ripton

PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 32,870

Abbots Ripton Primary 
C of E School

Abbots 
Ripton

CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 8,299

St Andrews Church Abbots 
Ripton

CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 5,585

The Green Abbots 
Ripton

PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,230

The Green Abbots 
Ripton

UNK Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 10,993

Wennington & Raveley 
Woods

Wennington UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 729,177

TOTAL PROVISION 790,154

Abbotsley Abbotsley Hotel, Golf 
and Country Club

Abbotsley PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Destination 886,860

High Street Abbotsley PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,174

High Street Tennis 
Court

Abbotsley UNK Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 1,486

New wood at 
Abbotsley Country 
Homes

Abbotsley PRV Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 35,170

St Margarets Church Abbotsley CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,561

St Neots Rd Playing 
Field

Abbotsley PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Neighbourhood 15,962

TOTAL PROVISION 946,212

Alconbury Alconbury C of E 
School

Alconbury CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 7,670

Alconbury Sports and 
Social Club

Alconbury PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 39,428

Bramble End Alconbury PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 895

Spinney Lane Alconbury PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,485

Appendix 3: Audit of Provision Results

* A key for “ownership” is shown at the end of the audit tables. 

61



41

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Alconbury
(continued)

St Peter and St Pauls 
Church

Alconbury CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 7,440

The Green Alconbury PAR Green Corridors Local 18,175

TOTAL PROVISION 75,093

Alconbury 
Weston

High"eld Avenue Alconbury 
Weston

PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 4,000

TOTAL PROVISION 4,000

Alwalton Church Street/ Oundle 
Road

Alwalton PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Neighbourhood 12,373

St Andrews Church Alwalton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,447

TOTAL PROVISION 14,820

Bluntisham Baptist Chapel Bluntisham CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,780

Bluntisham Recreation 
Ground

Bluntisham PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 70,967

Mill Lane Allotments Bluntisham PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 10,068

Needingworth Quarry Bluntisham UNK Natural Open 
Space

Destination 389,177

St Helens School Bluntisham CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 14,760

St Marys Church Bluntisham CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 8,707

St Marys Close Bluntisham UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,586

Village Hall Rectory 
Road

Bluntisham PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,415

TOTAL PROVISION 504,460

Brampton Brampton Institute 
Bowls Club

Brampton PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 3,980

Brampton Memorial 
Playing Field

Brampton PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 30,900

Brampton Park Golf 
Club

Brampton PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Destination 670,962

Brampton Primary 
School

Brampton CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 19,205

62



42

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Brampton
(continued)

Brampton Wood Brampton OTHER Natural Open 
Space

Local 1,334,945

Centenary Way Brampton HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,045

Hinchingbrooke 
Gravel Pits

Huntingdon UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 965,930

Kyle Crescant Brampton PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,518

Kyle Crescent Brampton PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 812

Laws Crescent Brampton HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 7,721

Layton Crescent Brampton HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,977

Portholme Huntingdon PRV Natural Open 
Space

Local 1,024,289

St Marys Church Brampton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 13,671

The Green Brampton PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 6,540

Thrapston Road 
Allotments

Brampton PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 9,328

Williams Close Brampton PRV Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,601

Woolley Close Brampton UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,077

TOTAL PROVISION 4,100,501

Brington & 
Molesworth

Brington C of E School Brington CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 5,150

Church Road Tennis 
Court

Molesworth UNK Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 1,206

Hill Close Brington PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 905

Hill Close Brington PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 670

St Peters Church Molesworth CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,337

63



43

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Brington & 
Molesworth 
(continued)

Molesworth Bridleway 
No. 28

Molesworth UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 14,932

TOTAL PROVISION 25,200

Broughton School Road Broughton UNK Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 2,066

TOTAL PROVISION 2,066

Buckden Buckden Junior School Buckden CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 11,410

Buckden Marina Ltd Buckden PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 1,103

Buckden Village Club 
(Playing Fields)

Buckden PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 28,343

Great North Road Al-
lotments

Buckden PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 3,100

Lucks Lane Cemetery Buckden PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 5,885

Silver Street 
Allotments

Buckden PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 7,528

St Marys Church Buckden CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,250

TOTAL PROVISION 60,619

Buckworth All Saints Church Buckworth CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,590

TOTAL PROVISION 2,590

Bury Bury C of E Primary 
School

Bury CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 8,618

Bury C of E Primary 
School

Bury CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 2,928

Holy Cross Church Bury CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 5,097

Owls End Playground Bury UNK Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 561

64



44

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Bury
(continued)

Valiant Square Bury PRV Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,739

Valiant Square Bury PRV Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,718

Ramsey Golf and 
Bowls Club

Ramsey PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 430,213

TOTAL PROVISION 454,875

Bythorn & 
Keyston

Church of St John the 
Baptist

Keyston CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,561

The Park Keyston PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,479

TOTAL PROVISION 7,040

Catworth Catworth Playing Field 
(Victory Ground)

Catworth PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 19,607

St Leonards Church Catworth CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,766

TOTAL PROVISION 23,373

Colne Colne Recreation 
Ground

Colne PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 4,027

Colne Road Allotments Somersham PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 2,942

St Ives- March Disused 
Railway (Somersham)

Somersham UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 18,932

TOTAL PROVISION 25,901

Conington Cotton Close Conington HDC/UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 4,706

Holy Cross Church Conington CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,320

TOTAL PROVISION 9,026

Covington St Margarets Church Covington CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,674

Village Hall Cross 
Street

Covington PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 677

TOTAL PROVISION 3,351

Denton & 
Caldecote

Holme Fen Holme UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 635,414

TOTAL PROVISION 635,414

65



45

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Diddington Church of St Lawrence Diddington CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,938

TOTAL PROVISION 2,938

Earith Colne Road Allotments Earith PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 14,679

Colne Road 
Playground

Earith PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,171

Community 
Association Field

Earith PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 15,585

Earith Playing Field Earith PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 19,019

Earith Primary School Earith CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 10,486

TOTAL PROVISION 60,939

Easton Easton Road Playing 
Field

Easton PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 4,744

St Peters Church Easton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,091

TOTAL PROVISION 6,835

Ellington All Saints Church Ellington CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,656

Ellington Recreation 
Ground

Ellington PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 9,474

TOTAL PROVISION 12,130

Elton All Saints Church Elton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 6,980

Elton Furze Golf Club Haddon PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Destination 506,245

Elton Park Cricket Club Elton PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 9,579

School Lane Open 
Space

Elton PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,420

St Botolph Green 
Overend

Elton PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,787

TOTAL PROVISION 530,011

66



46

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Farcet Broadway Allotments Farcet PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 2,038

Broadway Cemetery Farcet PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 9,209

Church Walk Farcet HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,074

Farcet C of E Primary 
School

Farcet CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 9,451

Farcet Playing Field Farcet PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 10,407

St Marys Church Farcet CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,631

TOTAL PROVISION 34,810

Fenstanton Cambridge Road 
Allotments

Fenstanton PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 6,000

Crystal Lakes Caravan 
Park

Fenstanton PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 54,985

Elizabeth Court St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 6,527

Fenstanton Bowls Club Fenstanton PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 1,243

Fenstanton Cricket 
Club

Fenstanton UNK Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 11,633

Fenstanton Football 
Club

Fenstanton PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 16,540

Fenstanton Primary 
School

Fenstanton CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 16,654

Pit"eld Close Fenstanton PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,342

Rookery Place Fenstanton PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 2,603

St Peter and St Pauls 
Church

Fenstanton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 7,673

TOTAL PROVISION 126,201

67



47

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Folksworth 
& 
Washingley

Apreece Road Folksworth HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,499

Elm Road Folksworth PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,734

Folksworth C of E 
Primary School

Folksworth CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 3,570

St Helens Church Folksworth CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,669

TOTAL PROVISION 14,472

Glatton St Nicholas Church Glatton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,210

TOTAL PROVISION 3,210

Godman-
chester

Buttermill Meadow Godman-
chester

UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 10,451

Cambridge Road 
Allotments

Godman-
chester

PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 15,260

Cambridge Road 
Allotments

Godman-
chester

PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 13,660

Chadley Lane Godman-
chester

HDC Natural Open 
Space

Local 7,011

Devana Close Godman-
chester

PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 11,152

Eastside Common Godman-
chester

UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 235,812

Eastside Common Godman-
chester

UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 58,122

Godmanchester Home 
Ground (Rovers)

Godman-
chester

PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 35,368

Godmanchester 
Primary School

Godman-
chester

CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 16,565

Godmanchester Town 
Cricket Club

Godman-
chester

HDC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 23,960

Godmanchester Town 
Cricket Club

Godman-
chester

HDC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 12,580

Godmanchester Town 
Park

Godman-
chester

PAR Parks & Gardens Destination 35,440

Judiths Field Godman-
chester

PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 25,590

London Road 
Cemetery

Godman-
chester

PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 8,067

68



48

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Godman-
chester
(continued)

Rectory Gardens Godman-
chester

HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,098

Roman Way Godman-
chester

HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,153

Royal Oak Bowls Club Godman-
chester

PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 1,372

St Annes Primary 
School

Godman-
chester

CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 7,835

St Marys Church Godman-
chester

CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 10,146

Stokes Drive Open 
Space

Godman-
chester

DEV Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 2,008

Tudor Road Godman-
chester

PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,022

Westside Pollard 
Willows

Huntingdon UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 551,090

TOTAL PROVISION 1,086,761

Grafham All Saints Church Grafham CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,141

Brampton Road Grafham PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,614

Grafham Cricket Club Grafham PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 19,581

Grafham Water Grafham PRV Natural Open 
Space

Destination 8,065,417

TOTAL PROVISION 8,090,754

Great 
Gidding

Great Gidding C of E 
Primary School

Great 
Gidding

CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,951

Great Gidding Playing 
Field

Great 
Gidding

PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 17,997

Main Street Allotments Great 
Gidding

PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 21,951

St Michaels Church Great 
Gidding

CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,584

TOTAL PROVISION 46,482

69



49

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Great 
Gransden

Barnabas Oley Primary 
School

Great 
Gransden

CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 5,359

Great Gransden Bowls 
Club

Great 
Gransden

PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 1,534

Great Gransden 
Playing Field

Great 
Gransden

PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 33,278

Great Gransden Tennis 
Court

Great 
Gransden

UNK Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 553

St Bartholomews 
Church

Great 
Gransden

CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,682

TOTAL PROVISION 44,406

Great 
Paxton

Great Paxton C of E 
School

Great Paxton CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,065

Great Paxton C of 
ESchool

Great Paxton CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 6,757

Great Paxton 
Recreation Ground

Gt Paxton PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 18,970

Holy Trinity Church Great Paxton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 6,266

Mount Pleasant Great Paxton PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 4,814

TOTAL PROVISION 37,872

Great 
Staughton

Great Staughton 
Playing Fields

Great 
Staughton

CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 18,909

Great Staughton 
Primary School

Great 
Staughton

CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 4,134

St Andrews Church Great 
Staughton

CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,177

The Green Allotments Great 
Staughton

PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 5,397

The Town Cemetery Great 
Staughton

PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,307

TOTAL PROVISION 33,924

70



50

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Hail Weston Hail Weston Playing 
Field

Hail Weston PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 11,334

TOTAL PROVISION 11,334

Hamerton & 
Steeple 
Gidding

All Saints Church Hamerton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,805

TOTAL PROVISION 2,805

Hemingford 
Abbots

Hemingford Abbots 
Golf Club

Hemingford 
Abbots

PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 174,103

Recreation Ground 
Royal Oak Lane

Hemingford 
Abbots

PAR Amenity Green-
space

Local 5,068

St Margarets Church Hemingford 
Abbots

CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,397

Hemingford Abbots 
Meadow

Hemingford 
Abbots

UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 550,021

TOTAL PROVISION 731,589

Hemingford 
Grey

Hemingford Grey 
Meadow

Hemingford 
Grey

UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 491,497

Hemingford Grey 
Primary School

Hemingford 
Grey

CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 7,856

Heminigford Sports 
Pavilion

Hemingford 
Grey

CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 21,511

Marsh Lane Gravel Pits Hemingford 
Grey

LAFARGE Natural Open 
Space

Local 532,618

Pound Road Cemetery Hemingford 
Grey

PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,063

Sadlers Way 
Allotments

Hemingford 
Grey

HDC Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 6,101

St James Church Hemingford 
Grey

CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,065

Stepping Stones Hemingford 
Grey

HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 22,640

Vicarage Fields Hemingford 
Grey

PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,793

TOTAL PROVISION 1,094,144

Hilton Church End Hilton PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,390

Grove End Hilton PAR Natural Open 
Space

Local 4,917

Hilton Green Hilton PAR Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 82,281

71



51

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Hilton
(continued)

St Mary Magdelenes 
Church

Hilton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,433

TOTAL PROVISION 95,021

Holme Holme C of E Primary 
School

Holme CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 6,562

Holme Fen Holme UNK Natural Open Space Local 1,563,144

Holme Fen Holme UNK Natural Open Space Local 459,747

Holmewood Holme HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,155

Station Road 
Cemetery

Holme PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,704

TOTAL PROVISION 2,037,313

Holywell 
cum 
Needing-
worth

Bramley Ave/Russett 
Close

Needingworth HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 9,761

Daintree Needingworth UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,068

Holywell C of E 
Primary School

Needingworth CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 8,891

Holywell-cum-Need-
ingworth Bowls Club

Needingworth PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 1,743

Mill Way Allotments Needingworth PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 4,051

Mill Way Cemetery Needingworth PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,033

Mill"elds Recreation 
Ground

Needingworth PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 20,031

Mill"elds Recreation 
Ground

Needingworth PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 63,237

Needingworth Tennis 
Club

Needingworth PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 3,373

Overcote Fen Holywell PAR Natural Open Space Local 3,966

Playing Field Overcote 
Lane

Needingworth PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 20,874

St Ives Golf Club St Ives PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Destination 751,631

St John the Baptist 
Church

Holywell CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,085

The Front Holywell PAR Natural Open Space Local 8,865

TOTAL PROVISION 905,608

72



52

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Houghton & 
Wyton

Houghton and Wyton 
Playing Fields

Houghton PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 21,804

Houghton Grange 
Grassland

Houghton UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 41,957

Houghton Hill 
Cemetery

Houghton PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,113

Houghton Meadow 
Pollard Willows

Houghton UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 60,223

Houghton Meadows Houghton UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 46,075

Houghton Primary 
School

Houghton CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 12,223

Loxley Green Wyton HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,721

TOTAL PROVISION 189,116

Huntingdon American Lane Huntingdon HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,433

American/Oxmoor 
Lane

Huntingdon HDC/UNK Green Corridors Local 6,659

American/Primrose 
Lane Allotments

Huntingdon PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 23,904

Ash/Elm Close Huntingdon HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,504

Beech Close Play Area Huntingdon HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 4,686

Beech/Ash Close Huntingdon HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,325

Benedicts Court Huntingdon CCC Civic Spaces Local 510

Bevan Close Huntingdon HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 776

Brampton Road Huntingdon CCC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,078

Brampton Road Huntingdon CCC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,503

Brampton Road Huntingdon CCC Natural Open 
Space

Local 6,320

Brampton Road Huntingdon CCC Natural Open 
Space

Local 5,621

Castle Moat Park Huntingdon PAR Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 18,697

73



53

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Huntingdon
(continued)

Chequers Court Huntingdon PRV Civic Spaces Local 1,766

Church Lane Hartford HDC Parks & Gardens Destination 4,128

Claytons Way Field/ 
Olympic Gym

Huntingdon PRV Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 16,089

Coneygear Court Huntingdon UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,422

Coneygear Park Huntingdon HDC Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 34,981

Coxons Close Huntingdon HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,196

Cromwell Park Primary 
School

Huntingdon CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 9,609

Dartmoor Drive Huntingdon HDC Natural Open 
Space

Local 5,210

Dartmoor/ Snowdonia 
Way

Huntingdon HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 7,981

Falcon Drive Hartford HDC Natural Open 
Space

Local 3,365

Flamsteed Drive/ 
Hinchingbrooke bu*er

Huntingdon HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 17,789

Garner Court Play Area Huntingdon HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,632

Hamlet Close Hartford UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,024

Hartford Community 
Junior School

Huntingdon CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 16,253

Hartford Road 
Allotments

Huntingdon PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 12,027

Hinchingbrooke 
Balancing Pond

Huntingdon DEV Natural Open 
Space

Local 7,351

Hinchingbrooke 
School

Huntingdon CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 31,375

Hinchingbrooke 
School

Huntingdon CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Destination 154,175

Huntingdon & 
Godmanchester
Bowling Club

Huntingdon PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 4,281

Huntingdon Infants 
and Junior Schools

Huntingdon CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 21,658

74



54

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Huntingdon
(continued)

Huntingdon Regional 
College

Huntingdon CCC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 51,498

Huntingdon Regional 
College

Huntingdon CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 12,078

Huntingdon Regional 
College

Huntingdon CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 1,035

Huntingdon Town Park Huntingdon PAR Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 12,023

Huntingdon Youth 
Club

Huntingdon CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 4,121

King George V Playing 
Field

Hartford PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Neighbourhood 11,162

King George V Playing 
Field

Huntingdon PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 36,151

Long Moore Baulk Huntingdon DEV Green Corridors Local 28,445

Long Moore Baulk Huntingdon HDC Green Corridors Local 2,363

Longsta* Way Hartford CCC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,286

Macbeth Close Huntingdon UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,156

Maple Drive open 
space

Huntingdon HHP/UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,821

Market Square Huntingdon CCC Civic Spaces Local 1,673

Maryland Avenue Hartford UNK Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 2,117

Mill Common Huntingdon FREEMEN Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 61,623

Montagu Bowls Club Huntingdon PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 1,230

Norfolk Road Huntingdon HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 7,954

Norfolk Road Huntingdon UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,418

Nuns Bridge Huntingdon CCC Natural Open 
Space

Local 9,830

Nursery Road Play 
Area

Huntingdon PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,232

75



55

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Huntingdon
(continued)

Oberon Close Hartford HDC/UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,271

Owl Way Tree Belt Hartford HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 37,472

Oxmoor Lane Huntingdon UNK Green Corridors Local 22,915

Parkway bu*er Huntingdon UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 8,037

Parkway Play Area Huntingdon HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 164

Perigrine/Kite Close Hartford HDC Amenity Green-
space

Local 3,487

Port Holme Huntingdon FREEMEN Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 32,932

Primrose Lane 
Cemetery

Huntingdon PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 6,553

Priory Road Cemetery Huntingdon PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 20,309

Redwongs Way Park Huntingdon PAR Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 12,704

Riverside Park Huntingdon HDC Parks & Gardens Destination 56,499

Riverside Park- 
Hunters Down

Huntingdon HDC Parks & Gardens Destination 78,176

Rodney Road Hartford UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,076

Sallowbush Rd 
Allotments

Huntingdon PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 16,149

Sallowbush Road open 
space

Huntingdon HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 26,475

Sapley Park Huntingdon UNK/HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,717

Sapley Park Playing 
Fields

Huntingdon HDC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 78,714

Scholars Avenue Huntingdon HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,735

Spring Common Huntingdon FREEMEN Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 38,364

Spring Common Huntingdon FREEMEN Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 12,892

Spring Common 
Primary and 
Secondary School

Huntingdon CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 17,405

76



56

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Huntingdon
(continued)

St Johns C of E Primary 
School

Huntingdon CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 11,447

St Marys Church Huntingdon CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,189

St Peter's School Huntingdon CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 47,503

Stukeley Meadows 
open space

Huntingdon UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 31,507

Stukeley Meadows 
open space

Huntingdon HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 49,325

Stukeley Meadows 
Primary School

Huntingdon CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 8,424

Stukeley Meadows 
Skate Park

Huntingdon HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,399

Surrey Road Huntingdon HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,865

Sycamore Drive Huntingdon HHP Civic Spaces Local 869

The Glades Huntingdon DEV Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 8,057

The Whaddons Huntingdon HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 973

Thongsley Infants and 
Junior School

Huntingdon CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 24,403

Views Common Huntingdon FREEMEN Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 266,242

Hinchingbrooke Coun-
try Park

Huntingdon CCC Parks & Gardens Destination 606,835

Jubilee Park Huntingdon PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 131,024

TOTAL PROVISION 2,376,649

Kimbolton Iron Gates Netball & 
Tennis Courts Roger 
Peel Spor

Kimbolton PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 1,561

Kimbolton and 
Catworth Cricket Club

Kimbolton PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 12,062

Kimbolton Preparatory 
School

Kimbolton PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 77,907

77



57

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Kimbolton
(continued)

Kimbolton School Kimbolton CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Destination 216,227

Newtown Allotments Kimbolton PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 8,784

Newtown Cemetery Kimbolton PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 7,410

Overhills Primary 
School

Kimbolton CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 10,996

Pond Lane Park Kimbolton PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 14,827

St Andrews Church Kimbolton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,524

Thrapston Road Kimbolton PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 11,903

TOTAL PROVISION 365,200

Leighton Leighton Playing Field Leighton 
Bromswold

PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 3,565

St Marys Church Leighton 
Bromswold

CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,911

TOTAL PROVISION 7,477

Little 
Gidding

St Johns Church Little Gidding CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,086

TOTAL PROVISION 2,086

Little Paxton Gordon Road / The 
Crofts/The Willows

Little Paxton HDC Green Corridors Local 5,268

Island Site Little Paxton DEV Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,061

Little Paxton Playing 
Field

Little Paxton PAR Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 24,034

Little Paxton Primary 
School

Little Paxton CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 10,929

Parkside / Booth Way Little Paxton HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 8,996

Paxton Pits Little Paxton UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 69,736

Paxton Pits Little Paxton UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 293,562

Rivermill Open Space Little Paxton DEV Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 6,019

78



58

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Little Paxton
(continued)

St James Church Little Paxton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,311

Wantage Gardens 
Allotments

Little Paxton PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 12,758

Paxton Pits Little Paxton HDC Natural Open 
Space

Destination 530,809

Little Paxton Pits 
Non-SSSI

Little Paxton LAFARGE Natural Open 
Space

Local 1,022,032

TOTAL PROVISION 1,988,516

Morborne All Saints Church Morborne CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,674

TOTAL PROVISION 2,674

O#ord Cluny 
& O#ord 
D'Arcy

All Saints Church O*ord Cluny CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,553

Graveley Road 
Allotments

O*ord Darcy PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 2,336

Millenium Green O*ord Darcy PAR Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 46,920

O*ord Cricket Ground O*ord Darcy PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 15,456

O*ord Meadow O*ord Cluny UNK Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 23,700

O*ord Primary School O*ord Darcy CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 6,865

St Peters Church O*ord Darcy CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,786

TOTAL PROVISION 102,615

Old Weston St Swithens Church Old Weston CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,094

Village Hall Main 
Street

Old Weston PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,756

TOTAL PROVISION 5,850

Out of 
District 
(Yaxley)

Pond Rolls Close Yaxley DEV Natural Open 
Space

Local 6,879

TOTAL PROVISION 6,879

Perry Lakeside Close Perry HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 6,153

Mander Park Perry UNK Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 30,179

79



59

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Perry
(continued)

Mander Park West 
Perry

Perry UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 9,799

Perry Football Pitch Perry UNK Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 13,380

Perry Skate Park Perry CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,440

West Perry Perry UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,162

TOTAL PROVISION 63,112

Pidley cum 
Fenton

All Saints Church Pidley CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,763

Lakeside Lodge Golf 
Centre

Pidley PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Destination 302,113

Playing Field Warboys 
Road

Pidley PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 4,572

TOTAL PROVISION 309,448

Ramsey Abbey College Ramsey CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 135,211

Ashbeach Primary 
School

Ramsey St 
Marys

CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 4,896

Church Green Ramsey PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,085

Clover Close Ramsey St 
Marys

HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,376

King George Playing 
Field

Ramsey PAR Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 26,727

Mill Lane Playing Field Ramsey PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 13,711

Oak Way Ramsey St 
Marys

HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,168

Old Nene Golf and 
Country Club

Ramsey PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 323,136

One Leisure Ramsey Ramsey HDC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 4,154

80



60

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Ramsey
(continued)

Ramsey Colts Football 
Club

Ramsey PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 28,510

Ramsey Cricket Club Ramsey PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 21,692

Ramsey Heights 
Nature Reserve

Ramsey 
Heights

UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 54,536

Ramsey Junior School Ramsey CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Neighbourhood 15,103

Ramsey Mereside V
illage Hall

Ramsey 
Mereside

PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 32,008

Recreation Ground 
Ramsey Road

Ramsey Forty 
Foot

PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 8,374

Spinning Infant School Ramsey CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 2,187

St Marys Church Ramsey St 
Marys

CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 5,617

St Thomas A Becket 
Church

Ramsey CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 5,697

Stocking Fen Road 
Allotments

Ramsey PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 14,609

Stocking Fen Road 
Allotments

Ramsey PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 13,917

The Malting Ramsey UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,829

Wood Lane Cemetery Ramsey PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 47,115

TOTAL PROVISION 769,656

Sawtry All Saints Church Sawtry CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 6,715

Archer’s Wood Coppingford OTHER Natural Open 
Space

Local 185,923

Aversley Wood Sawtry OTHER Natural Open 
Space

Local 632,629

Green End Road Sawtry PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 329

81



61

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Sawtry
(continued)

Green End Road Play 
Area

Sawtry PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 917

Monks Wood & The 
Odd Quarter

Sawtry UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 139,283

Recreation Ground St 
Judiths Lane

Sawtry PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 45,140

Sawtry and District 
Bowls Club

Sawtry PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 2,245

Sawtry Community 
College

Sawtry CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 35,116

Sawtry infants and 
Junior School

Sawtry CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 16,477

Sawtry Leisure Centre Sawtry HDC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 1,762

Sawtry Sports Club Sawtry PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 62,817

St Judiths Lane 
Allotments

Sawtry PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 7,597

Monks Wood & The 
Odd Quarter

Sawtry UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 1,558,872

TOTAL PROVISION 2,695,822

Sibson cum 
Stibbington

Chapel Court 
Allotments

Wansford PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 6,857

Stibbington Pits Stibbington UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 304,042

TOTAL PROVISION 310,899

Somersham Chapel Field Lane Al-
lotments

Somersham PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 170,011

Norwood Playing Field Somersham PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 23,858

Somersham Millenium 
Field

Somersham PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 47,244

Somersham Primary 
School

Somersham CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Neighbourhood 8,761

Somersham Town 
Bowls

Somersham PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 2,422

Somersham Town 
Football Club

Somersham PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 17,432

82



62

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Somersham
(continued)

St Ives - March Disused 
Railway (Somersham)

Somersham UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 28,782

St Ives - March Disused 
Railway (Somersham)

Somersham UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 22,020

St John the Baptist Somersham CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 7,955

TOTAL PROVISION 328,485

Southoe & 
Midloe

Paxton Lakes Sailing 
Club

Little Paxton LAFARGE Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 882,979

Paxton Pits Little Paxton UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 913,629

Southoe Football Pitch Southoe PAR Amenity Green-
space

Neighbourhood 19,568

St Leonards Church Southoe CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,719

TOTAL PROVISION 1,820,895

Spaldwick Fuller Close Spaldwick PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,430

Spaldwick Primary 
School

Spaldwick CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 14,699

St James Church Spaldwick CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,875

TOTAL PROVISION 21,003

St Ives Alwyn Close St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,173

Ansley Way St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,308

Broad Leas Cemetery St Ives PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 7,124

Burstellars St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 10,223

Burstellars St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,564

Canberra Drive St Ives HDC Green Corridors Local 14,447

Chestnut Road St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 4,293

East"eld School St Ives CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 7,530

83



63

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

St Ives
(continued)

Edinburgh Drive St Ives HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 7,314

Heddon Way St Ives HDC Green Corridors Local 10,830

Hill Rise Allotments St Ives PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 54,839

Hill Rise Park St Ives HDC Parks & Gardens Destination 70,549

Holt Island St Ives HDC Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 19,214

Hunts Sailing Club St Ives PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 245,098

Land North of Hill Rise St Ives HDC Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 80,112

Lavender Way St Ives HDC/UNK Green Corridors Local 6,683

London Road St Ives HDC Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 47,027

Market Square St Ives CCC Civic Spaces Local 1,085

Nursery Gardens St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,477

Old Ramsey Road 
Cemetery

St Ives PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 12,514

One Leisure St Ives 
(outdoor)

St Ives HDC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Destination 156,967

Playing Field Little 
How

St Ives UNK Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 6,090

Ramsey Road St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,273

Rookery Close St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 6,025

Skelton Place St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,854

Slepe Playing Field St Ives PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 13,356

St Audrey Lane St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,850

St Ives Bowls Club St Ives PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 2,349

St Ives Parish Church St Ives CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,875

84



64

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

St Ives
(continued)

St Ives Rugby Club St Ives UNK Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 43,938

St Ives Town FC St Ives PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 13,843

St Ivo School St Ives CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 28,761

St Ivo School St Ives CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 3,500

Stirling Road St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 19,236

Swan Close St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,382

Tamar Close St Ives HDC Green Corridors Local 2,552

Tenterleas Tennis Club St Ives PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 1,311

The Crescent St Ives HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 2,991

Thorndown County 
Infant School

St Ives CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 12,134

Warners Park St Ives PAR Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 23,659

Wellington Avenue St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,316

West"eld School St Ives CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 20,723

Westwood Road St Ives HDC Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 17,162

Westwood Road Cem-
etery

St Ives PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,104

Wheat"elds School St Ives CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 15,955

Woodside Way St Ives HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,058

TOTAL PROVISION 1,029,666

St Neots Axis Way St Neots HDC/UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,153

Barford Road LAP St Neots DEV Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 133

85



65

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

St Neots
(continued)

Barford Road Pocket 
Park

St Neots HDC Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 187,879

Baron Court St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 4,002

Beatty Road St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 8,816

Brickhills open space St Neots PAR Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 19,558

Brown Square St Neots PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 6,037

Bushmead Primary 
School

St Neots CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 14,121

Cambridge Street St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,633

Cawdor Place St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,367

Cemetery Road 
Allotments

St Neots PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 7,499

Cemetery Road 
Cemetery

St Neots PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 24,468

Coneygeare Park St Neots HDC Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 14,381

Crosshall Infants and 
Juniors

St Neots CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 16,110

Duck Lane St Neots PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,316

Duloe Brook St Neots HDC Green Corridors Local 4,878

Eaton Ford open space St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 24,744

Eaton Socon Bowling 
Club

St Neots HDC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 2,078

Eaton Socon Cricket 
Club

St Neots UNK Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 14,563

Eaton Socon Football 
Club

St Neots HDC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 7,597

Eaton Socon open 
space

St Neots HDC Green Corridors Local 16,797

Eaton Socon open 
space

St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 24,294

Eynesbury Bowls Club St Neots HDC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 1,598

86



66

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

St Neots
(continued)

Eynesbury C of E 
School

St Neots CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Neighbourhood 4,568

Eynesbury Rovers 
Football Club

St Neots PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 16,738

Gainsborough Avenue St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,079

Hardwick Road St Neots PRV Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 30,156

Hardwick Road St Neots DEV Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 261,466

Hardwick Road St Neots HDC Natural Open 
Space

Local 2,919

Hardwick Road 
Allotments

St Neots PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 11,734

Hawkesdon Road St Neots UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,314

Hawkesford Way St Neots PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 225

Hawkesford Way POS St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 7,844

Henbrook Linear Park St Neots HDC Parks & Gardens Neighbourhood 39,702

Inkerman Rise St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,738

Kings Road open 
space

St Neots PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,501

Kipling/Hogarth St Neots UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,601

Lammas Meadows St Neots HDC Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 162,414

Lammas Meadows St Neots HDC Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 123,180

Linton Close play area St Neots DEV Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 451

Little End Road 
Cemetery

St Neots PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 8,160

Longfellow/Constable St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,987

Longsands College St Neots CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 118,052

87



67

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

St Neots
(continued)

Market Square St Neots CCC Civic Spaces Local 857

Maule Close LAP St Neots HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 188

Middle"eld Primary 
School

St Neots CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 11,989

Milk Field St Neots UNK Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 12,926

Mill Hill Road open 
space

St Neots HDC/UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 9,009

Mill Lane Allotments St Neots PRV Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 42,874

Monarch Road open 
space

St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 24,798

Moores Walk St Neots CCC Civic Spaces Local 297

Musgrave Way St Neots PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 10,730

Navigation Wharf St Neots HDC Green Corridors Local 3,997

One Leisure St Neots St Neots CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Destination 29,333

Parklands open space St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 12,045

Prince Close St Neots UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 8,994

Priory Junior School St Neots CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 17,629

Priory Park St Neots HDC Parks & Gardens Destination 327,263

Recreation Ground 
Ackerman Street

St Neots PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 11,586

Regatta Meadows St Neots HDC Parks & Gardens Destination 75,169

River Road Allotments St Neots PRV Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 4,452

Riverside Park St Neots HDC Parks & Gardens Destination 166,548

Riversmead St Neots PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 9,112

Romney/Lawrence St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,597

88



68

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

St Neots
(continued)

Samuel Pepys School St Neots CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 3,222

School Lane 
Eynesbury

St Neots HDC Green Corridors Local 3,949

Shady Walk East Street 
Open Space

St Neots PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 4,529

Sidney Banks Memo-
rial Field

St Neots PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 23,464

St Anselm Place St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,168

St Marys C of E Primary 
School

St Neots CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 7,304

St Marys Church St Neots CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,443

St Marys Church St Neots CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 8,629

St Neots Common St Neots UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 334,029

St Neots Community 
College

St Neots CCC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 67,156

St Neots Rugby Club St Neots FREEMEN Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 102,771

St Neots Tennis & 
Bowling Club

St Neots PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 5,252

St Neots Town Football 
Club

St Neots HDC Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 17,426

Sudbury Meadows St Neots HDC Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 7,466

Swift Close St Neots HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 2,989

The Bargroves St Neots CCC Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 5,684

The Broad Walk St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,666

Viceroy/Viscount St Neots HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,630

Weston Court St Neots UNK Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 796

89



69

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

St Neots
(continued)

Whitehall Walk St Neots UNK Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,125

Winhills Primary 
School

St Neots CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 19,515

St Neots Golf Club St Neots PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Destination 440,347

TOTAL PROVISION 3,072,804

Stilton Church Street 
Cemetery

Stilton PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,208

St Marys Church Stilton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,778

Stilton C of E Primary 
School

Stilton CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 1,513

Stilton Skate Park and 
Football Pitch

Stilton UNK Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 17,604

Walnut Way Stilton PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 7,452

Stilton Oaks Golf Club Stilton PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 437,682

TOTAL PROVISION 471,237

Stow Longa Church Walk Stow Longa HDC Amenity Green-
space

Local 2,819

St Botolphs Church Stow Longa CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,110

TOTAL PROVISION 5,929

The 
Stukeleys

Brampton Racecourse Brampton UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 210,730

Chestnut Grove Great 
Stukeley

HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,731

Great Stukeley Playing 
Field

Great 
Stukeley

PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 14,944

RAF Alconbury Alconbury PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 33,026

RAF Athletices Track Alconbury 
RAF

PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 16,667

Spruce Drive Play-
ground

Alconbury PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 3,017

St Bartholomews Great 
Stukeley

CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,437

90



70

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

The 
Stukeleys
(continued)

St Martins Church Little 
Stukeley

CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,320

Village Hall Low Road Little 
Stukeley

PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 3,216

West View Great 
Stukeley

HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,329

TOTAL PROVISION 292,417

Tilbrook All Saints Church Tilbrook CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 4,333

Mill Hall Playing Fields Tilbrook HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 4,580

TOTAL PROVISION 8,914

Upton & 
Coppingford

Church of St Margarets Upton CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,276

TOTAL PROVISION 2,276

Upwood & 
The Raveleys

Ailwine Road Upwood PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 5,651

Bentley Close Upwood PAR Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 646

Farm Close Upwood PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 4,273

Farm Close/ Barley 
Way

Upwood PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 7,254

Lady’s Wood Upwood OTHER Natural Open 
Space

Local 71,540

Meadow Lane 
Allotments

Upwood PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 4,964

Meadow Road 
Allotments

Upwood PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 7,710

Raveley Wood Raveley OTHER Natural Open Space Local 58,532

St Peters Church Upwood CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,168

Upwood Cricket 
Ground

Upwood UNK Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 12,888

Upwood Meadows Upwood UNK Natural Open Space Local 60,180

Upwood Primary 
School

Upwood CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 8,878

TOTAL PROVISION 244,684

91



71

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Warboys Adam Lyons 
Recreation Field

Warboys PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 9,365

Church Road 
Cemetery

Warboys PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 5,082

Farriers Way Open 
Space

Warboys DEV Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 4,690

Fenton Road 
Allotments

Warboys PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 6,794

Grace Baptist Church Warboys CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 5,227

Pingle Wood and 
Cutting

Warboys UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 71,831

St Mary Magdelene 
Church

Warboys CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 3,712

Warboys and Wistow 
Wood

Warboys UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 354,776

Warboys Community 
Primary School

Warboys CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 21,279

Warboys Parish Centre Warboys PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 1,297

Warboys Sports and 
Social Club

Warboys PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 35,148

Warboys White Hart 
Bowls Club

Warboys PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 1,477

TOTAL PROVISION 520,678

Waresley 
cum Tet-
worth

Church of St James the 
Great

Waresley CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,806

Waresley Cricket Club Waresley PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 14,581

Waresley and Grans-
den Nature Reserve

Waresley OTHER Natural Open 
Space

Neighbourhood 544,942

TOTAL PROVISION 562,329

Winwick All Saints Church Winwick CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,542

TOTAL PROVISION 2,542

92



72

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Wistow Oaklands Avenue Wistow HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 5,689

Warboys and Wistow 
Wood

Warboys UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 88,113

TOTAL PROVISION 93,802

Wood 
Walton

Beville Woodwalton HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,934

Five Arches Pits (East) Woodwalton OTHER Natural Open 
Space

Local 39,277

Gamsey Wood Woodwalton OTHER Natural Open 
Space

Local 41,584

Riddy Wood and Lane Woodwalton UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 91,879

The Green Woodwalton PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,142

Woodwalton Fen Woodwalton UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 2,081,258

Woodwalton Marsh Woodwalton UNK Natural Open 
Space

Local 6,702

TOTAL PROVISION 2,265,777

Yaxley Allard Close Yaxley PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 14,548

Allard Close Yaxley HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 2,164

Broadway Bowls Club Yaxley PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 3,666

Church Street Cem-
etery

Yaxley PAR Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 16,874

Da*odil Court Yaxley DEV Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 843

Ferndale - Queens Park 
Sports Pavilion

Yaxley PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 45,279

Ferndale Northern 
Bu*er

Yaxley DEV Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 8,901

Four"elds Primary 
School

Yaxley CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 11,818

93



73

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Yaxley
(continued)

Foxglove Close Yaxley DEV Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 3,747

Great Drove 
Allotments

Yaxley PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 8,189

High"eld Walk Yaxley PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,506

Leading Drove 
Allotments

Yaxley PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Local 8,722

Mere Drove 
Allotments

Yaxley PAR Allotments & 
Community 
Gardens

Neighbourhood 10,047

Mountbatten Avenue Yaxley PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 4,828

Queen Street Yaxley HDC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 2,653

Rose Court Yaxley DEV Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 124

Shackleton Way Yaxley DEV Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 3,907

Speechley Road Yaxley HDC Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,958

St Peters Church Yaxley CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,802

Village Green Yaxley DEV Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 7,746

William De Yaxley C of 
E Junior School

Yaxley CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 11,747

Yaxley Football Club Yaxley PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 11,757

Yaxley Infants School Yaxley CCC Provision for 
Children & Young 
People

Local 4,631

Yaxley Recreation 
Ground

Yaxley PAR Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Neighbourhood 48,583

TOTAL PROVISION 239,040

94



74

Parish Site Name Town Ownership Type Local 
Designation

Area (m2)

Yelling Church of the Holy 
Cross

Yelling CHURCH Cemeteries and 
churchyards

Local 2,921

High Street Yelling PAR Amenity 
Greenspace

Local 2,397

High Street (cricket 
out"eld)

Yelling PRV Amenity 
Greenspace

Neighbourhood 21,349

Yelling Cricket Ground Yelling PRV Outdoor Sports 
Facilities

Local 8,474

TOTAL PROVISION 35,141

 

Ownership Key:

CCC  Cambridgeshire County Council

CHURCH Church

DEV  Developer

FREEMEN Freemen

HDC  Huntingdonshire District Council

HDC (part) Part owned by HDC

LAFARGE LAFARGE

PAR  Local Parish Council

PRV  Private

UNK  Unknown 

UNK/HDC Part owned by HDC  

95



75

FACTOR A: Local Designation

Criteria for this factor are:

Matrix Score of 4: Regional Sites - These particular sites are typically larger than 60 hectares in 
size and are in many cases major visitor attractions, containing facilities and experiences enabling 
families to enjoy whole days out.  Their high matrix score reflects their importance to the area. It 
may be that there are none within the borough, but their significance should not be discounted  
given the need for people in the borough to have access to such areas, or the long-term 
desirability of achieving access to such a site within the borough itself. Travel to them is typically 
accepted as being by car/ public transport and as such the catchments are very large 

Matrix Score of 3: Destination - These particular sites would typically cover an area of between 
10 and 60 hectares and contain a range of facilities and experiences for all members of the public. 
These can be classed as the borough’s main parks / countryside parks and would allow the visitor 
to spend several hours enjoying the open space environment.  

Matrix Score of 2: Neighbourhood - These sites are typically between 1 and 10 hectares and 
include established areas of public open space, including recreation grounds.  Whilst the main 
mode of travel to the site will be on foot, users may travel from beyond the immediate catchment, 
necessitating the use of cars or public transport. 

Matrix Score of 1: Local - These sites are typically incidental areas of open space, and in many 
cases are the only useable piece of public open space in their locality.  They are important in 
providing linkages to the wider green infrastructure, and have a very small catchment area.  
Their low matrix score reflects the fact their significance relates to a very small proportion of the 
Borough’s population.

FACTOR B: Existing Quality

Criteria for this factor are:

Matrix Score of 4: Quality score of 3 based on PPG 17 assessment scores.

Matrix Score of 3: Quality score of 2 based on PPG 17 assessment scores.

Matrix Score of 2: Quality score of 1 based on PPG 17 assessment scores.

Matrix Score of  1: Sites that do not currently have a quality audit score

Appendix 4: Prioritisation Matrix

96



76

FACTOR C: Community Involvement

Criteria for this factor are:

Matrix Score of 4:   Friends of Group or equivalent community involvement actively involved in 
the management and development of the site.

Matrix Score of 3:  Occasional community involvement at site, including community events and / 
or similar activities.

Matrix Score of 2: No current community activity but scope for future community involvement at 
the site.

Matrix Score of 1: No current community involvement in the management and development of 
the site.  Unlikely to be any involvement in the future.

FACTOR D: Sustainability

Criteria for this factor are:

Matrix Score of 4: Site has an environmental policy or charter in place, and site management is 
based on best practice and current knowledge, addressing issues such as recycling of waste plant 
material, energy use, horticultural peat use, adaptation to climate change etc.

Matrix Score of 3:  Site adopts some but not all of the sustainability recommendations 
highlighted in Green Flag manual.  Environmental policy or charter in place but scope for 
additional improvements.

Matrix Score of 2: Some sustainability issues addressed but no environmental policy or charter in 
place.

Matrix Score of 1:  No clear maintenance plan in place, nor is there likely to be in the near future.

97



77

FACTOR E: Site Usage

Criteria for this factor are:

Matrix Score of 4: Site is well used with a variety of leisure and recreation opportunities available.

Matrix Score of 3:  Site is well used but has limited opportunities for leisure and recreation.

Matrix Score of 2: Site is poorly used despite the fact that it offers a range of leisure and 
recreation opportunities.

Matrix Score of 1:  Site is poorly used with limited leisure and recreation opportunities available.

FACTOR F : Potential Improvements

In addition to the current state of play at each site, it is also important to identify whether there 
are any planned improvements, or scope for improvements to any of the borough’s open spaces.

Matrix Score of 4: Site has major improvements planned and this is detailed within capital 
programme or equivalent documents.

Matrix Score of 3:  Site has minor improvements planned and this is stated within current 
documentation.

Matrix Score of 2: No improvements detailed within documentation, but significant aspects of 
the site require improving.

Matrix Score of 1:  No improvements detailed within documentation, and only minor aspects of 
the site need improving.

98



78

Site Name FACTOR
A. Local 
Designation

B. Existing 
Quality

C. Community 
Involvement

D. Sustainability E. Site 
Usage

F. Potential 
Improvements

Matrix Score

Hinchingbrooke 
Country Park

3 3 4 4 4 4 22

Paxton Pits 3 3 4 4 4 4 22

Grafham Water 3 4 3 4 4 4 22

Priory Park 3 4 3 4 4 3 21

Riverside Park 
(Huntingdon)

3 4 2 3 4 3 19

Hill Rise Park 3 4 2 3 4 3 19

Riverside Park - 
Hunters Down

3 4 2 3 4 3 19

Godmanchester 
Town Park

3 4 2 3 4 2* 18

One Leisure St Ives 
(outdoor)

3 4 1 2* 4 4 18

Regatta Meadows 3 3 2 3 4 3 18

Riverside Park
(St Neots)

3 3 2 3 4 3 18

Hinchingbrooke 
School

3 4 3 2* 4 2* 18

Needingworth 
Quarry

4 1 3 3 3 3 17

Kimbolton School 3 4 1 2* 4 2* 16

Lakeside Lodge 
Golf Centre

3 4 1 2* 4 2* 16

Church Lane 3 4 2 3 3 1 16

One Leisure St 
Neots

3 4 1 1 4 2* 15

St Neots Golf Club 3 4 1 2* 3 2* 15

Brampton Park Golf 
Club

3 4 1 2* 3 2* 15

St Ives Golf Club 3 4 1 2* 3 2* 15

Abbotsley Hotel, 
Golf and Country 
Club

3 4 1 2* 3 2* 15

Elton Furze Golf 
Club

3 2 1 2* 3 2* 13

* Assumed mark of 2 given lack of available information relating to this factor

Appendix 5: Detailed Priority Matrix Scores for 
the Destination Sites

99



100

This page is intentionally left blank



 
SECTION 106 ADVISORY GROUP  

10th January 2011 
 
 

MONITORING OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS 
(PLANNING OBLIGATIONS) 

(Report by Head of People, Performance and Partnerships) 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Advisory Group with 

information on the receipt and expenditure of S106 monies. The report 
also provides an overview of future benefits from developments that 
have commenced but where trigger points for collection of the monies 
have yet to be reached, and future potential benefits from 
developments which have not yet commenced.  The latter two sections 
allow for forward planning and the integration of potential benefits with 
other service plans. 

 
1.2 As requested by the Group, a copy of this report has been made 

available to all Members of the Council. 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 The report has three appendices: Appendix A: Section 106 Account 

(covering the period 22nd September 2010 to 13th December 2010), 
Appendix B: Future benefits by location (development commenced, but 
not yet sufficiently advanced to trigger payments) and Appendix C: 
Future potential benefits by location (development not commenced). 

 
2.2 Appendix A comprises 5 tables: 
 

• Table 1. Allocated schemes 
 
These are developments where monies have been received and there is 
a specific scheme identified.   

 
• Table 2. Maintenance 

 
These are developments where monies have been received and are ring-
fenced for future maintenance of play equipment and open space.  
Monies will be spent in accordance with approved maintenance 
schedules.   

 
• Table 3. Pending allocation 

 
These are developments where monies have been received for a general 
purpose but where a specific scheme has yet to be identified. 

 
• Table 4. Money spent in the last quarter 

  
 This table shows the actual spend or transfer of monies in the last 

quarter.   
 
 

Agenda Item 6

101



• Table 5.  Non-monetary benefits received  
 
This details non-cash benefits recorded in the last quarter. 
 

 
3.   DEFERRAL OF PAYMENTS 

 
The following action has been taken on applications for deferrals (the 
Council’s preferred option in the current economic climate) reported on 
11th October 2010.   
 
3.1. ID256: A payment plan has been agreed between the developer and 
Huntingdonshire District Council.  A sum of 13,905.10 has been received 
to date.   

 
4. RECOMMENDATION 
 
4.1.   The Group is invited to review and comment on the contents of the     
 monitoring report. 
 

Note: Members of the Group are invited to submit any detailed 
requests for further information on schemes prior to the meeting, so 
that a response can be prepared. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Chris Meadowcroft, Economic Development and Policy 
Officer 
    � (01480) 388364 
    Chris.Meadowcroft@huntsdc.gov.uk 

102



 - 1 - 

Appendix A - Section 106 Account 
 
This schedule details S106/Grampian Condition monies that are held in the S106 account until they are needed for maintenance, or transferred 
to relevant service budgets (or to Town and Parish Councils) when schemes are ready to proceed.  Where appropriate, the schedule also 
includes an expiry date by which time the money must be spent. It divides the account into five sections:  
 

Table 1.  Allocated schemes: for which money has been received and is destined to be spent on a specific scheme. 
 
Table 2. Maintenance: money received for future maintenance, usually relating to play equipment or open space. The money will be held 
in this account until it is drawn down to pay for the maintenance (proportionally over 15 years).   
 
Table 3. Pending allocation: money received for a purpose, but where a specific scheme has yet to be identified. 
 
Table 4.  Money spent in the last quarter: money previously held in the account which has been spent or transferred in the last quarter. 
 
Table 5.  Non-monetary benefits recorded as received in the last quarter.   
 

 
Summary 
  This quarter Previous quarter 
Allocated schemes (Table 1) £582,437.24 £780,176.94 
Maintenance (Table 2) £14,533.76 £14,533.76 
Pending allocation (Table 3) £257,650.00 £72,893.03 

TOTAL £854,621.00 £867,603.73 
       
  

Spent since the last quarter 
(Table 4)  £217,655 £321,395.80 

 
(Note: This schedule was created 13th of December 2010) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

103



 - 2 - 

Table 1: Allocated schemes 
ID Date 

Received Amount Location What the money will be 
spent on Status Service 

responsible 
Expiry Date 
(if any) 

199:   
Roman Way, 

Godmanchester, 
Huntingdon 

27/11/2003 
 
 

£14,483.24 
Godmanchester 

Off-site Facilities 
Contribution: St. Judith’s 
Field Skateboard Ramp 

New update:  
In November 2010 discussions 
took place between HDC and the 

relevant Town Councillors 
regarding MUGA and skate 
projects.  Spending proposals 

expected early 2011 

Operations No expiry 
clause 

NEW: 223:  
Riverside Mill, 
Mill Lane, Little 
Paxton, St 
Neots 

12/10/2005 £62,135.00 Little Paxton, St 
Neots  

Primary Care Trust 
Contribution 

New update: 
HDC acted as an intermediary for 
the Primary Care Trust, ensuring 

payment was made by the 
developer.  An invoice for the sum 
to be transferred to the Primary 

Care Trust, expected late 
December 2010.   

Policy (on the 
behalf of the 
Primary Care 

Trust) 
No expiry 
clause 

224: 
Land at 48 & 50, 
Newtown Road, 

Ramsey 
07/10/2005 £17,152.56 Ramsey 

Provision of open space, 
recreation and leisure 
facilities off site within 

Ramsey 

New update:  
Discussions with Ramsey Town 

Council clerk took place in 
November 2010.  Although this 
funding was earmarked for a new 
skate park, no suitable land has 
been identified and so the Town 
Council and youth workers are 
considering alternative schemes. 

Operations No expiry 
clause 

236: 
Crosshall 
Manor, 516 
Great North 
Road, Eaton 
Ford, St Neots 

16/01/2009 £9,813.41 St Neots Off site facilities No update Operations No expiry 
clause 

238:  
Land opposite, 
15 Church View 

St Neots 
02/02/2010 £28,667.94 St Neots Off-site Facilities 

Contribution 
Operations are intending to use 

the money allocated to help fund a 
scheme in Eaton Ford 

Operations No expiry 
clause 

NEW: 243: 26/06/2006 £5,430.00 Ramsey St Bus Shelter Contribution. New update: CCC No expiry 

104



 - 3 - 

Land adj. to, 
117A Herne 

Road, Ramsey 
St. Mary's, 
Huntingdon 

 

Mary’s Works proposed 2011/12 subject 
to HDC capital funding availability 

Transportatio
n/ HDC 

Transportatio
n 

clause 

244:  
Cromwell 
Gardens, 

London Road, 
Godmanchester, 
Huntingdon 

19/04/2005 £29,423.83 Godmanchester Skate Park contribution 

New update:  
In November 2010 discussions 
took place between HDC and the 

relevant Town Councillors 
regarding MUGA and skate 

projects took place.  Spending 
proposals expected early 2011 

Operations No expiry 
clause 

266: 
Former Model 
Laundry Site, 
Ouse Walk, 
Huntingdon 

03/04/2008 £28,970.76 Huntingdon Public Open Space 
contribution 

New update:  
 

Scheme for MUGA under 
development with Op’s and 

Community Safety 

 
Operations 02/04/2018 

269: 
2 and 2A, 

Sapley Road, 
Hartford, 

Huntingdon 
13/07/2009 £15,105 Huntingdon 

Open Space contribution: 
improvements to Birds 

Estate 

New Update:   
Operations have developed a play 
equipment scheme for the Birds 

Estate. 
£7000 transferred 

Operations No expiry 
clause 

280: 
HMP Littlehey, 

Perry, 
Huntingdon 

16/03/2009 £251,012.50 Perry Cycle path 
New Update:  

The scheme has been approved 
and due for implementation Spring 

2011 onwards. 
HDC 

Transport 15/03/2013 

 
281:  

Great North 
Road, Little 
Paxton, St 
Neots 

 

31/03/2009 £60,243 Little Paxton Environmental conservation 
contribution: Paxton Pits 

New Update:  
Money ring fenced for staffing at 
Paxton Pits Nature reserve – 

money will be allocated after the 
Countryside Services review. 

Countryside 
Services 

No expiry 
clause 

281:  
Great North 
Road, Little 
Paxton, St 

31/03/2009 £60,000 Little Paxton Environmental conservation 
contribution: Paxton Pits 

New Update:  
Money ring fenced for staffing at 
Paxton Pits Nature reserve – 

money will be allocated after the 
Countryside 
Services 

No expiry 
clause 

105



 - 4 - 

Neots 
 

Countryside Services review. 
 

Total  £582,437.24      
        

Last quarter  £780,176.94      
        
 
 
Table 2: Maintenance 
 
ID Date Received 

Amount 
£ Location What the money has to be spent on 

Service 
responsible 

268: 
Allotments, Constable 

Leys, Kimbolton, 
Huntingdon 13/07/2009 £12,830.32 Kimbolton & Stonely 

Open Space Maintenance  
 

Update:  
Parish Council are considering a possible 
skate park scheme, this would require 

additional funding - consultation underway. Operations 
289:  

Fisher Way, 
Godmanchester 03/03/2010 £1,703.44 Godmanchester Land maintenance contribution Operations 

Total  
 

£14,533.76    
Last quarter  £14,533.76    

 
 
Table 3: Pending allocation   
 
ID Date 

Received 
Amount 

£ Location What the money can be spent on Service 
responsible 

Expiry 
Date (if 
any) 

NEW: 200: 
Land Rear Of & 

Including 6, Rectory 
Road, Bluntisham, 

Huntingdon 
20/08/2007 £14,230.00 Bluntisham 

Off site facilities contribution 
 

Update: Bluntisham Parish Council 
spending proposals to be submitted Dec 

2010. 
Operations No expiry 

clause 

215: 23/10/2006 £11,966.74 Huntingdon/Godmanchester Off-site Facilities Contribution: for the Operations 22/10/2013 

106



 - 5 - 

1-3 Hartford Road, 
Broadway, 
Huntingdon 

provision of public open space, recreation 
and leisure facilities. 

 
Update: Spending proposals expected 

early January 2011. 

229: 
Land at Bushmead 
Junior School, 

Bushmead Road, 
Eaton Socon, St 

Neots 28/01/08 £9,268.11 St Neots 

Leisure and Recreation facilities 
compensation sum 

 
Update: Consultation undertaken with St 
Neots Town council in November 2010 

regarding Dukes Road play area 
improvements.  Spending plan expected to 

be submitted Dec 2010. Operations 27/01/2013 
229: 

Land at Bushmead 
Junior School, 

Bushmead Road, 
Eaton Socon, St 

Neots 28/01/08 £12,172 St Neots 

Leisure and Recreation facilities. 
 

Update: Consultation undertaken with St 
Neots Town council in November 2010 

regarding Dukes Road play area 
improvements.  Spending plan expected to 

be submitted Dec 2010. Operations 27/01/2013 
NEW: 237: 

Land north of, 
Cambridge Road, St 

Neots  22/03/2006 £110,000 St Neots 

Payment of MUGA Contribution 
 

Operations developing scheme, MUGA 
expected to be completed April 2011 Operations 

No expiry 
clause 

NEW: 256:  
The Elms, Thicket 
Road, Houghton, St 

Ives 06/05/2009 £13,905.10 Houghton and Wyton 
Adult Recreation Facilities Sum and plan 

for children's equipped play space Operations 
No expiry 
clause 

256:  
The Elms, Thicket 
Road, Houghton, St 

Ives 06/05/2009 £49,450 Houghton and Wyton Affordable Housing Contribution 
Affordable 
Housing 30/04/2014 

276: 
96 Needingworth 
Road, St Ives 20/01/2009 £15,028.05 St Ives 

Provision of children's casual and equipped 
play space.   

 
Update: St Ives Town Council submitting 

spending plan, expected Dec 2010 Operations 

No expiry 
clause 

NEW: 278: 10/05/2010 £21,630 Ramsey Off-site Facilities Contribution Operations No expiry 

107



 - 6 - 

3 and 5 Old Station 
Road, Ramsey 

 
Update: Ramsey Town Council 
considering spending proposals. 

 

clause 

Total  
 

£257,650.00    
 

Last quarter  £72,893.03     
 
Table 4. Money spent or transferred in the last quarter  
 

ID Date received 
Amount            

£ Location Spend type Division 

103 14/02/2008 £208,855 St Neots  
Off site facilities – Changing room 

facilities Leisure 

199 27/11/2003 £1,800 Godmanchester - Huntingdon Off site facilities contribution Operations 

269 13/07/2009 £7,000 Hartford Off site facilities contribution Operations 

 Total £217,655    

 Last quarter 
 

£321,395.80    
 
Table 5:  Non-monetary benefits recorded as received in the last quarter: 
 

ID Address Address Address Description Amount Completed 
254 Land West of Orchard House 

Houghton Road 
St Ives Transfer of affordable 

housing site 
N/A 12-2010 

108



 - 7 - 

ID Address Address Address Description Amount Completed 
244 Cromwell 

Gardens 
London Road Godmanchester Lay out of open space and 

Play Equipment and 
Structural Landscaping – 
Maintenance has begun 

27/07/10 

N/A  

 

109



110

T
his page is intentionally left blank



jçåÉó êÉÅÉáîÉÇ EråëéÉåíF

qÜáë êÉéçêí ëÜçïë ~ää çÑ íÜÉ ëNMS ãçåáÉë íÜ~í Ü~îÉ ÄÉÉå êÉÅÉáîÉÇ ~åÇ ~åÇ Ü~îÉ åçí óÉí ÄÉÉå ëéÉåí

fa a~íÉ
oÉÅÉáîÉÇ

^ÅÅçìåí _~ä~åÅÉ
E>F

içÅ~íáçå péÉåÇ qóéÉ aÉé~êíãÉåí bñéáêó a~íÉ

NMP SJ^éêJOMMS >M bóåÉëÄìêó mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ léÉê~íáçåë
NVV OTJkçîJOMMP >NOISUP dçÇã~åÅÜÉëíÉê lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë
OMM NUJpÉéJOMNM >NQIOPM _äìåíáëÜ~ã lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë
ONR OPJlÅíJOMMS >NNIVST eìåíáåÖÇçå lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë OOLNMLOMNP
OOQ NUJlÅíJOMMT >NTINRP o~ãëÉó lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë
OOV OUJg~åJOMMU >NOINTO pí kÉçíë lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë OTLNLOMNP

OUJg~åJOMMU >VIOSU pí kÉçíë oÉÅêÉ~íáçå c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë OTLNLOMNP
OPQ OUJcÉÄJOMNM >M eìåíáåÖÇçå bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå bÇìÅ~íáçå
OPS NSJg~åJOMMV >VIUNP pí kÉçíë lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë
OPT NUJpÉéJOMNM >NNMIMMM pí kÉçíë mä~ó ^êÉ~ `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë
OPU OJcÉÄJOMNM >OUISSU pí kÉçíë lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë
OQP NVJkçîJOMNM >RIQPM o~ãëÉó qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå ```

qê~åëéçêí~íáçå
OQQ NNJ^ìÖJOMMU >OVIQOQ dçÇã~åÅÜÉëíÉê lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë
ORS SJj~óJOMMV >QVIQRM eçìÖÜíçå C

tóíçå
^ÑÑçêÇ~ÄäÉ eçìëáåÖ `çåíêáÄìíáçå eçìëáåÖ PMLQLOMNQ

NRJj~óJOMNM >NPIVMR eçìÖÜíçå C
tóíçå

oÉÅêÉ~íáçå c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë

PJcÉÄJOMNM eçìÖÜíçå C
tóíçå

^ÑÑçêÇ~ÄäÉ eçìëáåÖ `çåíêáÄìíáçå eçìëáåÖ

OSS PJ^éêJOMMU >OUIVTN eìåíáåÖÇçå léÉå pé~ÅÉ `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë OLQLOMNU
OSU NPJgìäJOMMV >NOIUPM háãÄçäíçå C

píçåÉäó
léÉå pé~ÅÉ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ léÉê~íáçåë

OSV NPJgìäJOMMV >NRINMR eìåíáåÖÇçå léÉå pé~ÅÉ `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë
OTS OMJg~åJOMMV >NRIMOU pí fîÉë mä~ó ^êÉ~ `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë
OTU NMJj~óJOMNM >ONISPM o~ãëÉó lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå léÉê~íáçåë
OUM NSJj~êJOMMV >ORNIMNP mÉêêó `óÅäÉ m~íÜë qê~åëéçêí NRLPLOMNP
OUN PNJj~êJOMMV >SMIOQP iáííäÉ m~ñíçå båîáêçåãÉåí~ä ÅçåëÉêî~íáçå

ÅçåíêáÄìíáçå
båîáêçåãÉåí

NUJ^ìÖJOMNM >SMIMMM iáííäÉ m~ñíçå båîáêçåãÉåí~ä ÅçåëÉêî~íáçå
ÅçåíêáÄìíáçå

båîáêçåãÉåí

dê~åÇ qçí~ä >TUUIVUO

111



112

T
his page is intentionally left blank



^ééÉåÇáñ _ J cìíìêÉ pNMS _ÉåÉÑáíë iáëíÉÇ Äó içÅ~íáçå J ÇÉîÉäçéãÉåíë ÅçããÉåÅÉÇ
qÜáë êÉéçêí ëÜçïë pÉÅíáçå NMS Åä~ìëÉë ïáíÜ ~íí~ÅÜÉÇ ãçåáÉë Ñêçã ÇÉîÉäçéãÉåíë íÜ~í Ü~îÉ ÅçããÉåÅÉÇ Äìí ïÜÉêÉ íêáÖÖÉê éçáåíë Ñçê íÜÉ ÅçääÉÅíáçå

çÑ íÜÉ ãçåáÉë Ü~îÉ åçí óÉí ÄÉÉå êÉ~ÅÜÉÇK

péÉåÇ ^êÉ~ fa ^ÇÇêÉëë EiáåÉ OF péÉåÇ qóéÉ `ä~ìëÉ ^ãçìåí
E>F

péÉåÇáåÖ aÉé~êíãÉåí
OVT eìåíáåÖÇçå píêÉÉí >NUIMMM ```

léÉå pé~ÅÉ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NQIQPT léÉê~íáçåë
mä~ó bèìáéãÉåí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OPIMSM léÉê~íáçåë
qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NUIMMM ```

_ê~ãéíçå OVU eáÖÜ píêÉÉí lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OPIORM léÉê~íáçåë
_ìêó UO _ìêó oç~Ç léÉå pé~ÅÉ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >UIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
bóåÉëÄìêó NMP _~êÑçêÇ oç~Ç låJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NMIMMM léÉê~íáçåë

mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >OQIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
cÉåëí~åíçå NTP eÉ~Çä~åÇë léÉå pé~ÅÉ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >RISTV léÉê~íáçåë
dçÇã~åÅÜÉëíÉê OQQ içåÇçå oç~Ç mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >ORIMMM léÉê~íáçåë

OSN táÖãçêÉ c~êã páäîÉê píêÉÉí låJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >PNINOR léÉê~íáçåë
léÉå pé~ÅÉ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >TRIRMM léÉê~íáçåë
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >OMIMMM léÉê~íáçåë

eçìÖÜíçå C
tóíçå

ORS qÜáÅâÉí oç~Ç ^ÑÑçêÇ~ÄäÉ eçìëáåÖ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >QUIMMM eçìëáåÖ

eìåíáåÖÇçå TR háåÖë oáéíçå oç~Ç låJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >NVIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
léÉå pé~ÅÉ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >SINOM léÉê~íáçåë

NUS eáåÅÜáåÖÄêççâÉ m~êâ oç~Ç låJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >OTIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
léÉå pé~ÅÉ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >PTIMMM léÉê~íáçåë

ONU m~êâï~ó léÉå pé~ÅÉ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >PSIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >VIRMM léÉê~íáçåë

OOM rääëï~íÉê ~åÇ e~åÇëÅêçÑí i~åÉ lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >RIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
mä~ó ^êÉ~ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >PSIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >VIRMM léÉê~íáçåë

OPM qÜ~ãÉë oç~Ç lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >RVISQM léÉê~íáçåë
léÉå pé~ÅÉ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >QMINTM léÉê~íáçåë
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >SINUM léÉê~íáçåë

OPP _ìë aÉéçí páíÉ NR píìâÉäÉó oÇ lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OVIUSO léÉê~íáçåë
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >SIRVM léÉê~íáçåë

OPQ jççêÜçìëÉ aêáîÉ bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >RTISMM bÇìÅ~íáçå
OUO qÉãéäÉ `äçëÉ bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >UIQMM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå

lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >UST léÉê~íáçåë
låJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NRIQRM léÉê~íáçåë

OUP _êççâëáÇÉ bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OSIMQM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >SIPSR léÉê~íáçåë
mä~ó bèìáéãÉåí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >ORIVNQ léÉê~íáçåë

kçíÉW qÜÉ ã~àçêáíó çÑ íê~åëéçêí~íáçå ÅçåíêáÄìíáçåë ~êÉ é~áÇ íç `~ãÄêáÇÖÉëÜáêÉ `çìåíó `çìåÅáä ~åÇ ~êÉ ìëÉÇ áå é~êíåÉêëÜáé ïáíÜ íÜÉ ÇáëíêáÅí ÅçìåÅáäK

113



^ééÉåÇáñ _ J cìíìêÉ pNMS _ÉåÉÑáíë iáëíÉÇ Äó içÅ~íáçå J ÇÉîÉäçéãÉåíë ÅçããÉåÅÉÇ
qÜáë êÉéçêí ëÜçïë pÉÅíáçå NMS Åä~ìëÉë ïáíÜ ~íí~ÅÜÉÇ ãçåáÉë Ñêçã ÇÉîÉäçéãÉåíë íÜ~í Ü~îÉ ÅçããÉåÅÉÇ Äìí ïÜÉêÉ íêáÖÖÉê éçáåíë Ñçê íÜÉ ÅçääÉÅíáçå

çÑ íÜÉ ãçåáÉë Ü~îÉ åçí óÉí ÄÉÉå êÉ~ÅÜÉÇK

péÉåÇ ^êÉ~ fa ^ÇÇêÉëë EiáåÉ OF péÉåÇ qóéÉ `ä~ìëÉ ^ãçìåí
E>F

péÉåÇáåÖ aÉé~êíãÉåí
oÉÅêÉ~íáçå c~ÅáäáíáÉë j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >OIVPT léÉê~íáçåë
qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >SQIRMM ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí

eìåíáåÖÇçåëÜáêÉ OQQ içåÇçå oç~Ç qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >SOIMMM ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí~íáçå
OUO qÉãéäÉ `äçëÉ mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >SINUM léÉê~íáçåë

iáííäÉ m~ñíçå OOP jáää i~åÉ bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >QMMIMMM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå
léÉå pé~ÅÉ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >PSIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >OQIRMM léÉê~íáçåë
mêáã~êó eÉ~äíÜ `~êÉ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NPQIMMM mêáã~êó `~êÉ qêìëí
oÉÅêÉ~íáçå c~ÅáäáíáÉë j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >OIMMM léÉê~íáçåë

o~ãëÉó OQP NNT^ eÉêåÉ oç~Ç ^ÑÑçêÇ~ÄäÉ eçìëáåÖ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >TQIROM eçìëáåÖ
bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NITRM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå
oÉÅêÉ~íáçå c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NRIQRM léÉê~íáçåë

OTT pí j~êóDë oç~Ç bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >QMIMMM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå
jáëÅÉää~åÉçìë >RIMMM q_`
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >NOIMMM léÉê~íáçåë

pí fîÉë ORQ lêÅÜ~êÇ eçìëÉ eçìÖÜíçå oç~Ç lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NTPIRRR iÉáëìêÉ
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >TOIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
mêáã~êó eÉ~äíÜ `~êÉ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NVINPO m`q
qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >QOQIRPS ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí~íáçå

OSQ b~ëí píêÉÉí mä~ó bèìáéãÉåí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OOIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
pí kÉçíë OOP jáää i~åÉ qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå OKé~êí >OONIRMM ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí~íáçå

OOV _ìëÜãÉ~Ç oç~Ç ^ãÉåáíó píêáé j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >TIOMM léÉê~íáçåë
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >UIMMM léÉê~íáçåë

OPS RNS dêÉ~í kçêíÜ oç~Ç bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NOIMMM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå
lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >SIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >SIMMM ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí~íáçå

OPT `~ãÄêáÇÖÉ oç~Ç bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OIOTMIMMM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå
låJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >PNMIMMM `çããìåáíó fåáíá~íáîÉë
mä~ó ^êÉ~ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NQNIUMM léÉê~íáçåë
qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >PIQQNIMMM ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí~íáçå

OVT eìåíáåÖÇçå píêÉÉí bÇìÅ~íáçå ÅçåíêáÄìíáçå NKé~êí >NUITRM ```
bÇìÅ~íáçå ÅçåíêáÄìíáçå OKé~êí >NUITRM ```

t~êÄçóë NTQ mçéÉë i~åÉ léÉå pé~ÅÉ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >NIMQP léÉê~íáçåë
ONM çÑÑ eáÖÜ cÉå píê~áÖÜí aêçîÉ båîáêçåãÉåí~ä ÅçåëÉêî~íáçå

ÅçåíêáÄìíáçå
>NRIMMM qêìëí cìåÇ

ONT mçéä~ê c~êã léÉå pé~ÅÉ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >NIOMS léÉê~íáçåë

kçíÉW qÜÉ ã~àçêáíó çÑ íê~åëéçêí~íáçå ÅçåíêáÄìíáçåë ~êÉ é~áÇ íç `~ãÄêáÇÖÉëÜáêÉ `çìåíó `çìåÅáä ~åÇ ~êÉ ìëÉÇ áå é~êíåÉêëÜáé ïáíÜ íÜÉ ÇáëíêáÅí ÅçìåÅáäK

114



^ééÉåÇáñ _ J cìíìêÉ pNMS _ÉåÉÑáíë iáëíÉÇ Äó içÅ~íáçå J ÇÉîÉäçéãÉåíë ÅçããÉåÅÉÇ
qÜáë êÉéçêí ëÜçïë pÉÅíáçå NMS Åä~ìëÉë ïáíÜ ~íí~ÅÜÉÇ ãçåáÉë Ñêçã ÇÉîÉäçéãÉåíë íÜ~í Ü~îÉ ÅçããÉåÅÉÇ Äìí ïÜÉêÉ íêáÖÖÉê éçáåíë Ñçê íÜÉ ÅçääÉÅíáçå

çÑ íÜÉ ãçåáÉë Ü~îÉ åçí óÉí ÄÉÉå êÉ~ÅÜÉÇK

péÉåÇ ^êÉ~ fa ^ÇÇêÉëë EiáåÉ OF péÉåÇ qóéÉ `ä~ìëÉ ^ãçìåí
E>F

péÉåÇáåÖ aÉé~êíãÉåí
v~ñäÉó NUT _êç~Çï~ó léÉå pé~ÅÉ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >RQIMMM léÉê~íáçåë

ONO _êç~Çï~ó léÉå pé~ÅÉ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OOINMM léÉê~íáçåë
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >OVIMMM léÉê~íáçåë

ORO `ÜìêÅÜ píêÉÉí bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OSQIMMM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå
låJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >SVIPMM léÉê~íáçåë

v~ñäÉó ^êÉ~ OUS _êç~Çï~ó `óÅäÉ m~íÜë >QMIRMM qê~åëéçêí~íáçå
dê~åÇ qçí~ä >VIPSNIQRU

kçíÉW qÜÉ ã~àçêáíó çÑ íê~åëéçêí~íáçå ÅçåíêáÄìíáçåë ~êÉ é~áÇ íç `~ãÄêáÇÖÉëÜáêÉ `çìåíó `çìåÅáä ~åÇ ~êÉ ìëÉÇ áå é~êíåÉêëÜáé ïáíÜ íÜÉ ÇáëíêáÅí ÅçìåÅáäK

115



116

T
his page is intentionally left blank



^ééÉåÇáñ ` J cìíìêÉ mçíÉåíá~ä pNMS _ÉåÉÑáíë iáëíÉÇ Äó içÅ~íáçå J ÇÉîÉäçéãÉåíë åçí ÅçããÉåÅÉÇ
qÜáë êÉéçêí ëÜçïë pÉÅíáçå NMS Åä~ìëÉë ïáíÜ ~íí~ÅÜÉÇ ãçåáÉë Ñêçã ÇÉîÉäçéãÉåíë íÜ~í Ü~îÉ åçí óÉí ÅçããÉåÅÉÇ ïçêâK

içÅ~íáçå fa ^ÇÇêÉëë péÉåÇ qóéÉ ^ãçìåí
bñéÉÅíÉÇ E>F

pÉêîáÅÉ oÉëéçåëáÄäÉ

OVS `Ü~éÉä píêÉÉí `óÅäÉ m~íÜë >ONIMMM ```
`çäåÉ OMP b~ëí píêÉÉí bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OQIMMM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå

oÉÅêÉ~íáçå c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NPIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
eçäãÉ OVN pí dáäÉë `äçëÉ bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OMIMMM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå
eìåíáåÖÇçå ORN i~åÅ~ëíÉê eçìëÉ qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NPITRM ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí~íáçå

OSM pí mÉíÉêDë oç~Ç `óÅäÉ m~íÜë >VUIMMM ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí~íáçå
OSR _ê~ãéíçå oç~Ç qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >QMIMMM ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí~íáçå
OTV `ÜêáëíáÉ aêáîÉ mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >SIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
OUT `~äáÑçêåá~ oç~Ç `óÅäÉ m~íÜë >NNIOMM ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí~íáçå

jáëÅÉää~åÉçìë >NIMPRIQMM mçäáÅó
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >OQITOM léÉê~íáçåë

OVM háåÖë oáéíçå oç~Ç bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NMITUM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå
lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >ONIMMM léÉê~íáçåë

eìåíáåÖÇçå ^êÉ~ OVM háåÖë oáéíçå oç~Ç qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NNIMMM ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí
iáííäÉ m~ñíçå OOO _óÇ~åÇ i~åÉ C êÉ~ê çÑ m~êâ `êÉëÅÉåí bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >QIQRM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå

lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NSINMM léÉê~íáçåë
mêáã~êó eÉ~äíÜ `~êÉ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NQIMMM eìåíáåÖÇçåëÜáêÉ m`q

o~ãëÉó OOS _ìêó oç~Ç lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NPIQMM léÉê~íáçåë
qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >TIMMM ea  ̀ qê~åëéçêí~íáçå

p~ïíêó NUM dáÇÇáåÖ oç~Ç mä~ó ^êÉ~ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NSITMM léÉê~íáçåë
OUQ dáÇÇáåÖ oç~Ç `óÅäÉ m~íÜë >NMIMMM qê~åëéçêí

bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >SPQISMM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå
qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >TIRMM qê~åëéçêí
qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå NKé~êí >RMIMMM ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí
qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå OKé~êí >UIORM ``  ̀ qê~åëéçêí

pí fîÉë OPV eçìÖÜíçå dê~åÖÉ lÑÑJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >SMIMMM iÉáëìêÉ
mä~ó ^êÉ~ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >TOIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
mä~ó ^êÉ~ j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >OPIMMM léÉê~íáçåë
mêáã~êó eÉ~äíÜ `~êÉ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NUINOS eìåíáåÖÇçåëÜáêÉ m`q
qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OOPIQVM

pí kÉçíë OTM háåÖë i~åÉ bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OMIMQM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå
låJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NSIPNT léÉê~íáçåë
låJëáíÉ c~ÅáäáíáÉë j~áåíÉå~åÅÉ >SINUM léÉê~íáçåë

píáäíçå OVR OM `ÜìêÅÜ píêÉÉí bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OOIRMM bÇìÅ~íáçå
v~ñäÉó NVR _êç~Çï~ó qê~åëéçêí `çåíêáÄìíáçå >OMIMMM ea  ̀ qê~åëéçêí~íáçå

kçíÉW qÜÉ ã~àçêáíó çÑ íê~åëéçêí~íáçå ÅçåíêáÄìíáçåë ~êÉ é~áÇ íç `~ãÄêáÇÖÉëÜáêÉ `çìåíó `çìåÅáä ~åÇ ~êÉ ìëÉÇ áå é~êíåÉêëÜáé ïáíÜ íÜÉ ÇáëíêáÅí ÅçìåÅáäK N

117



^ééÉåÇáñ ` J cìíìêÉ mçíÉåíá~ä pNMS _ÉåÉÑáíë iáëíÉÇ Äó içÅ~íáçå J ÇÉîÉäçéãÉåíë åçí ÅçããÉåÅÉÇ
qÜáë êÉéçêí ëÜçïë pÉÅíáçå NMS Åä~ìëÉë ïáíÜ ~íí~ÅÜÉÇ ãçåáÉë Ñêçã ÇÉîÉäçéãÉåíë íÜ~í Ü~îÉ åçí óÉí ÅçããÉåÅÉÇ ïçêâK

içÅ~íáçå fa ^ÇÇêÉëë péÉåÇ qóéÉ ^ãçìåí
bñéÉÅíÉÇ E>F

pÉêîáÅÉ oÉëéçåëáÄäÉ

OON ïÉëí çÑ P içåÇçå oç~Ç bÇìÅ~íáçå `çåíêáÄìíáçå >NQIMMM ``  ̀ bÇìÅ~íáçå
v~ñäÉó ^êÉ~ OVS `Ü~éÉä píêÉÉí léÉå pé~ÅÉ `çåíêáÄìíáçå >UITTS léÉê~íáçåë
dê~åÇ qçí~ä >OISPSIOTV

kçíÉW qÜÉ ã~àçêáíó çÑ íê~åëéçêí~íáçå ÅçåíêáÄìíáçåë ~êÉ é~áÇ íç `~ãÄêáÇÖÉëÜáêÉ `çìåíó `çìåÅáä ~åÇ ~êÉ ìëÉÇ áå é~êíåÉêëÜáé ïáíÜ íÜÉ ÇáëíêáÅí ÅçìåÅáäK O

118



1 

Scrutiny Committee  
  
ADULTS, WELLBEING AND 
HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

30th November 2010   
  
  Action 
   

35. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   
 Members declared the following personal interests under paragraph 8 of the 

Code of Conduct: 
• Councillors Austen, Heathcock, Kenney, P Read, J West and R West as 

members of Cambridgeshire Older People’s Enterprise (COPE) 
• Councillor Austen by reason of supporting a person who received social 

care from Older People’s Services 
• Councillor Brown as an active participant in Cambridgeshire Local 

Involvement Network (LINk) 
• Councillor V McGuire by reason of working for a caring agency 
• Councillor Wilkins as an associate member of COPE. 

 

   
36. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS  
   
 The minutes of the meetings held on 28th September and 21st October 2010 

were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

   
37. CONSULTATION ‘IMPROVING OLDER PEOPLE’S MENTAL HEALTH 

SERVICES IN HUNTINGDONSHIRE AND FENLAND’: COMMITTEE 
RESPONSE 

 

   
 The Committee considered its response to the consultation by NHS 

Cambridgeshire (the Primary Care Trust, PCT) and Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust (CPFT) on proposals for older people’s 
mental health services in Huntingdonshire and Fenland.  In attendance to 
respond to members’ questions and comments on both this and the following 
agenda item were 
• from NHS Cambridgeshire  

o John Ellis, Head of Mental Health, Learning Disability and 
Substance Misuse Commissioning 

o Claire Warner, Commissioning and Service Improvement Manager, 
Mental Health, Learning Disability and Substance Misuse 

• from Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust 
o John Hawkins, General Manager, Older People's Mental Health 

(OPMH) Services  
o Annette Newton, Director of Operations. 

 

   
 Questions and concerns raised by members in the course of discussing the 

Committee’s response included 
• the need to ensure equality of access to day therapies in Huntingdon and 

Wisbech.  Officers advised that the GP clusters and the PCT as 
commissioners wanted to establish the estimated demand for therapy 
amongst the older population, to link the therapy to the demand, and to 

 

Agenda Item 8

119



2 

work out the staffing required for each component; one concern was to 
ensure equity of provision for Fenland and Huntingdonshire in relation to 
the greater range of therapies already available in the south of the county 

• basing transport costs on two visits a week was insufficient where for 
example one of a long-established couple was admitted to hospital; the 
calculation should allow for at least visits on alternate days 
Members said that they had already expressed concern about the way in 
which transport costs had been calculated, and would welcome more 
detailed costings.  They asked whether there had been any linkage with 
other transport providers since the Committee last met.  Officers reported 
that they had met the County Council’s lead community transport officer, 
who had expressed a preference for making use of existing voluntary 
community transport services, though it would be necessary to set up 
such a service in the St Neot’s area.  He was working towards creating a 
better spread of voluntary transport providers across the county.   
Members noted that meetings were taking place with service user and 
relatives’ groups.  As part of service user engagement, people were being 
asked about their mobility and whether, for example, they could make 
their own way to a pick-up point or would need transport from home. 
Officers advised that it was important to note that there had never been 
an undertaking to pay all transport costs for visiting relatives; these costs 
were not paid elsewhere in the county.  The intention was to provide a 
sum of money to the voluntary services which would be providing much of 
the transport; the sum of £15k was the result of a rough calculation based 
on what voluntary groups had said was the cost of providing transport for 
two visits a week, each visit involving a stay of two hours at the hospital 

• it was important to ensure that some of the savings made were recycled 
to provide adequate respite care for carers.  The Committee was advised 
that the £96k identified reflected the cost of providing mental health input 
into the beds being closed, rather than the total cost of these beds   

• a commitment to provide a detailed action plan would be welcome.  
Officers advised that CPFT had its own implementation plan, with 
different aspects of the scheme proceeding at different paces.  Some 
areas would be achieved early in 2011, with recruitment of primary care 
staff likely to be completed later.  Members expressed concern that too 
great delay in recruiting primary care staff could result in loss of continuity 
of care for existing patients and for new patients 

• what the significance was of the PCT’s spending on mental health 
services being low in comparison with other authorities.  The Head of 
Mental Health Commissioning explained that the PCT was aware that it 
spent a relatively low amount on mental health services, and had done a 
considerable amount of work on the benchmarking data.   
Mental health spending was closely associated with an area’s 
demography, with in general a higher incidence of mental health 
problems in cities than in more rural areas.  The level of mental health 
morbidity in Cambridgeshire was about 80% - 85% of the national 
average, so if the PCT spent 80% - 85% of the national average spend, 
then the level of support provided per patient was probably roughly 
similar to that provided elsewhere.  The £142 per head spending referred 
to in Office for National Statistics (ONS) data was £142 per head per 
year.  

120



3 

Around 60% - 65% of mental health spending was spent on adults of 
working age.  Not all expenditure on older people’s dementia fell within 
the mental health spend, however.  There was national recognition for the 
innovative nature of Cambridgeshire’s work in seeing people at an earlier 
stage of dementia, but there was now less financial support available for 
innovative working than there used to be   

• as not all members of the Committee were fully convinced of the merits of 
the proposals, the wording of draft response paragraph 2.5 should be 
modified to read (additional wording in italics): 

We welcome the commitment to improve the quality of inpatient 
services, and therefore support in principle the proposal to close the 
inpatient wards at Hinchingbrooke and concentrate the inpatient 
service at Peterborough.  We also support in principle the proposal to 
close the inpatient beds at Rowan Lodge. 

   
 PCT and CPFT officers advised the Committee that they would be able to 

provide an update report on the outcome of the consultation process in about 
six months’ time.  This could include further work on transport and the 
outcome of the collaborative work on benchmarking being undertaken with 
the Audit Commission.  Members also expressed interest in a working paper 
on the OPMH projects being undertaken and their associated costs. 

JE, JH, 
CW 

   
 Speaking as the professional lead for adult social care and as one of the joint 

commissioners for the Older People’s Pooled Budget, Rod Craig, the County 
Council’s Executive Director: Community and Adult Services, welcomed the 
proposals as providing an opportunity to release funding locked up in 
hospital-based services to achieve a greater level of care and support for 
older people and their carers. The high-cost expertise of the hospital beds in 
Peterborough should be a short-term intervention for people with acute 
mental health needs or at the diagnosis stage.  Some of what was to be 
provided in the new model of working, respite and day care, fell within the 
pooled budget; CPFT should not be expected to be the main source of 
funding for respite and day care. 

 

   
 The Committee authorised the Scrutiny and Improvement Officer, in 

consultation with the Chairman and the consultation working group, to finalise 
and submit the Committee's response.  She undertook to circulate a revised 
draft to members of the Committee for comment prior to drawing up the final 
wording in consultation with the Chairman and the working group. 

JB, GH 

   
38. MEMBER-LED REVIEW OF ACCESS TO SERVICES AND SUPPORT FOR 

PEOPLE WITH DEMENTIA AND THEIR CARERS FOLLOWING 
DIAGNOSIS: INTERIM REPORT 

 

   
 Councillor Shepherd, as chairman of the Committee’s member-led review 

into dementia services, introduced a report on the review group’s initial 
findings.  Members noted that the review group had looked largely at the 
experiences of older people and had focused on what happened at and 
immediately after diagnosis, because the National Dementia Strategy 
objective ‘Easy access to care, support and advice after diagnosis’ had been 
identified in the local NHS dementia service mapping as needing a significant 
amount of work.  Factors identified by the review group included early 
diagnosis, in the community, and the role of GPs.   

 

   

121



4 

 Councillor Shepherd thanked Jane Belman, Scrutiny and Improvement 
Officer and Rod Craig, Executive Director: Adult Support Services for all their 
help in what had proved to be a huge project, and paid tribute to the 
invaluable assistance of the members of the review group, CPFT and the 
Alzheimer’s Society. 

 

   
 Discussing the report, members 

• thanked the review group for the work already undertaken, and welcomed 
members’ concern about the issues raised 

• pointed out that all GPs were required to undertake 30 hours’ training a 
year and had an appraisal toolkit to identify training needs 

• commented that perhaps the £142 per head per year spent on mental 
health (referred to at minute 37) was not always spent to best effect 

• in relation to the emerging finding that there was a need for more training 
in dementia both of staff in care homes and domiciliary care staff, asked 
whether the training of domiciliary care staff would be reviewed as 
contracts were renewed.   
The Executive Director pointed out that there was a direct link between 
the subject of the member-led review and the previous agenda item on 
improving older people’s mental health services in Huntingdonshire and 
Fenland, which would give more capacity to resource carers and co-
ordinate resources across agencies; there was scope for improving the 
assessment of need for residential care as part of a reablement package. 
The CPFT General Manager, OPMH Services reported that training of 
care home staff and managers had been undertaken successfully in the 
south of the county and was now being extended to Huntingdonshire, 
Fenland and East Cambridgeshire as funding had become available.  
Members noted that high staff turnover was a factor making it difficult to 
ensure all received the necessary training, though it was possible that 
some of the turnover arose from inadequate levels of training and support 

• commented that there appeared to be a risk of demand for the 
Alzheimer’s Society’s services exceeding its capacity and drew attention 
to the vital role it played in supporting patients and carers 

• noted that there were CPFT memory clinics in Peterborough and 
Huntingdon, but the memory service which CPFT provided in the south of 
the county sometimes provided a quicker response; provision varied 
across the county.  The CPFT Director of Operations commented that it 
was important that the Trust deliver the same services across the county, 
however they were based 

• suggested that GP commissioning would bring opportunities to increase 
the amount of provision closer to the community, and pointed out that the 
new Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new development would 
give local authorities an opportunity to look at the provision of 
infrastructure.  The CIL could be used for example for the provision of 
centres to support people’s health and wellbeing, such as swimming 
pools and gymnasiums. 

 

   
 The Committee accepted the review group’s report and thanked its members 

for their continuing work on this topic. 
 

  
 

 

122



5 

39. NHS FUNDED REHABILITATION SERVICES IN CAMBRIDGE CITY AND 
SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE – UPDATE ON IMPLEMENTATION OF 
REVIEW 

 

   
 The Committee considered a report updating it on implementation of the 

review of NHS funded continuing care and rehabilitation services in the south 
of the county which had been conducted in 2007-08.  In attendance to 
respond to members’ questions and comments were, from the PCT, Cathy 
Mitchell, Director of Integrated Commissioning, and Jessica Bawden, Director 
of Communications and Patient Experience, and from Cambridgeshire 
Community Services NHS Trust (CCS), Jane Crawford-White, Assistant 
Director Care at Home.   

 

   
 The Director of Integrated Commissioning outlined the background to the 

2007-08 review and the current service model on the Brookfields site.  
Members noted that  
• there was a community rehabilitation ward at Davison House for patients 

discharged from Addenbrooke's Hospital who had complex rehabilitation 
needs; while the majority of patients returned home, some were re-
admitted to acute hospital or required ongoing residential care 

• CCS was providing intermediate care to people at home, which had 
proved successful either as an alternative to or a continuation from the 
rehabilitation beds 

• the use of beds at St Georges Care Home had been less than expected, 
partly because the more complex needs of patients post-discharge did 
not always fit the St George’s provision; Addenbrooke's, PCT, CCS and 
the County Council had recently met to review the best use of these beds 

• plans to seek a provider for neuro-rehabilitation inpatient services at 
Davison House had not yet been realised; the procurement process had 
taken place and identified a preferred bidder for 60 beds, but the PCT 
had been asked to block purchase more beds than the ten it required, 
and the provider had withdrawn before the contract was signed 

• there were ward areas on the Brookfields site which were not being used.  
The PCT was working with stakeholders to look at the use of the whole 
site, including issues of transport, site layout, and what services should 
be housed on it, bearing in mind that PCTs were expected to cease to 
exist after 2013, in line with the NHS White Paper Liberating the NHS, 
and that GP commissioning clusters were likely to seek to provide more 
services more locally. 

 

   
 In the course of discussion members 

• reported that the LINk Addenbrooke's group had identified that the 
discharge system at Addenbrooke's broke down on occasions; if there 
were delays in the discharge lounge, these probably caused problems to 
Brookfields.  Officers advised that a workstream was looking at problems 
in discharge from Addenbrooke's, and that in terms of managing beds at 
Brookfields and St Georges, it was usually possible to give 
Addenbrooke's 24 hours’ notice of a pending vacancy 

• asked how rehabilitation provision fitted with reablement plans.  Members 
noted that, whatever the terminology, the aim was to achieve a place 
between the community and the acute hospital where the right mix of 
services was provided to enable people to recover and regain their 
independence 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

123



6 

• in view of the breakdown in the procurement process for neuro-
rehabilitation beds in April/May 2010, asked whether an adequate service 
was being provided and where patients needing such care were currently 
being accommodated.  Officers advised that the PCT was spot-
purchasing beds in Sawbridgeworth in Hertfordshire; the intention 
remained to provide such care within Cambridgeshire, though the 
timetable for procurement was still being developed  

• commented that this was a helpful, informative report, with a welcome 
honesty about aspects which had not worked so well 

• in relation to equity of provision across the county, enquired how services 
in Cambridge City and South Cambridgeshire compared with what was 
available in Huntingdonshire, East Cambridgeshire and Fenland.  The 
Director of Integrated Commissioning advised that there were in-patient 
beds at the hospitals in Ely and Wisbech and supported beds in a 
Huntingdon care home; reablement had now been rolled out throughout 
Cambridgeshire.  Members welcomed her offer to provide an overarching 
report summarising reablement,  rehabilitation and neuro-rehabilitation 
provision across the county, and noted the importance of equity of 
outcome for all residents 

• asked what was being done to address the blockages that occurred 
between community and acute care.  Members noted that the chief 
executives of the hospitals, care providers and the Executive Director met 
monthly bringing all the workstreams together; this work would be 
covered in the overarching report and included the discharge lounge. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CM 

   
 The Committee noted the report and requested that it receive both an 

overarching strategic report summarising rehabilitation, reablement and 
interim care provision and an update on the Brookfields site at its meeting on 
22nd March 2011. 

 

   
40. COMMITTEE PRIORITIES AND WORK PROGRAMME2010/2011: UPDATE  
   
 The Committee agreed its priorities and work programme, subject to 

• the addition of a report on the Adult Support Services’ performance 
assessment action plan to the agenda for 1st February, and its addition to 
subsequent agendas as a standing item 

• for 22nd March, the addition of a report from the PCT and CCS giving an 
integrated, holistic picture of rehabilitation, reablement and interim care 
provision throughout Cambridgeshire, in order to assist the Committee in 
considering equity of provision and outcomes in the county  

• for 22nd March, the addition of a progress update on the options for 
consideration relating to the Brookfields site and services 

• the suggestion that the report on the CPFT’s strategy and three-year 
plans, timetabled for 22nd March, might form the catalyst for a member-
led review of Mental Health Services 

• for 22nd March, the addition of an update on developments in the 
Hinchingbrooke Next Steps process 

• the use of exception reporting rather than a member-led review to 
maintain oversight of delayed discharge and admissions avoidance, in 
view of improvements in performance already achieved 

 

124



7 

• the inclusion of Public Health in the issues to be considered, particularly 
in view of the recent publication by the Department of Health of the white 
paper on the strategy for public health in England. 

   
41. CALLED IN DECISIONS  
   
 Members noted that no decisions had been called in since the despatch of 

the agenda. 
 

   
42. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
   
 The Committee resolved that the press and public be excluded from the 

meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it contained 
exempt information under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended, and that it would not be in the public 
interest for this information to be disclosed (information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority 
holding that information)). 

 

   
43. SCRUTINY OF ADULT SUPPORT SERVICES’ INTEGRATED PLAN  
   
 The Committee considered a report on the findings of the task and finish 

working group established at the Committee’s meeting on 28th September, 
and on outline proposals for the Adult Social Care Integrated Plan for 
2011/12 and 2012/13.  Rod Craig, Executive Director: Community and Adult 
Services, attended to introduce the report and respond to members’ 
questions and comments on the outline proposals. 

 

   
44. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
   
 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be held on 

Tuesday 1st February 2011 at 2.30pm.  
 

 
 
 Members of the Committee in attendance: County Councillors G Heathcock 

(Chairman), S Austen, B Farrer, G Kenney, S King, V McGuire, P Read 
(substituting for Cllr S Hoy), K Reynolds, C Shepherd, J West and K Wilkins; 
District Councillors S Brown (Cambridge City), R Hall (South Cambridgeshire) 
and R West (Huntingdonshire) 
 

Apologies: County Councillor S Hoy; District Councillor J Petts (East 
Cambridgeshire) 
 

Time:   2.35pm – 4.55pm 
Place:  Shire Hall, Cambridge 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

125



126

This page is intentionally left blank



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS   
(SOCIAL WELL-BEING)                       1ST FEBRUARY 2011 
(ENVIRONMENTAL WELL-BEING)            8TH FEBRUARY 2011 
(ECONOMIC WELL-BEING)                      10TH FEBRUARY 2011 
 

 
WORK PLAN STUDIES 

(Report by the Head of Democratic and Central Services) 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to allow Members of the Panel to review their 

programme of studies and to be informed of studies being undertaken by the 
other Overview and Scrutiny Panels. 

 
2. STUDIES 
 
2.1 The Council has a duty to improve the social, environmental and economic well-

being of the District. This gives the Overview and Scrutiny Panels a wide remit to 
examine any issues that affect the District by conducting in-depth studies. 

 
2.2 Studies are allocated according to the Council’s service areas which have been 

identified as follows:- 
 

Social Well-Being 
 
Housing 
Community 
Leisure Centres 
Operations (part) 
Democratic and Central Services (part) 
People, Performance and Partnerships (part) 
 
Environmental Well-Being 
 
Environmental and Technical Services 
Planning Services 
Environmental Health 
Operations (part) 
 
Economic Well-Being 
 
Information Management 
Finance 
Customer Service and Call Centres 
Revenues 
Democratic and Central Services (part) 
Law, Property and Governance 
People, Performance and Partnerships (part) 
HQ/Accommodation 

 
2.3 Details of ongoing studies are set out in the attached Appendix. 
 

Agenda Item 9

127



 

2.4 Members are reminded that if they have a specific interest in any study area 
which is not being considered by their Panel there are opportunities for 
involvement in all the studies being undertaken. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Panel is requested to note the progress of the studies selected. 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Minutes and Reports from previous meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels. 
 
 
Contact Officers: Miss H Ali, Democratic Services Officer 
   01480 388006 
 
   Mrs A Jerrom, Member Development Officer 
   01480 388009 
 
   Mrs C Bulman, Democratic Services Officer 
   01480 388234 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

128



 
ONGOING STUDIES 

 
STUDY 
 

OBJECTIVES PANEL STATUS TYPE 
 
 

Visitor Development & 
Town Centre Vibrancy 

To consider issues relating 
to Visitor Development & 
Town Centre Vibrancy. 

Economic Well-Being Further information 
requested on the cost of 
the tourism service and the 
benefits it brings to both 
the Council and to the 
District. 
 

Whole Panel Study 

Consultation Processes To review the Council’s 
current consultation 
processes with a view to 
determining whether the 
approach taken to 
consultation is suitable and 
consistent across the 
authority. 
 

Social Well-Being Working Group appointed 
to review the Council’s 
guidance on consultation 
methodology and evaluate 
examples of previous 
consultations. Second 
meeting of the Working 
Group held on 18th 
January 2011.  
 

Working Group 

Gypsy & Traveller Welfare 
 

To examine existing gypsy 
and traveller sites in the 
District with a view to 
informing any future 
Planning Policy on sites. 
 
 

Social Well-Being Report requested for 
submission to a future 
meeting. Following 
consultation with the 
Chairman, agreed that the 
study would only proceed if 
there is a Planning Policy 
requirement. 
 

To be determined. 

Health Implications of the 
Night Time Economy 

To follow up the previous 
study undertaken by the 
former Overview and 
Scrutiny (Service Support). 

Social Well-Being Social Well-Being Panel to 
consider whether to 
incorporate this study into 
their work programme. 
Further information to be 
submitted to a future Panel 
meeting. 

To be determined. 

129



 
Planning Conservation 
 
 

To consider & evaluate the 
role of the Council’s 
Planning Conservation 
Team in the preservation 
of Huntingdonshire’s built 
heritage with particular 
reference to conservation 
areas and listed buildings.  
 

Environmental Well-Being Working Group meetings 
held on 29th July, 5th 
August, 2nd September, 
7th and 22nd October, 11th 
and 18th November, 6th 
December, 21st December 
2010 and 5th January 
2011. 

Working Group. 
 
 
 

Leisure Centre Financial 
Performance and 
Employment Structure 

To review the overall 
financial performance and 
monitoring arrangements. 
To consider the current / 
future business structure. 
 

Economic Well-Being Agreed to establish a joint 
working group with 
Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
(Social Well-Being). 

Working Group 

Cambridgeshire Local 
Investment Plan 

To review the implications 
of the Investment Plan 
upon local housing, to 
include the potential 
shortfalls in the delivery of 
affordable housing within 
the District, identify what 
housing is due to come 
forward and to include 
reference to the underlying 
links between housing and 
planning.  
 

Social Well-Being Report to be considered at 
Panel’s April 2011 
meeting. 

Whole Panel Study. 

CCTV Provision within the 
District 
 

To review the impact of the 
Council’s proposal to 
cease the CCTV service 
with effect from April 2012. 
  

Social Well-Being Considered at Panel’s 
January meeting. To be 
considered further under 
the Budget and MTP item 
at the Economic Well-
Being Panel’s meeting in 
February 2011. 
 
  
 

Whole Panel Study. 

130



 
Proposals to replace 
EEDA with LEPs. 

To establish the 
implications of these 
proposals. 
 

Economic Well-Being Presentation given to 
December meeting. 
 
Update requested for 
future meeting. 
 

Whole Panel Study. 

Voluntary Sector To be determined. 
  

Social Well-Being Request made by the 
Voluntary Sector to raise 
this item at a future Panel 
meeting. The matter was 
debated at the Council 
meeting in December 
2010. The Chief Executive 
of the Hunts Forum of 
Voluntary Organisation will 
be addressing the Panel at 
its February 2011 meeting. 
 

To be determined. 

 A14 improvements. To review the implications 
to the local economy of the 
decision not to proceed 
with the A14 
improvements. 
 

Economic Well-Being Members decided that they 
want to engage local MPs 
in a co-ordinated approach 
to lobbying the 
Government with a view to 
achieving the Council’s 
aim of upgrading the A14 
in a more cost effective 
way than previously 
planned. 
 

Whole Panel Study. 

Customer Service Centres To review the impact of the 
Council’s proposals to 
close the facilities at 
Ramsey, Yaxley, St Ives 
and St Neots.  
 

Social Well-Being Considered at Panel’s 
January meeting. To be 
considered further under 
the Budget and MTP item 
at the Economic Well-
Being Panel’s meeting in 
February 2011. 
 
 

To be determined. 

131



 
The Use of Consultants To review the criteria used 

in the appointment of 
consultants and assess the 
cost and value gained from 
using them. 
 

Economic Well-Being Further meeting to be 
arranged when additional 
information has been 
obtained. 

Working Group. 

The Financial Implications 
of the Council’s Future 
Housing Responsibilities. 

To be determined. Economic Well-Being Councillor M F Shellens to 
discuss with Chairman the 
possible terms of the 
study. 
 

To be determined. 

Tree Strategy To form a strategy in 
conjunction with the Tree 
Officers for the retention 
and planting of trees. 
 

Environmental Well-Being Working Group meetings 
on 5th and 24th November 
2010. 
 
The next meeting is 
scheduled to be held in 
January 2011. 
 

Working Group. 

Rural Crime To be determined. Social Well-Being Panel to 
nominate representative to 
participate in any future 
joint work as and when 
required. 
 

Meeting of Safer and 
Stronger Communities 
Scrutiny Committee held 
on 13th December 2010. 
 

Joint Authority Working 
Group. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

132



 
POSSIBLE FUTURE STUDIES 

 
 
The Employees 
Performance Development 
Review Process 
 
 

To review the current 
process. 

Economic Well-Being Outcome of Officer Review 
to be reported to the Panel 
when this is concluded. 
 
Work is expected to 
conclude in Spring 2011. 
 

To be determined. 

Land Use for Agricultural 
Purpose in the context of 
planning policies and its 
contribution to the local 
economy. 
 

To review the lack of 
promotion and protection 
of land for this purpose. 

Environmental Well-Being Not being pursued as a 
study at the current time. 

To be determined. 

Rural Transport To review the lack of 
transportation in rural 
areas. 
 

Environmental Well-Being Not being pursued as a 
study at the current time. 

To be determined. 

 

133



134

This page is intentionally left blank



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
13/05/09 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
01/09/09 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

07/12/10 
 

Future Governance of Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital: Consultation Arrangements 
 
This item was transferred over from the 
former Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery). Dr Stephen Dunn, 
Hinchingbrooke Next Steps Project Co-
ordinator and Ms Jessica Bawden, NHS 
Cambridgeshire attended the Panel’s 
January meeting to provide background 
to the consultation on the future 
governance arrangements for 
Hinchingbrooke Hospital. Advised the 
Panel that the consultation was likely to 
commence at some point in the middle of 
the current calendar year. 
 
Panel advised that Councillor S J Criswell 
had been appointed as the District 
Council representative on the 
Stakeholder Panel.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Subject to approval from the Department 
of Health and other regulators, Chairman 
announced that Circle has been 
appointed to take over the management 

 
 
 
Panel to partake in the 
consultation when it 
emerges. Matter to be 
raised at a future Panel 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chairman has 
extended an invitation 
to Circle to attend the 
Panel’s April 2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public meeting of the Stakeholder Panel held 
on 26th November 2009 at 2pm, Huntingdon 
Library. Future public meetings scheduled as 
follows:- 
 

• 25th February 2010 
• 26th May 2010 
• 5th July 2010 
• 27th October 2010 
• 6th January 2011 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5/04/11 
 

A
genda Item

 10

135



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
contract of Hinchingbrooke Hospital with 
effect from 1st June 2011. Agreed to 
extend an invitation to Circle to discuss 
their plans for the Hospital. 
 

meeting. Formal 
invitation to be 
extended in the New 
Year. 

 
 
 
19/05/10 

 
 

Corporate Plan – Growing Success 
 
Councillors S J Criswell and R J West 
appointed to Corporate Plan Working 
Group. A previous decision has been 
made by the former Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel (Corporate and Strategic 
Framework) to extend the Corporate Plan 
Working Group’s remit by requesting it to 
investigate the cost implications of each 
priority area identified within the 
Corporate Plan. A suggestion has been 
made to invite Heads of Service to a 
future meeting to discuss their 
contributions in achieving the Council’s 
objectives. 
 

 
 
Quarterly performance 
reports to be submitted 
to all Overview and 
Scrutiny Panels in 
September, December, 
March and June of 
each year. 
 
Working Group to meet 
on 24th January 2011 to 
consider a review of 
Growing Success and 
on 17th February 2011 
to consider the 
quarterly performance 
report. 
 

 
 
Next quarterly report anticipated March 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
1/03/11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

     
 
 
 
13/05/09 

 
 

Provision of Play Facilities for Young 
People  
 
This item was transferred over from the 
former Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
(Service Delivery) who had identified this 

 
 
 
First meeting of the 
Working Group held on 
30th April 2009. 

 
 
 
Head of Operations and Service 
Development Manager undertook to 
investigate further, the likely insurance, 

 
 
 
 
 
 

136



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2/06/09 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6/10/09 
 
 
 
 
 

 

subject as a potential area for study. 
Particular interest expressed on how 
these facilities are managed and insured 
and if they were maintained by the District 
Council. Report submitted to Panel in 
March 2009 and a Working Group was 
established, comprising Councillors J D 
Ablewhite and P G Mitchell, to meet with 
the Executive Councillor for Operational 
and Countryside Services to investigate 
the provision of play facilities, with a view 
to making recommendations on achieving 
an even distribution of facilities across the 
District and on meeting the ongoing 
revenue costs associated with such 
facilities. 
 
Owing to their interests in the study, 
Councillors Mrs P A Jordan and R J West 
were appointed on to the Working Group. 
Additionally, the Panel requested for an 
update on progress since the first 
meeting of the Working Group to be 
submitted to the Panel for information. 
 
Preliminary report outlining the findings of 
the Working Group to date considered by 
the Panel. Requested that the Working 
Group should meet with the Executive 
Councillor for Operational & Countryside 
Services to discuss the findings further. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request submitted to 
the Head of 
Operations. 
 
 
 
 
 
Working Group met 
with the Executive 
Councillor for 
Operational and 
Countryside Services. 
 
 

resource (inspection) and maintenance costs 
of facilities located within the smaller 
Parishes.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting of the Working Group held on 13th 
August 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

137



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
2/02/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1/06/10 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
5/10/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Further report considered. The Panel has 
recommended to the Cabinet that an 
agreement should be offered to Parishes 
to assist with the revenue costs of their 
facilities. It has also been recommended 
that the Council should also explore the 
co-ordination of a group insurance policy, 
with a view to achieving a lower premium. 
Councillors P G Mitchell and R J West 
have been nominated to present the final 
report to the Cabinet. 
 
The Panel considered a progress report 
on the two recommendations that were 
endorsed by the Cabinet. The Panel has 
discussed whether to revisit its previous 
recommendations regarding the 
maintenance of outdoor youth facilities. 
Further financial details awaited before 
proceeding further. 
 
Attention was drawn to a Member led 
review being undertaken by the County 
Council’s Children and Young Peoples 
Services Committee on integrating 
children and young peoples services and 
social infrastructure provision into the 
County’s new communities. This report 
has been requested for circulation to 
Panel Members for background 
purposes. 
 

Final report to be 
considered by Cabinet 
on 22nd April 2010.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request submitted to 
Service Development 
Manager. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Copy of report and the 
County Council’s 
Cabinet response was 
circulated electronically 
to the Panel on 24th 
November 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

138



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
2/11/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/12/10 

Details of estimated annual revenue costs 
associated with outdoor youth facilities 
received. Scrutiny and Review Manager 
was asked to circulate details of 
organisations providing services for 
inspection, assessment and insurance of 
these facilities around to the Panel. 
 
In light of recent developments, the Panel 
has agreed to pursue this matter further 
at a later date. 
  

Circulated 
electronically to 
Members on 3rd 
November 2010. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TBC 
 
 

 
 
 
3/11/09 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1/12/09 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Monitoring of Section 106 Agreements 
 
Panel agreed to include the Monitoring of 
Section 106 agreements in its work plan, 
subject to gaining the agreement of the 
Development Management Panel. It was 
agreed that only allocated schemes and 
those developments where funding has 
been received for future maintenance of 
the facilities would be considered by the 
Panel. 
 
The Panel has requested that when the 
quarterly monitoring reports are due for 
consideration, a representative from the 
Operations Division should attend the 
Panel’s meeting. 
 
 

 
 
Councillor P G Mitchell 
raised the matter at the 
Development 
Management Panel’s 
November meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The Development Management Panel 
requested the Social Well-Being Panel to 
monitor progress of these schemes on an 
ongoing basis. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

139



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
2/02/10 

 
 
 
 

1/06/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6/07/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7/09/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First monitoring report considered. 
Agreed that greater details on progress of 
schemes completed earliest should be 
included in the next monitoring report. 
 
Requests made for details of the 
developer involved in each Agreement to 
be included in future monitoring reports, 
together with further information on 
particular schemes which are currently 
pending allocation.  
 
 
 
Agreed that additional information would 
be required to assist the Panel in 
scrutinising allocated schemes and 
existing maintenance agreements. 
Councillor P G Mitchell to meet with 
Scrutiny and Review Manager outside of 
the meeting to discuss this further. 
 
It has been suggested for a project plan 
to be developed for each scheme to 
include the project’s objectives, total cost, 
developer contributor(s), other funding 
sources and its trigger points. The Panel 
has endorsed the proposal which was 
considered by the Section 106 
Agreement Advisory Group on 11th 
October 2010. 
 

Request submitted to 
the Policy Officer. 
 
 
 
Request submitted to 
the Policy Officer and 
Service Development 
Manager. A response 
to the latter was 
circulated electronically 
to Members on 21st 
June 2010.  
 
Meeting held on 7th 
September 2010, 
together with the 
Chairman of the 
Section 106 Agreement 
Advisory Group. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

140



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
2/11/10 

 
The outcome of the Advisory Group’s 
deliberations on the Panel’s proposal has 
been received. The Advisory Group did 
not concur with the Panel’s suggestion 
and expressed satisfaction with the 
current arrangements. Councillor P G 
Mitchell has undertaken to raise the 
matter at the Section 106 Agreement 
Advisory Group meeting. 
  

 
The Chairman and Councillor P G Mitchell 
attended the Section 106 Agreement 
Advisory Group meeting on 10th January 
2011. Outcome of discussions to be reported 
to Panel in February. This item appears 
elsewhere on the Agenda. 

01/02/11 

 
 
 

6/7/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/09/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Consultation Processes 
 
Panel requested a scoping report on the 
Council’s current consultation processes 
to be submitted to a future meeting. 
Members questioned whether the 
Council’s approach to consultation was 
consistent across the authority and 
wished to be informed of what the current 
process was, what methods were used 
and how materials were prepared for this 
purpose. 
 
Background information on the role of the 
Policy and Research Team in offering 
advice and guidance to internal service 
departments on consultation and 
research methodologies was received.  
 
Panel has begun to scope its study. 
Members have requested Officers to 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

141



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
5/10/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7/12/10 

circulate a copy of the Communications 
and Marketing Strategy for background 
purposes. Agreed to invite the Policy and 
Strategic Services Manager to attend a 
future Panel meeting. Scrutiny and 
Review Manager to circulate 
electronically to Members a copy of the 
study template. 
 
Councillor B S Chapman, Mr R Coxhead 
and Councillors Mrs P A Jordan, P G 
Mitchell, P D Reeve and R J West have 
been appointed onto a Working Group to 
pursue the investigations further. The 
Working Group has been tasked with 
reviewing the Council’s guidance on 
consultation methodology and to evaluate 
examples of previous consultations. 

Copy of the Strategy 
was circulated to 
Members electronically 
on 18th October 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 
Working Group held its 
first meeting on 15th 
December 2010 and a 
further meeting on 18th 
January 2011. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A brief update will be delivered at the 
meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
2/11/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CCTV Provision 
  
Panel expressed some concern at the 
recent budgetary announcement made by 
the Council to reduce CCTV provision 
within the District in 2011-12 with a view 
to ceasing the service from April 2012. 
Similar concerns were echoed by 
Members of the Economic Well-Being 
Panel.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

142



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
7/12/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4/01/11 
 

Panel has been acquainted with the 
views of the Huntingdonshire Community 
Safety Partnership on the value of CCTV 
in the District. The views of the Police on 
the proposals have been sought, to 
include those of front line Police Officers 
for inclusion within the Partnership’s 
impact assessment. The Panel’s 
comments were submitted to the 
Partnership at its meeting on 16th 
December and a report back from the 
Partnership has been requested. 
  
Report back from the Partnership 
considered together with the views of the 
Police on the proposals. Members have 
concurred that the service should be 
preserved and requested for an update 
on negotiations with Partners on the 
future of the service from 2012/13 
onwards. The matter is due to be 
considered as part of the budget at the 
Economic Well-Being Panel’s meeting in 
February. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TBC 
 
 
 

 
 
 

7/12/10 
 

 

Voluntary Sector 
 
Noted that an approach had been made 
by the Voluntary Sector to raise this item 
at a future Panel meeting. The matter 
was debated at the Council meeting in 

  
 
This item appears elsewhere on the Agenda. 

 
 
1/02/11 

143



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
December 2010. The Chief Executive of 
the Hunts Forum of Voluntary 
Organisation will also be addressing the 
Panel at its February meeting.  
 

 
 
 

7/12/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4/01/11 
 

Customer Service Centres 
 
The Panel has been requested to 
undertake some work in respect of the 
Customer Service Centres in light of 
recent budgetary announcements made 
by the Council to close the facilities at 
Ramsey, Yaxley, St Ives and St Neots. 
The Panel is interested in looking at the 
means by which services can be 
maintained.  
 
Presentation delivered to Panel in 
January 2011. The matter is due to be 
considered as part of the budget at the 
Economic Well-Being Panel’s meeting in 
February. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
2/11/10 

 

Cambridgeshire Local Investment Plan 
  
Panel has requested for a separate report 
on the implications of the Investment Plan 
upon local housing, to include the 
potential shortfalls in the delivery of 
affordable housing within the District, 

 
 
Request submitted to 
the Head of Housing 
Services. Advised that 
the Investment 
Agreement was due to 

 
 
Report anticipated in April 2011. 

 
 

05/04/11 

144



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
identify what housing is due to come 
forward and to include reference to the 
underlying links between housing and 
planning.  
 

be signed off in March 
2011 and that the 
earliest the report 
would be available 
would be April 2011. 
 

 
 
 

6/7/10 
 

Gypsy and Traveller Welfare 
  
Agreed that gypsy and traveller welfare 
should be included within the Panel’s 
work programme, with a view to informing 
any future Council policy on the 
identification of sites. 
 

 
 
Report requested for 
submission to a future 
meeting. Following 
consultation with the 
Chairman, agreed that 
the study would only 
proceed if there is a 
Planning Policy 
requirement. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

TBC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership 
(HSP) 
 
The Panel has a legal duty to scrutinise 
the work of the HSP, with three thematic 
groups of the HSP falling within its remit. 
Arrangements for scrutinising the HSP 
are yet to be formalised between 
Overview and Scrutiny Members and 
Partners of the HSP, but in the meantime 
the Panel has received some background 
information on the work of the thematic 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

145



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
 
06/04/10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

05/10/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

groups as follows:- 
 
Huntingdonshire Community Safety 
Partnership / Inclusive, Safe and 
Cohesive Communities 
 
Panel received details of the Community 
Safety Plan 2010-11 and its strategic 
links to the Inclusive, Safe and Cohesive 
Communities thematic group of the HSP. 
Acknowledged that a multi agency 
approach to the work of the Partnership 
was adopted and that appropriate 
monitoring and accountability 
mechanisms were in place. 
 
Children and Young People 
 
Details of the thematic group’s outcomes 
and objectives have been received 
together with the latest report of the 
group, outlining its terms of reference, 
membership and current matters being 
discussed. The next report of the group 
has been requested for circulation, 
together with an update on progress on 
the action plan for the group which is 
currently in its development stages. Panel 
also agreed to extend an invitation to the 
relevant Executive Member to attend a 
future meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An update on the 
matters raised was 
circulated electronically 
to Panel Members on 
18th October 2010. 
Invitation to be 
extended to Executive 
Member in due course. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TBC 
 
 

146



Panel Date Decision Action Response Date for 
Future 
Action 

 
 
Health and Well-Being 
 
Details of the thematic group’s outcomes 
and objectives have been received 
together with the latest report of the 
group, outlining its terms of reference, 
membership and current matters being 
discussed. Attention has been drawn to 
areas in the Action Plan where targets 
have not been achieved and a response 
for each has been received. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

6/04/10 
 
 

 
6/07/10 

 
 

 

Forward Plan 
 
One Leisure, St Ives – Proposals for 
Development 
 
 
Home Improvement Agency Review – 
Future Delivery Model Consultation 
 
 
Open Space Strategy 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Request submitted to 
the General Manager, 
Leisure. 
 
Request submitted to 
the Head of Housing 
Services. 
 
Request submitted to 
the Head of 
Operations. 
 

 
 
Report anticipated March 2011. 
 
 
 
Report anticipated March 2011. 
 
 
 
This item appears elsewhere on the Agenda. 
 
 
 

 
 
1/03/11 

 
 
 
1/03/11 

 
 

 
1/02/11 

 
 
 
 

 

147



148

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000: FORWARD PLAN
	4 VOLUNTARY SECTOR
	5 OPEN SPACE STRATEGY FOR HUNTINGDONSHIRE 2011-16
	Open Space FINAL version

	6 MONITORING OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS (PLANNING OBLIGATIONS)
	Appendix A December 2010 + LW update
	Monies in S106 account
	Appendix B - Future S106 Benefits Listed By Location
	Appendix C - Future Potential S106 benefits Listed By Location

	8 CAMBRIDGESHIRE ADULTS WELL-BEING AND HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
	9 WORK PLAN STUDIES
	10 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL (SOCIAL WELL-BEING) - PROGRESS

